
 
 
 
 
 
 Date: 22 February 2007 
 
 
TO: 
 
 
TO: 

All Members of the Executive 
FOR ATTENDANCE 
 
All Other Members of the Council 
FOR INFORMATION 

  

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the EXECUTIVE to be 
held in the GUILDHALL, ABINGDON on Friday, 2nd March, 2007 at 
10.00 am. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Terry Stock 
Chief Executive  
 
 

Members are reminded of the provisions contained in Part 2 of the Local Code of Conduct, and Standing 
Order 34 regarding the declaration of Personal and Prejudicial Interests. 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
Open to the Public including the Press 
 

A large print version of this agenda is available.  Any background 
papers referred to may be inspected by prior arrangement. Contact 
Steve Culliford, Democratic Services Officer on telephone number 
(01235) 540307. 
  
Map and Vision   
 

(Page 8) 
 

A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting, together with a copy the Council Vision is 
attached.   
 
 
STANDING ITEMS  
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 

 
 

 To receive apologies for absence.   
 

 



Executive  Friday, 2nd March, 2007 
   
2. Minutes  
 

 
 

 To adopt and sign as a correct record the public minutes of the meeting of the Executive held 
on 5 January 2007, (previously circulated).   
 

3. Declarations of Interest  
 

 
 

 To receive any declarations of Personal or Personal and Prejudicial Interests in respect of items 
on the agenda for this meeting.   
 
In accordance with Part 2 of the Local Code of Conduct and the provisions of Standing Order 
34, any Member with a personal interest must disclose the existence and nature of that interest 
to the meeting prior to the matter being debated.  Where that personal interest is also a 
prejudicial interest, then the Member must withdraw from the room in which the meeting is 
being held and not seek improperly to influence any decision about the matter unless he/she 
has obtained a dispensation from the Standards Committee. 
 

4. Urgent Business and Chair's Announcements  
 

 
 

 To receive notification of any matters which the Chair determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, and to 
receive any announcements from the Chair. 
 

5. Statements and Petitions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  
 

 
 

 Any statements and/or petitions from the public under Standing Order 32 will be made or 
presented at the meeting.   
 

6. Questions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  
 

 
 

 Any questions from members of the public under Standing Order 32 will be asked at the 
meeting. 
 

7. Referral under the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy 
Framework Procedure Rules  

 

 

8. Referrals from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Other Committees  
 

 
 

 Scrutiny Committee - 15 February 2007 
 
At its meeting on 15 February 2007, the Committee received a presentation from the Strategic 
Director and Monitoring Officer regarding the Paypoint service, a service operated nationwide 
by the Co-Operative Bank to assist the public in making payments for Council Tax, parking 
fines and other services such as utility bills and television licences.  Paypoint was being 
considered by officers as part of the Council's Customer Contact Strategy.   
 
It was noted that a report on the strategy would be submitted to the Executive in due course.  
However, the Committee resolved: 
 
"that the Executive be advised that the Scrutiny Committee supports the principle of using the 
Paypoint scheme to receive payments for Council services as part of the Customer Contact 
Strategy and asks that the Co-op be recommended to encourage any rural Post Offices that 
had not joined the scheme to do so."   



Executive  Friday, 2nd March, 2007 
   

 
9. Items Deferred from the Previous Meeting  
 

 
 

 None 
 

10. Financial Monitoring  
 

 (Pages 9 - 12) 
 

 Members are requested to consider any significant budget variances and any requests for 
virement or permanent budget adjustment. 
 
 

KEY DECISIONS  
 
 

11. Forward Plan  
 

 (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

 To receive the Forward Plan containing Executive decisions to be taken from March to June 
2007.   
 
Recommendation 
 
that the Forward Plan be received.   
 
 

OTHER MATTERS  
 
 

12. Corporate Governance - Third Quarter 2006/07  
 

 (Pages 17 - 53) 
 

 To receive and consider report 158/06 of the Directors' Group.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
To receive the Corporate Governance Report for the third quarter of 2006/07. 
 
The Directors’ “Corporate Governance Report” for the quarter looks at the key areas of:- 
Corporate Priorities 
Best Value Performance Indicators 
Local Performance Indicators linked to priorities for improvement 
Financial Information 
Key staffing data 
 
The detailed individual reports are included at the end of this summary report. 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Tim Sadler, Strategic Director (01235) 540360. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Directors’ Group Corporate Governance Report for the third quarter 2006/07 be noted.   
 

13. Best Value Performance Indicators – Performance against Top and Bottom Quartile 
2005-06  

 

 (Pages 54 - 58) 
 

 To receive and consider report 159/06 of the Strategic Director and Monitoring Officer.   
 



Executive  Friday, 2nd March, 2007 
   

Introduction and Report Summary  
 
This report compares the Council’s performance for 2005/6 against that of the national top and 
bottom quartile data for 2005-06 which was published by the Audit Commission in late December 
2006. 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Robert Woodside, Principal Performance Management Officer 
(01235 520202 ext 499). 
 

Recommendations 
 
That Members note the Council’s performance against the national top and bottom quartile 
results for 2005-06 and that active management of Best Value Performance Indicators is 
undertaken through the Corporate Governance Reporting process.   
 

14. Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 2007/08  
 

 (Pages 59 - 64) 
 

 To receive and consider report 160/06 of the Strategic Director and Chief Finance Officer.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
The Treasury Management Policy, agreed by Council December 2001 requires the approval of 
an annual Treasury Management Strategy for the next financial year.  This is in line with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management. 
 
In March 2004 the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister, now the Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG) issued guidance under Section 15 of the Local Government Act 
2003 on Local Government cash investments which requires approval of an Annual Investment 
Strategy.  The guidance does acknowledge that it might be convenient to produce a single 
document that meets the requirements of the CIPFA code and the Secretary of State’s 
guidance. 
 
This report puts forward an Annual Strategy for this authority for 2007/08 which, as last year, 
complies with the CIPFA code and the DCLG guidance.  This is unchanged from the existing 
strategy for 2006/07. This strategy restricts itself to non-property investments.  For property 
investment, Members should refer to the Investment Policy last agreed by the Council on 24 
March 2004 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Steve Lawrence, Head of Asset Management 01235 
540321. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to approve:  
 
the Annual Treasury Management & Investment Strategy for 2007/08 (set out at Appendix A), 
and the limits and guidelines specified in it.   
 

15. Local Development Framework: Core Strategy Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report  
 

 (Pages 65 - 124) 
 

 To receive and consider report 161/06 of the Strategic Director and Monitoring Officer.  
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
Under Section 39(2) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, Sustainability 



Executive  Friday, 2nd March, 2007 
   

Appraisal is mandatory for new Development Plan Documents (DPDs). This puts into effect the 
requirements of European Directive 2001/42/EC on the Strategic Environmental Assessment of 
Plans and Programmes on the Environment which came into effect by regulations produced in 
2004. The now Department for Communities and Local Government produced guidance in 
November 2005 on the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) of Local Development Documents. 
 
The first stage in the SA process (Stage A) is the production of a Scoping Report. This serves 
as the foundation for the SA of the Vale’s Core Strategy. Essentially it provides the information 
relating to the area and other background information together with a suggested assessment 
framework. 
 
Consultation on the document has to be undertaken with the now three designated 
environmental bodies (English Heritage, the Environment Agency and Natural England) and 
any other bodies or persons that the Council considers necessary. Following any amendments 
arising out of the consultation the background information and the framework will be used to 
assess the sustainability of the Core Strategy. A final SA Report has to be produced to 
accompany the Core Strategy DPD when submitted to the Secretary of State. 
 
A draft Scoping Report was considered by the Structure And Local Plan Advisory Group 3rd 
January 2007. The report has been modified in response to comments made at that meeting 
and subsequently in response to comments by other Members.  
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Peter Williams, Principal Planning Officer, (01235 520202) 
 
Recommendations  
 
that the Executive approves the Draft Core Strategy Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report as 
contained in the appendix to this report, and 
 
that the public and relevant organisations are consulted in accordance with the provisions of the 
Council’s Statement of Community Involvement.   
 

16. Local Development Framework: Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Core Strategy  
 

 (Pages 125 - 129) 
 

 To receive and consider report 162/06 of the Strategic Director and Monitoring Officer.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
Under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, local plans are being replaced by a 
Local Development Framework. Responsibility for minerals and waste planning rests with the 
County Council. Under the new system the County Council has to produce Core Strategy and 
Site Allocations minerals and waste documents. The first stage in the production of the Minerals 
and Waste Framework was last year when there was consultation on issues and options for the 
Core Strategy document. The next stage is preferred options where the policies and proposals 
are defined for the first time. Following consultation and revisions a final document will then be 
submitted to the Secretary of State when formal objections can be made. 
 
As the Minerals and Waste Development Framework will form part of the Development Plan for 
the Vale it must be considered by Council. However responsibility for making comments at this 
stage rests with the Executive. The closing date for responses is 23rd March 2007. The 
document has been passed to the political assistants as well as to the Deputy Director 
(Contracts & Procurement) but at the time of writing no comments have been received. This 
report considers the preferred options most likely to affect the Vale as prepared by the County 
Council and recommends comments to form the basis of the Council’s response. 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Peter Williams, Principal Planning Officer, (01235 520202) 



Executive  Friday, 2nd March, 2007 
   

 
Recommendations  
 
that the Executive approves the comments on the Minerals and Waste Framework Core 
Strategy Preferred Options document as contained in this report.   
 

17. Waste Action Plan  
 

 (Pages 130 - 134) 
 

 To receive and consider report 163/06 of the Strategic Director and Chief Finance Officer.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary  
 
The Vale Executive endorsed the Oxfordshire Joint Waste Strategy (JWS) on 1 September 
2006. To support the implementation of this strategy member authorities are required to 
prepare a District Waste Action Plan (DWAP) detailing changes and developments in relation to 
local service provision each year and demonstrating adherence to JWS policies and targets. 
 
The Vale’s draft DWAP is attached as Appendix A. 
 
The contact officer for this report is Mike Mackay, Deputy Director (Contracts & Procurement), 
telephone 01235 520202 ext 337. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Committee approves the District Waste Action Plan 2007/8.   
 

18. Direct Services Organisation Business Plan  
 

 (Pages 135 - 149) 
 

 At its Meeting on 7 July 2006, the Executive considered the report from the Deputy Director, 
Commercial Services, regarding the Direct Service Organisation’s (DSO) performance and 
financial review and its viability as a Council service.  The Executive resolved (minute Ex.55 
refers): 
(a) that the high performance of the DSO during the past 12 months and its continuing 

improvement be recognised; and 
(b) that the continuation of the DSO be endorsed, subject to its ongoing financial viability 

and achievement of its Business Plan.   
 
In accordance with that resolution, the Deputy Director (Commercial Services) now confirms the 
ongoing financial viability of the DSO and has attached DSO Business Plan 2007-10 for 
approval by the Executive.   
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Executive approves the DSO Business Plan 2007-10, which requires the DSO to 
breakeven in 2008/09.   
 

19. Direct Services Organisation - Business Continuity Plan  
 

 
 

 The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 requires the Council to manage the risks to the smooth 
running of its organisation and the delivery of services and to ensure the continuity of critical 
functions in the event of a disruption, and effective recovery afterwards. 
 
This Council wishes to work towards a common and shared approach in Oxfordshire and there 
is evidence of a successfully completed joint project with other neighbouring Councils.  South 
Oxfordshire and Oxford City have recently completed their respective bespoke Business 



Executive  Friday, 2nd March, 2007 
   

Continuity Plans by jointly commissioning an consultancy from Northampton, called Garrison 
Continuity which specialises in Business Continuity Plan offers and independent advice and 
assistance in the implementation of business continuity programmes.  The overall cost is 
estimated to be £14,000 and will be met from existing budgets.   
 
Recommendation 
 
In accordance with Contract Standing Order 2C(4) to waive the requirement to obtain three 
quotations [12C(3)].   
 

20. Exclusion of the Public, including the Press  
 

 
 

 The Chair to move that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public, including the press, be excluded from the remainder of the meeting to prevent the 
disclosure to them of exempt information, as defined in Section 100(I) and Part 1 of Schedule 
12A, as amended, to the Act when the following items are considered: 
 
Item 21  Minutes 

(Category 1 - Information relating to any individual.) 
(Category 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information.) 

 
Item 22  Property Matters 
   (Category 3)   
 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 100A(4) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 

 
 

STANDING ITEMS  
 
 

21. Minutes  
 

 
 

 To adopt and sign as a correct record the Exempt minutes of the meeting of the Executive held 
on 5 January 2007, (previously circulated). 
 
 

OTHER MATTERS  
 
 

22. Property Matters  
 

 (Page 150) 
 

 To consider any property matters.   
 

 
 



Agenda Annex

Page 8



Agenda Item 10

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Agenda Item 11

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



      

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL       Report No 158/06 
  Wards Affected: ALL 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

TO THE EXECUTIVE 
2 March 2006  

 
Corporate Governance Report: Third Quarter (October, November and December) 2006/07 

 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 To receive the Corporate Governance Report for the third quarter of 2006/07. 
 
1.2 The Directors’ “Corporate Governance Report” for the quarter looks at the key areas of:- 

• Corporate Priorities 

• Best Value Performance Indicators 

• Local Performance Indicators linked to priorities for improvement 

• Financial Information 

• Key staffing data 
 

The detailed individual reports are included at the end of this summary report. 
 
1.3 The Contact Officer for this report is Tim Sadler, Strategic Director (01235) 540360. 
 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
 That the Directors’ Group Corporate Governance Report for the third quarter 2006/07 be noted 

 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
 This report 

(a) Relates to the entire Vision Statement. 
(b) Relates to the Best Value Performance Plan and Corporate Plan and  
(c) Complies with Corporate Planning Timetable.  
 

4.0 Background and Supporting Information 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities  

 
Of particular note in this quarter are: 

• The Implementation of the new Vale website which is designed to facilitate more 
interactive services and be compliant with the highest standards of accessibility 

• The declaration of the Abingdon Air Quality Management Area 

• Progress with the review of enforcement policies which in turn will lead to an improved 
score for BVPI 166 (Environmental Health enforcement checklist) 

• Review and introduction of new appraisal schemes which more explicitly link to the 
corporate priorities with a focus on improvement 

• The commencement of the management development programme 

• The commencement of the Ridgeway Shared Service Partnership 

• Action planning commenced to address issues raised in the Staff Attitude Survey in June 
2006 

• Responding to a request from the Scrutiny Committee those issues where the Directors 
are concerned about progress have now been highlighted in Red 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 17



      

4.2 Best Value Performance Indicators 
The BVPI quarter 3 table has been updated with the 2005/6 quartile data which was released by 
the Audit Commission just before Christmas. The column ‘Quartile 05/06’ details which quartile 
the BVPI is in (top, middle or bottom) for 2005/6. A detailed analysis of this data is included as a 
separate report on this same agenda. 
 
BVPIs of particular note at the end of the third quarter are: 
 
BVPI: 2a and b: Equalities 
Limited progress has been made regarding equalities. BVPI 2a has been re-evaluated and the 
percentage score has been reduced from 47% to 31.6%. Development work, including an update 
of the Council’s Race Equality Scheme, will take place by the end of March. The target for the 
end of March is 63.2%. The post of Equalities Officer has now been filled and the successful 
candidate will start in mid March.  Filling this post is key to driving forward improvements for 
these performance indicators.  
 
BVPI: 9 and 10 Collection Rates for Council Tax and Business Rates BVPI 79a – Benefits - 
% of cases where calculation was correct. 
BVPI data is audited nationally within guidelines set by the Audit Commission.  Within the 
guidelines there are variations in the calculation methodology.  In bringing together the client 
teams we have modified our calculation method which has had an adverse effect on our 
performance indicators compared with those previously reported. 
 
BVPI 166: Environmental Health checklist 
Work programme set and on course to exceed 83.3% target score for 2006/07, based on 
exceeding 2004/05 bottom quartile of 79.1%. Following public consultation, draft enforcement 
policies were reported to full Council in December 2006 and approval was delegated to Strategic 
Directors to finalise, due in February 2007. This, together with development and reporting of 
education and information programmes will achieve 93% by the end of the year. This extra score 
was considered a necessary contingency against the bottom quartile for 2005/06 increasing over 
the previous year. This has occurred, and the bottom quartile has increased to 85%.  
 
BVPI 109a, b, c – Planning – processing applications 
The significant improvement in performance reported at the end of the second quarter has been 
maintained. All three parts of this indicator have made further significant improvements in 
performance during the third quarter. 

 
4.3 Local Performance Indicators 
 No additional comments to those included in the detailed report.  It is proposed to supplement 

these during 2007/08 to monitor progress against the refined objectives adopted by Council as 
part of the Service and Budget Planning process. 

 
4.4 Financial Issues 
 No additional comments to those included in the detailed report. 
 
4.5 Staffing Issues 

Sickness levels at the end of the third quarter remain below target. Staff turnover levels have also 
been relatively low.  

 
DIRECTORS GROUP 

 
Background Papers: Corporate Governance Report of the Directors Group  

Page 18



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

2
1
 

 1
. 
W

O
R

K
IN

G
 W

IT
H

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

 T
O

 H
E

L
P

 F
A

C
IL

IT
A

T
E

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F

 A
F

F
O

R
D

A
B

L
E

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
.1

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 7

5
 u

n
it
s
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 
re

n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
  

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
g
o

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e

 
y
e

a
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 r
e

n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

n
e

w
 b

u
ild

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 
th

ro
u
g

h
o
u

t 
th

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

n
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

 

2
1
 u

n
it
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
o
 3

0
/9

/0
6
, 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 7

0
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0

6
-0

8
 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 2

5
0
 

u
n
it
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
a
n

 e
x
p
e
c
t 
m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

is
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 y

e
a
r.

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e
 t
h
e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

 b
id

 r
o

u
n
d
 f

o
r 

S
o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 G

ra
n
t 

c
o
v
e
rs

 t
h
e
s
e
 t

w
o
 

y
e

a
rs

 a
n
d
 n

o
 R

e
g
is

te
re

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
L
a
n
d

lo
rd

 w
a
s
 w

ill
in

g
 t
o

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th

a
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 

fi
n
a
lis

e
d
 i
n
 l
a
te

 2
0

0
5
. 
 A

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

 t
h

is
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 l
u
ll 

a
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 g

e
a
rs

 u
p

. 

        M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n
d
 

        P
a
u

l 
s
ta

in
e
s
 

1
.2

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 2

5
 u

n
it
s
 o

f 
S

h
a
re

d
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
g
o

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e

 
y
e

a
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 s
h
a
re

d
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d

 
o
th

e
r 

lo
w

 c
o
s
t 

h
o
m

e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

n
e

w
 b

u
ild

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 
th

ro
u
g

h
o
u

t 
th

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

n
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

 

 A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n
d
 

 Ia
n
 M

e
a
d
 

1
.3

 
       

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
n
s
 

o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

E
x
p
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
In

te
re

s
t 
(E

o
I)

 f
o
r 

P
ri
v
a

te
 F

in
a

n
c
e
 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

  E
o
I 
re

s
u

lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
n
o

u
n
c
e

d
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2

0
0

6
 

S
ti
ll 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
E

O
I 

S
ti
ll 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
E

O
I 
fr

o
m

 
D

C
L
G

 
 O

u
tl
in

e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

 

    T
im

 S
a
d
le

r 

Page 19



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 

2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
.4

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 a

 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y.
 

 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 s

c
o
p

in
g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 w

h
a
t 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
lly

 r
e

v
ie

w
e
d

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
. 

 C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 b

a
s
e
d

 u
p
o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

te
m

p
la

te
  

 R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 

In
it
ia

l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 p

la
n
n
e

d
 f

o
r 

e
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
to

 b
e

g
in

 s
c
o
p
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t.
  

  P
la

n
n

e
d
 f

o
r 

N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

–
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

- 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 c

h
o

ic
e
 b

a
s
e

d
 l
e

tt
in

g
s
 

s
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

 B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 D

e
c
 

2
0
0
6
 

 N
o

w
 p

la
n

n
e
d

 M
a
rc

h
 0

7
 

 A
u
g

u
s
t 
2
0

0
6
 

      N
o
v
-J

a
n
 2

0
0
7
 

  M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

  A
n
th

o
n

y
 

T
yr

e
r 

a
n

d
 

R
o
b
e
rt

 
W

o
o
d
s
id

e
 

1
.5

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

h
o

ic
e
 B

a
s
e
d
 

L
e
tt

in
g
s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d
 u

s
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

 R
e
p
o
rt

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 S

R
C

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
0
7

 ?
 C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

 
  

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

 L
y
n

 
S

c
a
p
le

h
o
rn

 

1
.6

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

D
ra

w
 u

p
 a

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
n
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

in
te

re
s
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

in
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
m

 t
a
ilo

re
d
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
. 

 In
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
, 

d
ra

ft
 r

e
p
o
rt

 n
o
t 

lik
e
ly

 u
n
ti
l 
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
0

7
. 
 D

e
la

y
e

d
 b

y
 

o
th

e
r 

p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 o

n
ly

 r
e

c
e
n
t 

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
e
a
m

 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

a
n
d
 N

ik
k
i 

M
a
lin

 
 

1
.7

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 a

re
a
 a

s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 B

V
P

I 
2

2
5
. 

B
V

P
I 
2

2
5
 h

a
s
 t
e

n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f 
a
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 D

V
. 
T

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 I
n
s
p

e
c
to

r 
fo

u
n
d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
t 
o
n
ly

 6
 o

u
t 

o
f 

1
0
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l 
2
0

0
6
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
im

s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 8

 o
u
t 

o
f 

1
0
 w

it
h
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

in
a

l 
2
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

0
7
 

   

B
u
d

g
e
t 

B
id

 f
o
r 

o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 w

o
rk

 
s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

  B
u
d

g
e
t 

b
id

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

 s
a

n
c
tu

a
ry

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 

 O
n
g
o
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u

t 
2
0
0
6
-7

 

 P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

a
n
d
  

D
o
t 
M

o
rr

is
o
n
 

1
.8

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d

 f
o
r 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

 

B
u
d

g
e
ta

ry
 a

p
p
ro

v
a

l 
g

iv
e
n
 

 S
p
e
c
if
y
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

  
  

  C
a
p
it
a
l 
F

o
rm

 2
 b

u
d
g
e

t 
b

id
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
n
. 

T
h
is

 t
a
s
k
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

in
te

rn
a
lly

 .
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 e
x
p
e
c
t 
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 i
n
 t
h

e
 s

u
m

m
e
r.

  

    J
u
ly

  
2
0

0
7
 

    P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

Page 20



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 

2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
.9

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 g
ra

n
ts

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
in

 t
h
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

e
q
u

it
y
 l
o
a
n
s
 

L
o
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d

 e
x
a
m

in
e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

is
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
d
g
e

t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 e

q
u
it
y
 l
o

a
n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

n
 w

a
y
 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 t
h
e

 V
a

le
’s

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 p
o
lic

y
 i
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 t

o
 

ta
k
e
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
t 

2
0
0
4

 (
H

o
u
s
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

R
a
ti
n
g
 S

y
s
te

m
).

 
 D

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
 

c
o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 b
a
s
e
d
 e

q
u

it
y
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
, 
b
u
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 s

ta
lle

d
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 F

o
ru

m
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

w
h
ils

t 
a
 

n
ic

e
 i
d
e

a
 i
t 

is
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 a
s
 

p
e
o
p

le
 d

o
 n

o
t 

w
a
n
t 

to
 u

s
e
 u

p
 e

q
u
it
y
 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 h

o
m

e
s
  

F
e
b
 2

0
0
7
 

    N
o
v
 2

0
0

7
 

  Ia
n
 F

o
rs

te
r 

1
.1

0
 

   

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u

n
c
ils

 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 r

u
ra

l 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o

n
 s

it
e
s
 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
th

re
e
 r

u
ra

l 
n

e
e
d
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 2

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

L
im

it
e
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
c
y
 o

f 
R

u
ra

l 
E

n
a
b
le

r 
P

o
s
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 

O
R

C
C

. 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u

t 
2
0
0
6
-7

 

 Ia
n
 M

e
a
d
 

1
.1

1
 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

re
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

y
 s

p
ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7
. 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

la
s
t 

y
e

a
rs

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

 S
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

w
ri
tt

e
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 l
e

a
d

in
g
 

to
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
n

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 p

a
p
e
r 

 F
u
ll 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

v
e
n
t 

  D
ra

ft
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d
 t

o
 t

ie
 i
n
 w

it
h
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
t 
to

 a
ll 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
 S

e
n
t 

to
 a

ll 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 
  E

v
e
n
t 

h
e
ld

 1
1

th
 O

c
t 
0

6
 

  D
ra

ft
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d
 t

o
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 S
e
p
t.

0
6
 

 F
in

a
l 
d
ra

ft
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 h
o
ld

e
r .

  
O

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

–
 t

o
 S

R
C

 M
a
rc

h
 0

7
  

J
u
ly

 2
0
0

6
 

  J
u
ly

 2
0
0

6
 

  S
e
p
t 

2
0

0
6
 

  O
c
t-

N
o
v
 2

0
0
6
 

 F
e
b
 2

0
0
7
 

      P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

1
.1

2
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 S

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
  

 

T
h
e
 S

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 g

iv
e
s
 

m
o
re

 d
e
ta

il 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

It
s
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 h

a
d
 t
o
 w

a
it
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
p

la
n
 t

h
a

t 
w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
. 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 t

o
 d

ra
ft

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

  
 

 A
d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
S

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
D

 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

  J
u
ly

 2
0
0

6
 

 K
a
ti
e
 B

a
rr

e
tt
 

   Page 21



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 

2
1
 

 2
. 

C
R

E
A

T
IN

G
 A

 C
L

E
A

N
E

R
, 

G
R

E
E

N
E

R
, 

S
A

F
E

R
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
L

T
H

IE
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 A
N

D
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 

 Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

2
.1

 
D

e
v
is

e
 a

 s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
m

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

it
h
 V

a
le

 s
ta

k
e
h
o

ld
e
rs

 

C
o
n
fi
rm

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
  
m

e
th

o
d
o

lo
g

y
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 
 D

ra
ft

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
s
 

    H
o
ld

 P
a
rt

n
e
r 

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 
F

in
a

lis
e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
s
 

 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 f

o
r 

 E
n

v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
C

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 G

re
e

n
e
r 

a
n
d
 S

a
fe

r 
a
n
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
P

la
n
s
  

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
s
 ;
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
T

im
e
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
 t

o
 S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 2
1
/7

/0
6
 

 A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 f

o
r 

E
C

A
P

; 
G

re
e
n
 A

P
; 

S
a
fe

r 
A

P
; 

H
e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

A
P

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 

D
o
n
e
 f

o
r 

E
C

A
P

,G
A

P
,H

A
P

, 
S

A
P

. 
 S

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
6

 
S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

   S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

  A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

 D
e
c
. 
 2

0
0
6
 

D
e
c
. 
 2

0
0
6
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
, 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
, 

R
o
d
g

e
r 

H
o
o
d
, 

M
ik

e
 

M
a
c
k
a

y 
 

 
C

L
E

A
N

E
R

 
 

 
 

 

2
.2

 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 l
it
te

r 
a

n
d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
 i
n

 
p
u
b

lic
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
  

V
a

le
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 u

p
o
n
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

c
o
re

s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

a
g
re

e
d
 c

o
u
n

ty
-w

id
e

 (
L
o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t)

 t
a
rg

e
ts

  

V
a
le

 V
o
ic

e
 P

a
n
e

l 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 W

a
s
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

tr
e
e

t 
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 

 P
u
b

lis
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

  L
ia

is
o
n
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
J
u
ly

 s
e
e
 

a
ls

o
 i
te

m
 2

.4
 b

e
lo

w
  

 C
le

a
n
a

w
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

w
ill

 d
e
liv

e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
6
 

  S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

   A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

     M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 

2
.3

 
T

a
k
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n

 t
o
 c

o
m

b
a
t 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
ri
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

fl
y 

ti
p
p
in

g
, 

d
o
g

 f
o
u
lin

g
, 

lit
te

r,
 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
a
n
d
 f

ly
 p

o
s
ti
n

g
 

A
d
o

p
t 
a
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 (

L
E

Q
) 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 In
tr

o
d
u
c
e

 F
ix

e
d

 P
e
n
a

lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
le

c
te

d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
ri
m

e
s
 

L
E

Q
 d

ra
ft

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 

E
x
e
c
. 
0
7
/0

7
 &

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

1
9
/0

7
 

P
u
b

lic
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 3

1
/1

0
; 

a
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 0

5
/0

1
/0

7
 

 O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

    

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

Page 22



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 

2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

2
.4

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 W

a
s
te

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 
a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

  P
u
b

lic
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 v

ia
 B

V
P

I 
 9

0
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

   

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
; 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
p

u
t 

@
 J

u
ly

 a
n
d
 S

e
p
t.
 0

6
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

C
le

a
n
a

w
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

S
p
ri

n
g
 -

 
S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 
w

.e
.f

 A
u
g

 0
6
 

 
G

R
E

E
N

E
R

 
 

 
 

 

2
.5

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 w

a
s
te

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

W
a
s
te

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
O

W
P

) 
P

u
b

lis
h
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 W
a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
; 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 4

th
 A

u
g

u
s
t;
 O

W
P

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 d

ra
ft

 v
a

le
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 1

s
t  S

e
p

t 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 j
o
in

t 
m

u
n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 S

e
p
t.
 

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 n

o
w

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

 W
in

te
r 

2
0
0
6
 

     J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 
w

.e
.f

. 
S

e
p
t.
 

0
6
 

 M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 
 

2
.6

 
A

c
h
ie

v
e

 a
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 R

e
c
yc

lin
g
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 r

a
te

 o
f 

2
9

%
 i
n
 

2
0
0
6
-0

7
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 e

x
p

a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
o
p
t 
–

 i
n

 w
h
e

e
le

d
 b

in
s
 

fo
r 

g
a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 &
 c

a
rd

b
o

a
rd

 t
o
 8

0
0

0
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 
w

.e
.f

. 
S

e
p
t.

0
6
 

2
.7

 
A

c
h
ie

v
e

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
c
yc

lin
g
 o

f 
n
o
n
 b

io
d
e
g
ra

d
a

b
le

 w
a
s
te

 i
n

 
lin

e
 w

it
h
 a

g
re

e
d
 c

o
u

n
ty

 –
 w

id
e
 

(L
A

A
) 

ta
rg

e
ts

  

P
u
b

lis
h
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 P

la
n
 2

0
0
6
-0

9
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

 O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

 W
in

te
r 

2
0
0
6
 -

2
0
0
8
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 
w

.e
.f

. 
s
e
p
t.
 

0
6
 

 
S

A
F

E
R

 
 

 
 

 

2
.8

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e

 
V

a
le

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

2
0
0
5
-0

8
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 C

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 D

is
o
rd

e
r 

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
(C

D
R

P
) 

–
 l
a
te

s
t 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
. 

2
0
0
5
-2

0
0

8
 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

2
.9

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

–
 r

e
g
u

la
te

d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 (

H
S

E
) 

re
v
is

e
d
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
  

 A
c
h
ie

v
e

 r
e
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
6
-0

7
 

 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

  M
a

y
 m

is
s
 s

p
ri
n
g
 2

0
0

7
 t
a
rg

e
t 
d
u

e
 t
o

 
s
ta

ff
 s

h
o
rt

a
g
e
. 
 W

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n
d
. 

 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

  S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

Page 23



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 

2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

2
.1

0
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

re
g
u
la

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
, 
F

o
o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
, 
H

e
a
lt
h

 
&

 s
a
fe

ty
 a

t 
w

o
rk

, 
P

ri
v
a
te

 
S

e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 u

p
o
n
 d

ra
ft

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

ie
s
  

 P
u
b

lis
h
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 

J
u
ly

 –
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
: 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 R
e
v
is

e
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
  

 A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

2
.1

1
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

a
fe

ty
 

R
a
ti
n
g
 S

y
s
te

m
  
 

A
d
o

p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 L
o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g
u

id
e

lin
e
s
  

C
h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 s

c
h
e

m
e
 o

f 
d
e
le

g
a
ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

 
H

E
A

L
T

H
IE

R
 

 
 

 
 

2
.1

2
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 a

ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 i
n

 
p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
A

b
in

g
d
o
n
  

D
e
c
la

re
 a

n
d

 A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
A

re
a
 

(A
Q

M
A

) 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
 u

p
o
n
 a

n
 A

ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 (

A
Q

A
P

) 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
 A

Q
A

P
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0

6
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 P

R
A

C
 

2
2
/6

/0
6
 

P
re

p
a
ra

to
ry

 w
o
rk

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
; 
p

u
b

lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
0
7

: 
o
n

 t
a
rg

e
t 

 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 2
0
0
6
-2

0
0

9
 

P
a
tr

ic
k
 

L
e
g
g

e
 

2
.1

3
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 S
k
a
te

 P
a
rk

 i
n
 

A
b
in

g
d
o
n
. 

  
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
g
e

 i
n

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
th

 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

 C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

k
a
te

 P
a
rk

 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

  D
e
la

y
e

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 i
n
it
ia

l 
q

u
o
te

s
 b

e
in

g
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 o

v
e
r 

b
u
d

g
e
t 

 W
R

E
N

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 n

e
w

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 

to
 s

ta
rt

 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
0
7
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

  S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 

to
 A

p
ri
l 
0
7
 

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 

2
.1

4
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 L

e
is

u
re

, 
C

u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
  

 
 

 

C
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 u

s
e
 o

f:
 

T
u
g
w

e
ll 

fi
e

ld
s
 

  S
to

c
k
h
a
m

 P
a
rk

  
  M

a
b

ly
 W

a
y 

 
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

o
u
n
ty

; 
p
la

n
n

in
g

 
a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

 a
w

a
it
e
d
. 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 
L
e
a
s
e
 b

e
in

g
 d

ra
ft

e
d
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 

   N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
, 
ti
e

d
 t
o
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n

 a
t 
G

ro
v
e
 A

ir
fi
e

ld
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
  

  F
e
b
 2

0
0
7
 

    U
n
k
n
o
w

n
 

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 

Page 24



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 

2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

2
.1

5
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
te

c
ts

 t
h
e
 

in
te

re
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 V

a
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 r

e
g

io
n
a

l 
s
p
a
ti
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

 
E

a
s
t 
a

n
d
 S

o
u

th
 W

e
s
t 
 

 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 o
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 d

ra
ft

 b
y
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 
m

a
d
e
 t
o
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
b

o
d

ie
s
 

 G
iv

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 E

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 P

u
b

lic
  

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

  V
a
le

 h
a
s
 g

iv
e

n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 a
t 

th
e
 E

IP
 

in
to

 t
h
e

 s
o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

P
la

n
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

u
b
 

re
g
io

n
a

l 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 F

e
b
 2

0
0
7
; 
a

ls
o
 a

t 
th

e
 S

w
in

d
o

n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

IP
 i
n

to
 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

 w
e
s
t 

R
e
g

io
n
a
l 
S

p
a
ti
a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

  F
e
b
/M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
7
 

R
o
d
g

e
r 

H
o
o

d
 

2
.1

6
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 O

p
e

n
 

S
p
a
c
e
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 p

la
y
g
ro

u
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 P

la
n
n
in

g
  

P
o

lic
y
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 1

7
 (

P
P

G
) 

1
7
 

le
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
a
rk

s
  
&

 o
p
e

n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 P

a
ri
s
h
e
s
 

C
it
iz

e
n
s
 P

a
n
e

l 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

 

A
u
d

it
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

P
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 2
8
 F

e
b

 
fo

llo
w

e
d
 b

y
 P

a
ri
s
h
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o
n

. 
 

W
in

te
r 

2
0
0
7

/0
8
 

  

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 

2
.1

7
 

O
p
ti
m

is
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 
n
e

w
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 

le
is

u
re

, 
c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

  

P
P

G
 1

7
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 f

e
e
d

 i
n

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

n
e
g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 

 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 

o
p
ti
m

is
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
s
 b

u
t 

in
 

th
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 a
re

 p
ro

c
e
e

d
in

g
 w

it
h
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 L
e
is

u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

s
e
e
 2

.1
6
 

a
b
o

v
e
 

  W
in

te
r 

2
0
0
6
 

R
o
d
g

e
r 

H
o
o

d
 

2
.1

8
 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 w

it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

a
n
d
 Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

s
 P

la
n
 

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 t
h
e

 d
ra

ft
 Y

o
u
th

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
  

  P
u
b

lis
h
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

; 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 s

e
t 

u
p
 (

in
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
) 

to
 p

la
n
, 
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
&

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

B
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

2
0
0
7
-2

0
0

9
 

 

T
o
b

y 
W

a
rr

e
n
 

 3
. 
IM

P
R

O
V

IN
G

 A
N

D
 M

O
D

E
R

N
IS

IN
G

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 T
O

 O
U

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

Page 25



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 

2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

3
.1

 
               

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  
a
n
d
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 –

 b
e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

 
  C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-
c
h
a
n
n
e

l 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
 

              A
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a

ym
e
n
ts

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
  

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 A
p
p

o
in

t 
a

n
 E

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

    U
p
d
a
te

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 p

la
n
 

 P
ro

d
u
c
e

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 A

u
g

u
s
t 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 p

ro
c
e

e
d
 w

it
h
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

  
R

o
ll 

o
u

t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

u
t 
b
e
fo

re
 S

M
G

 
o
n
 2

7
.1

0
.0

6
. 

R
e
c
e

iv
e
d
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 h
o
ld

e
r 

e
n
d
o
rs

e
m

e
n
t.
  
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 r

e
-

e
n
g

in
e

e
ri
n

g
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n

 B
u

ild
in

g
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l.
  

A
w

a
it
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
b
id

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
o
ft

w
a
re

 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
0
0
7

. 
 T

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 o
n
 t

h
is

 c
a
p
it
a

l 
b

id
 

w
ill

 a
ff

e
c
t 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

o
ft

w
a
re

 
is

 u
p
g
ra

d
e
 o

r 
re

p
la

c
e
d
, 

a
n

d
 s

o
 u

n
ti
l 

m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 B

P
R

 w
o
rk

 
w

ill
 n

o
t 
b

e
 f

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
. 

 P
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e
d
, 

w
ill

 b
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 0

7
/0

8
 b

u
d
g
e

t.
  
 

  In
 p

o
s
t 
F

e
b
 2

0
0
7
 

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

,e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 0

1
.1

1
.0

6
. 
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

in
 h

a
n
d

, 
in

te
rv

ie
w

in
g
 i
n
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
0
7

. 
F

ro
m

 0
1
.1

1
.0

6
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
C

h
a

n
g
e

 T
e
a
m

. 
 N

o
w

 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 w
it
h
in

 d
ra

ft
 O

D
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

M
a
in

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 o

c
c
u
r 

w
h
e

n
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

in
 p

la
c
e
. 
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 

th
e
 R

a
c
e
 E

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 B

V
P

I.
  

A
u
g
 2

0
0

6
 

  A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
7
  

              M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

    O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

   N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

 o
n

w
a
rd

s
 

  

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

Page 26



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 

2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

3
.2

 
P

ro
m

o
te

 A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

fo
c
u
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 

th
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
 t
o
 b

e
 d

ra
ft

e
d
 

   

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

       A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 
 P

ro
m

o
te

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
 s

ta
ff

 
 

F
ro

m
 0

1
.1

1
.0

6
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
C

h
a

n
g
e

 T
e
a
m

. 
 N

o
w

 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 O
D

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
p
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 t

h
e
 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 a
n
d
 

a
s
c
e
rt

a
in

in
g

 t
h
e

ir
 i
n
p
u

t.
 A

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 

c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

 

F
ro

m
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
7
 

      F
ro

m
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
0
7
 

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

3
.3

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 p

u
b

lis
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 a

re
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

   C
o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 p

u
b

lis
h
  

 

F
ro

m
 0

1
.1

1
.0

6
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
C

h
a

n
g
e

 T
e
a
m

. 
  

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 

  N
o

w
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e

 
d
ra

ft
 O

D
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

B
y
 e

n
d

 J
a
n
 

2
0
0
7
 

   J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
7
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

Page 27



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

3
.4

 
U

p
d
a
te

 w
e

b
 s

it
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 u

s
a

b
ili

ty
 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
v
a

le
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 

 R
e
a
c
t 
to

 i
n

it
ia

l 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

   R
e
tu

rn
 T

ri
d
io

n
 C

o
n
te

n
t 

M
a

n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
 t
o
 

s
ta

ff
 u

s
e
rs

 
 C

o
n
te

n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

n
d

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

 F
u
n
c
ti
o

n
a

l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 (
fo

rm
s
/c

o
n
te

n
t)

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
  

     

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

 A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 –

 w
e
b
s
it
e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 

  N
a
v
ig

a
ti
o

n
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

u
p
d
a

te
d
 (

e
x
tr

a
 t
a
s
k
 

n
o
t 
p

la
n
n
e

d
 f

o
r)

 
 O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 d
u

e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
. 

K
n

o
c
k
 

o
n
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 

a
b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p

p
lie

r 
a
n

d
 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 m

e
a
n
 d

e
la

y
 u

n
ti
l 

F
e
b
 2

0
0
7
 

  B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

o
rk

 s
ta

rt
e
d
 F

e
b
 

2
0
0
7

. 
 T

o
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
. 

 

  O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

        F
e
b
 2

0
0
7
  

 F
e
b
 –

 J
u

n
e
 

2
0
0
7

  
  

A
n
n
 S

a
d
le

r 
   N

ik
k
i 
M

a
lin

 

3
.5

 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 c

h
a

lle
n
g

in
g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 

R
e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

A
g
re

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 

   

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 E

x
e

c
u
ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

p
e
ri
o

d
 2

0
0
6
-2

0
0
8

  
 T

h
re

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
: 

•
 

W
h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 L

e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 T

e
n
n

is
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 t

o
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
0
7
 b

y
 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
a

d
v
ic

e
 

•
 

V
a
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

 V
a

lu
e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n

e
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

M
a

y
 2

0
0
6
 

  R
e
p
o
rt

 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
7
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
7
 

R
o
b
e
rt

 
W

o
o
d
s
id

e
 

         4
. 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 O
U

R
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

IA
L

 &
 O

R
G

A
N

IS
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 
 Page 28



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
2
1
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

4
.1

 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 

D
ra

ft
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

g
re

e
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 s
id

e
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
  
 

 

A
g
re

e
d
 i
n
 f

u
ll 

 
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
C

h
a

n
g
e

 a
n

d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

fr
o
m

 0
1
.1

1
.0

6
 C

O
M

P
L
E

T
E

D
 

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 0
.1

1
.0

6
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

4
.2

 
D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

A
s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
e
re

 w
e

 a
re

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 6

 t
h
e
m

e
s
 o

f 
 

o
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
 

P
e
o

p
le

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
 

L
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
o

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o

 
C

u
lt
u
re

 
o

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

 v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 t
h

e
m

e
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 c

o
u

ld
 

b
e
, 
h

o
w

 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d
. 

 S
e
le

c
t 

w
h

ic
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
 w

a
n
t 
to

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
, 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 
o

 
S

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

o
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

s
p
ir

a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

o
 

L
o
c
a
l 
p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 

o
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

 
P

ri
o
ri

ti
s
e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
, 
fo

rm
u
la

te
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n

 
p
la

n
. 

 
 

 

V
is

io
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 S

M
T

 
a
n
d
 S

M
G

 a
s
 p

e
r 

th
e
 t
h

e
m

e
s
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 b

y
 D

C
L
G

. 
     A

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

  W
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
t 
u
p
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
th

e
 O

D
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

 S
o
la

c
e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 a

s
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

fr
o
m

 L
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
C

e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

L
o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

 D
ra

ft
 O

D
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

w
it
h
 6

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ta

l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
. 

 
P

re
s
e
n
tl
y
 i
n

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h
 S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

. 
    

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

       O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

  N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

   N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

    J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

4
.3

 
In

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 A
w

a
rd

  
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

A
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e

 a
w

a
rd

 
R

e
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
T

O
O

K
 P

L
A

C
E

 I
N

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
6
 a

n
d

 I
IP

 s
ta

tu
s
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
. 
 

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

Page 29



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

4
.4

 
    

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

e
o

p
le

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
  

 

P
u
b

lic
is

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

 
S

p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

4
.5

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 

C
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

/P
D

P
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

s
 

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

4
.6

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 l
in

k
 t
h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

im
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
c
a
d

e
 t
h

e
m

 
in

to
 t
h
e

 c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

 

 
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 A

im
s
 a

n
d
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 c

la
ri

fi
e
d
 

in
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
  
R

e
q
u
e

s
t 
fo

r 
d
ra

ft
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e

n
 i
s
s
u
e
d

. 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

e
in

g
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
. 
 O

D
 

a
g
re

e
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
a
p
tu

ri
n
g
 

a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h
in

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
la

n
s
. 
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

4
.7

 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
 

S
M

T
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

 A
w

a
y
 d

a
y
s
 

 C
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 d

ir
e
c
to

ry
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 f

o
r 

S
e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

R
o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 r
e
-

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
 b

e
e
n

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

P
u
b

lis
h

e
d
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

a
n

e
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 P

D
P

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

J
u
ly

 0
6
 

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

 A
u
g

u
s
t 
2
0

0
6
  
 

T
im

 
S

a
d

le
r/

H
e
le

n
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

4
.8

 
G

iv
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 H

u
m

a
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 s

ys
te

m
 

S
tr

e
a
m

lin
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 
S

e
lf
-s

e
rv

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 

  C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

4
.9

 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 

C
re

a
te

 a
 p

la
n

 c
o
m

b
in

in
g

 c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 n

e
e
d
s
 

 
S

p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

4
.1

0
 

S
ta

ff
 a

tt
it
u

d
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

C
o
lla

te
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 

A
g
re

e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

ta
ff

 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 /
 b

u
ild

 i
n

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 s

e
t 
u
p

 
3
1
.1

0
.0

6
 w

it
h
 a

 g
ro

u
p
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e
d
 o

f 
a
 

c
ro

s
s
-s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 
 

S
o
m

e
 q

u
ic

k
 w

in
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 i
n

 
s
it
u
, 
e

g
 t
h

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

’s
 B

lo
g
. 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

  O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

N
ik

k
i 
M

a
lin

 

Page 30



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

4
.1

1
 

U
p
d
a
te

 t
h

e
 I
C

T
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

S
e
le

c
t 
IC

T
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
n
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 

 P
ro

d
u
c
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
  

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
  

  A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
. 

  In
 t
ra

in
. 

 

    S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

 o
n

w
a
rd

s
 

A
n
n
 S

a
d
le

r 

4
.1

2
 

B
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 
b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

a
n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
 

J
o
in

 b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 c

lu
b
 

In
p
u
t 

d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 f

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 f

o
r 

c
a
s
h
ie

ri
n
g
, 

d
a

ta
 s

e
n
t,
 

re
p
o
rt

 r
e
c
e

iv
e
d
. 
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

4
.1

3
 

    

R
e
v
ie

w
, 

in
te

g
ra

te
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
o
u
r 

ri
s
k
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

 

U
p
d
a
te

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 D
e
p

u
ty

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
 

 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

A
n
n
 S

a
d
le

r/
 

D
D

 C
o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 
&

 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

 

4
.1

4
 

R
e
s
o
lv

e
 P

a
y
 &

 G
ra

d
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 p

o
in

ts
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
re

m
ia

 
 

D
e
c
id

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 

p
o
in

ts
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

p
p

lic
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
m

a
rk

e
t 
p
re

m
ia

 

•
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
. 
 R

e
p

o
rt

 g
iv

e
n
 t
o

 P
R

A
C

 
o
n
 1

5
th
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

  
A

ff
e
c
te

d
 s

ta
ff

 
a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

e
v
e
ry

 g
ra

d
e
 (

a
p
a
rt

 
fr

o
m

 G
ra

d
e
 1

) 
e

n
d
s
 o

n
 4

th
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

s
c
a
le

 a
lt
h
o

u
g
h

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

o
m

e
 s

c
o
p
e
 

fo
r 

e
x
tr

a
 i
n
c
re

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
w

a
rd

 
p
ro

je
c
t 
w

o
rk

. 
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

tr
a
ig

h
t 

a
w

a
y
. 

  M
a
rk

e
t 
p
re

m
ia

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

t 
P

R
A

C
 o

n
 

2
2
.0

6
.0

6
 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

4
.1

5
 

P
ro

d
u
c
e

 n
e

w
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

In
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
h

e
a
lt
h
 c

h
e
c
k
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 

fr
o
m

 2
0
0
4
 i
n
to

 n
e

w
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

u
r 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 O

rd
e
rs

 a
n
d
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t.

 T
o
p
 l
e

v
e

l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 
d
ra

ft
e
d
, 
s
e
c
o
n

d
 t
ie

r 
p
o

lic
y
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 (

w
ill

 b
e
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 b
a
s
e

d
 o

n
 w

o
rk

 a
lr
e
a
d

y
 

d
o
n
e

 b
y
 S

O
D

C
).

 S
R

C
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 

n
o
te

d
 t
h

e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
7
. 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 

Page 31



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 
2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

4
.1

6
 

S
tr

e
a
m

lin
e

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e

 w
o
rk

lo
a
d
 

w
h
ils

t 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 &

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 (
w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

S
O

) 
 

i.
  
N

e
w

 j
o
in

t 
A

g
re

s
s
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

 ii.
  
F

o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 j
o
in

t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
c
y
 t

e
a
m

 
   iii

. 
U

p
d
a
te

d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

O
n
 t
ra

c
k
 

 B
e
h

in
d
 s

c
h
e
d
u

le
 d

u
e

 t
o
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 r

e
 V

a
le

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
c
y
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

p
o
s
t 

 O
n
g
o
in

g
 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
7
 

 A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
6
 

W
ill

ia
m

 
J
a
c
o
b
s
 

4
.1

7
 

C
la

ri
fy

 a
im

s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 

fo
r 

c
o

u
n

c
il
 

U
p
d
a
te

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

C
la

ri
fi
e

d
 A

im
s
 a

n
d
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 

in
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
 R

e
v
is

e
d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
la

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 m

id
 2

0
0
7
/8

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e
 M

a
y
 e

le
c
ti
o
n
s
 

J
u
n
e
 0

6
 

  

T
im

 S
a
d
le

r 

4
.1

8
 

 
L
in

k
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
  

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

 

B
e
tt

e
r 

lin
k
a
g
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 

D
e
c
 -

 F
e
b
 0

6
 

 

4
.1

9
 

 
E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
o
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
 

a
im

s
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
m

a
n
n
e
r 

 

W
ill

 f
o
llo

w
 o

n
 f

ro
m

 B
u
d
g
e
t 

F
e
b
 0

7
 

T
im

 S
a
d
le

r 

4
.2

0
 

 
E

x
a
m

in
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 a

im
s
 a

n
d
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 –

 E
x
p
e

c
t 
to

 r
e
p
o
rt

 
in

 A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
7
 

D
e
c
 0

6
 

T
im

 S
a
d
le

r 

4
.2

1
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

M
a
k
e
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

im
s
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 m

o
re

 e
x
p
lic

it
 

•
 

S
e
c
o
n

d
 p

a
s
s
 0

6
/0

7
 

•
 

F
ir
s
t 
p
a
s
s
 0

7
/0

8
 

S
e
c
o
n

d
 p

a
s
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 p

o
s
t 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 e
x
e
rc

is
e
 p

la
n

n
e
d
 f

o
r 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

  N
o
v
 0

6
 

M
a
r 

0
7
 

J
P

/T
S

 
  D

D
 /
 A

D
s
 

4
.2

2
 

 
C

a
rr

y
o
u

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 V
a
le

 h
a
s
 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e
r 

 

O
v
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 f
o
rm

 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

. 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

  

N
o
v
 0

6
 

T
im

 S
a
d
le

r 

4
.2

3
 

 
C

a
s
c
a
d
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 t
h

ir
d
 

ti
e
r 

In
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 –

 J
u

ly
 0

6
 

T
o
 c

h
e
c
k
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 -

S
M

T
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

–
 N

O
T

 1
0
0
%

. 
 W

ill
 b

e
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
d
 a

t 
S

M
T

 

D
e
c
. 
0
6
 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

4
.2

4
 

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 V

F
M

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

 V
F

M
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

D
ra

ft
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 –

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 t
o

 S
M

T
. 

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 S
te

e
ri

n
g

 G
ro

u
p
 f

o
rm

e
d
 a

n
d

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o

n
 

a
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

b
a
s
is

 

S
e
p
t.

 0
6
 

 

4
.2

5
 

 
H

a
v
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 c

o
s
t 
a

n
d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
b

lo
c
k
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
re

 D
a

ta
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
. 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

V
F

M
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
d
ra

ft
e
d
  

J
a
n
 0

7
 

 

Page 32



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 
2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

4
.2

6
 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 V

a
lu

e
 F

o
r 

M
o
n
e

y
 B

V
R

 a
n
d
 a

p
p

ly
 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
B

V
R

 w
e

ll 
u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 
O

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 
to

 
re

p
o
rt

 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

0
7
 

A
p
ri

l 
0

7
 

R
o
b
e
rt

 
W

o
o
d
s
id

e
 

   5
. 

D
E

L
IV

E
R

IN
G

 O
U

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

S
 W

H
IL

E
 M

A
IN

T
A

IN
IN

G
 O

U
R

 M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 P
L

A
N

 (
M

T
F

P
) 

 Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

l
e
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

5
.1

 
     

C
o
n
te

n
t 
a

n
d
 P

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 M
T

F
P

  
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
6
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

P
ri
o
ri

ti
s
a
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
s
 (

S
P

P
s
) 

 In
c
lu

d
e
 a

 w
ri

tt
e
n
 e

x
p

la
n
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 b

e
h

in
d
 t
h

e
 p

la
n
 

£
5
2
9

K
 (

8
0
%

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

E
a
rl

y
 2

0
0
6
 

  F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

  

V
a
ri

o
u
s
 -

 
s
e
e
 S

P
P

s
 

 S
te

v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

 
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 h
o

w
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 (

m
o
n
e

y
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

ff
) 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 m

o
v
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 A
s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

z
e
ro

 b
a
s
e

d
 b

u
d
g
e
ti
n

g
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o

 s
h
if
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 l
o
w

 p
ri
o
ri

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
a
re

a
 t
o

 a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

p
ri

o
ri
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 D

e
c
. 
0

6
. 
 U

s
e

d
 t
o
 s

h
a
p
e

 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
 

 F
u
ll 

C
o
u

n
c
il-

w
id

e
 z

e
ro

-b
a
s
e
d
 

b
u
d
g

e
ti
n
g
 (

Z
B

B
) 

w
a
s
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
rg

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 s

u
p
e
rs

e
d

e
d
 

a
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 s

m
a
lle

r 
s
c
a
le

 Z
B

B
 p

ilo
t 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 (

s
e
e
 5

.2
 b

e
lo

w
).

  
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

   A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

 

S
te

v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
/T

im
 

S
a
d

le
r 

 S
te

v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

  

Page 33



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
 o

f 
2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

l
e
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

5
.2

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

th
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 (

S
S

R
) 

In
v
o
lv

e
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

        C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
 D

ir
e
c
tl
y
 l
in

k
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 S

S
R

 t
o
 t
h

e
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
n

in
g
 (

IS
F

P
) 

s
ys

te
m

 &
 M

T
F

P
 

 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 0

7
/0

8
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 g

iv
e

n
 t
o
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 &

 
p
u
b

lis
h
e

d
 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 F

e
b
. 
0
6
 

 S
ta

ff
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g
 o

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
b

u
d
g

e
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

a
n
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 

 C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o

 g
e

n
e
ra

te
 C

o
s
t 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 
Id

e
a
s
, 
s
h

if
ti
n
g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f

ro
m

 l
o
w

e
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
6
 

    O
c
t 
2
0
0
6
 

 A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

T
im

 S
a
d
le

r 
    T

im
 S

a
d
le

r 
 S

te
v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

5
.3

 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 
w

e
 w

ill
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
/ 
jo

in
t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 /
 s

h
a
rp

e
r 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

fo
c
u
s
 

 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

 R
e
le

v
a

n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 t
o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
is

 w
o
rk

 a
s
 a

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

 N
e

w
ly

 a
p
p
o

in
te

d
 D

e
p

u
ty

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
&

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(P

&
C

M
) 

to
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 s

c
o
p
e
 

fo
r 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 &
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 m

o
re

 c
o
s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
 

   A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 2
.5

%
 a

n
n
u
a

l 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
0

5
/0

6
 -

 2
0

0
7
/0

8
, 
a
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 (
A

E
S

) 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 l
is

t 
o
f 

C
o
s
t 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 I
d
e
a
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 c
ir
c
u
la

te
d
 t
o

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

s
ta

ff
. 

 O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t.

 I
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
L
e
is

u
re

 a
n

d
 W

a
s
te

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 
u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 –

 D
C

L
, 

S
O

L
L
, 
J
V

 S
tr

o
n
g
 

a
n
d
 C

le
a
n
a

w
a

y
 (

la
tt

e
r 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 w

it
h
 

a
g
re

e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n

 i
n

 
p
la

c
e
).

 
 T

h
e
 0

5
/0

6
 b

a
c
k
w

a
rd

 l
o

o
k
 A

n
n
u
a

l 
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 2

.5
%

. 
 T

h
e
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 l
o
o
k
 A

E
S

 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

is
 

y
e

a
rs

 2
.5

%
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 T
h
e
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 b

a
c
k
w

a
rd

 l
o
o

k
 A

E
S

 w
ill

 
n
e
e
d

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

2
.5

%
 t
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

  M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

      J
u
ly

 2
0
0

6
 

    A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
6
 

   J
u
ly

 2
0
0

7
 

T
e
rr

y
 S

to
c
k
 

 V
a
ri

o
u
s
 

  D
e
p
u
ty

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
P

&
C

M
 

    S
te

v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

   S
te

v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

  S
te

v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

 Page 34



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
 o

f 
2
1
 

  6
. 
IM

P
R

O
V

IN
G

 B
O

T
H

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
N

D
 E

X
T

E
R

N
A

L
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
  

O
ff

ic
e
r 

6
.1

 
U

p
d
a
te

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
  

In
te

rn
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

b
ra

n
d

in
g

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

c
h
a
n
n
e

ls
, 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 m

e
d
ia

 
 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
e

a
m

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
g
re

e
d
; 
T

e
a
m

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

ro
m

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
0
7

. 
 A

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
lle

d
 

to
g
e
th

e
r.

  

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

N
ik

k
i 
M

a
lin

 

6
.2

 
In

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

ID
E

A
 r

e
p
u

ta
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

D
e
c
id

e
 w

h
e

th
e
r 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 R

e
p
u
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

0
6
 

  In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

N
ik

k
i 
M

a
lin

 

6
.3

 
U

p
d
a
te

 c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 f
o
r 

re
a
c
h
in

g
 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 a
n

d
 h

a
rd

 t
o

 r
e
a
c
h
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 (

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 (

A
F

 
p
4
9
) 

re
p

o
rt

) 
  

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 m
e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 (

2
0

0
6
 

–
 2

0
0
9
) 

 C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
id

e
 s

c
a

le
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
s
 t

o
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 o

u
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

im
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
6
 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

o
n
c
e
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
. 
 

 

N
o

w
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 T

e
a
m

 i
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
, 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

in
g
 n

o
w

 
in

 h
a
n
d

. 
  

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

N
ik

k
i 
M

a
lin

 

Page 35



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

8
 o

f 
2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
  

O
ff

ic
e
r 

6
.4

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
, 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
e
 r

e
a
c
h
 a

ll 
c
it
iz

e
n
s
 w

it
h

in
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
  

A
p
p

o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 E

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

  U
p
d
a
te

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 p

la
n
 

 P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

     

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
in

 
h
a
n
d

, 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
7
. 

 N
o

w
 F

e
b

 0
7
 

 D
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
o

n
 E

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

b
e
in

g
 

in
 p

la
c
e
. 

 N
o

w
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 E

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
, 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e

 
d
ra

ft
 O

D
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
R

a
c
e
 E

q
u
a

lit
y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 

M
a
rc

h
 0

7
 

 P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 E

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

 P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 G

e
n

d
e
r 

E
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

 A
c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

t 
L
e

v
e

l 
3
 o

f 
th

e
 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

  
fo

r 
L
o

c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 0
1
.1

1
.0

6
 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

o
n

w
a
rd

s
 

     E
n
d
 o

f 
F

e
b
 

2
0
0
7

  
 O

c
t 
2
0
0
7
 

  O
c
t 
2
0
0
7
  

  D
e
c
 2

0
0

7
  

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

6
.5

 
D

e
v
is

e
 a

 l
is

t 
o
f 

th
o
s
e
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 

re
a
c
h
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d
 a

 w
a

y
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
m

 
 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

lis
t 

a
n
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
fo

r 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 i
t 

 P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 f
o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h

 g
ro

u
p
s
 

W
ill

 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

6
.6

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
 s

ta
ff

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 V

a
le

  
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
, 

w
o
rk

lo
a
d
, 
re

w
a
rd

 
a
n
d
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 

C
o
n
d

u
c
t 
b
a
s
e

lin
e
 s

ta
ff

 a
tt
it
u
d
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

 C
o
lla

te
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

 C
ir
c
u
la

te
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 

 D
e
v
is

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 

 F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
. 

 A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

 A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

 A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 

c
ro

s
s
-s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 3

1
.1

0
.0

6
 Q

u
ic

k
 

w
in

s
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t.
  

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

N
ik

k
i 
M

a
lin

 

Page 36



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 1
.4

.0
6

 –
 3

1
.1

2
.0

6
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

3
rd

Q
u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
F

in
a
l0

.d
o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
 o

f 
2
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
  

O
ff

ic
e
r 

6
.7

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 

 

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 

 T
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 c

h
e
c
k
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
  

a
n
d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 v

is
io

n
 

W
ill

 b
e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

s
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
. 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7

  
N

ik
k
i 
M

a
lin

 

 Page 37



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
. 

 O
u

r 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i

n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

T
o
p
 a

n
d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

R
e
d

 -
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
B

e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

(n
o

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 B
V

P
Is

) 
Y

e
ll

o
w

 -
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
W

o
rs

e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 0

5
/0

6
 c

o
lu

m
n

: 
a
c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

0
5
/0

6
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
g

t/
 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

5
/0

6
B

Q
 0

5
/0

6
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 H
e
a
lt

h

2
a

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

 f
o

r 
L

o
c
a
l 

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
L

e
v
e
l

T
0

0
1

2
1

1
1

0
F

a
ili

n
g

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
t 

to
 m

is
s
 e

n
d
 0

6
-0

7
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 E
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 

a
g

e
n
d
a
 n

o
w

 r
e
v
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

re
v
is

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
 f

o
r 

0
7
-0

8
.

�
2

2
b

T
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 r

a
c
e
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 c

h
e
c
k
li

s
t 

s
c
o

re
T

7
9

5
3

4
7

B
7
8

4
7

4
7

3
1
.6

0
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
-e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 %

 s
c
o
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
u
rt

h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 6

3
.2

%

�
8
4

8
%

 I
n

v
o

ic
e
s
 p

a
id

 o
n

 t
im

e
T

9
6
.7

1
8
9
.2

4
9
2
.8

8
M

9
2
.9

3
9
4
.8

3
9
2
.7

8
9
3
.9

2
0

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

lie
n
t 

te
a
m

�
9
5
.9

4

9
C

o
u

n
c
il

 t
a
x
 c

o
ll

e
c
te

d
 (

%
)

T
9
8
.4

9
6
.3

9
9
9
.0

8
T

9
8
.5

2
8
.8

1
5
6
.8

6
0

0

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

ye
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
u
te

r 

s
ys

te
m

 c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 

N
/a

9
8
.5

1
0

N
N

D
R

 c
o

ll
e
c
te

d
 (

%
)

T
9
9
.2

6
9
8
.1

9
9
.2

1
T

9
9
.2

3
2
.6

9
6
3
.2

9
0

0
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

ye
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
u
te

r 

s
ys

te
m

 c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 

N
/a

9
9
.2

1
1
a

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 w
o

m
e
n

I
4
2
.5

8
2
2
.2

2
1
4
.2

9
B

1
4

1
4
.2

9
1
5
.3

8
1
5
.3

8
0

J
u
s
t 

a
b
o
v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
2
1

1
1
b

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 f
ro

m
 e

th
n

ic
 

m
in

o
ri

ti
e
s

I
4
.3

3
0

7
.1

4
T

7
7
.6

9
0

0
0

N
o
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 r

e
c
ru

it
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t

o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 d
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r

�
7

1
1
c

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
it

h
 a

 d
is

a
b

il
it

y
I

0
0

7
.6

9
7

7
.6

9
7
.6

9
7
.6

9
0

S
lig

h
tl
y 

a
b
o
v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
7

1
2

D
a
y
s
 s

ic
k
 p

e
r 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
T

8
.3

4
1
0
.9

4
1
0

M
9

6
.1

2
6
.3

6
7
.2

8
0

S
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 i
t 

h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 l
a
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r.

  
T

h
is

 

is
 n

o
t 

u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

s
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 t

e
n
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g

 w
in

te
r 

m
o
n
th

s
.

�
8
.9

3

1
4

E
a
rl

y
 r

e
ti

re
m

e
n

ts
 /

 s
ta

ff
I

0
.1

7
0
.7

8
0

T
0

0
0

0
0

O
n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
0

1
5

Il
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 r

e
ti

re
m

e
n

ts
 /

 s
ta

ff
I

0
.1

0
.3

7
0

T
0

0
0

0
0

O
n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
0

1
6
a

%
 s

ta
ff

 w
it

h
 d

is
a
b

il
it

ie
s

I
3
.8

6
1
.8

6
5
.9

T
5
.9

5
.9

6
6
.1

6
5
.8

0
S

lig
h
tl
y 

b
e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
s
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 d

e
c
la

ri
n
g

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y 

m
e
t 

th
e
 D

D
A

 

d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 l
e
ft

 d
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r

�
5
.9

1
7
a

%
 s

ta
ff

 f
ro

m
 e

th
n

ic
 m

in
o

ri
ti

e
s

I
4
.8

0
.9

2
.5

1
M

2
.4

2
.9

5
2
.1

4
2
.4

7
0

S
lig

h
tl
y 

a
b
o
v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
2
.4

H
o

u
s
in

g

6
4

N
o

 o
f 

v
a
c
a
n

t 
p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
d

w
e
ll

in
g

s
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d

 

in
to

 o
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

T
7
7

7
5

B
6

6
6

4
9

0
R

e
n
t 

D
e
p
o
s
it
 G

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 l
e
ts

 n
o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 a

s
 p

e
r 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
.

�
6

1
8
3
a

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 l

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y
 i

n
 B

&
B

 (
w

e
e
k
s
)

T
1

4
.2

7
3
.2

6
M

4
1
.8

5
3
.9

8
3
.5

0
1
0
 c

lie
n
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

in
 s

a
m

p
le

 f
o
r 

Y
T

D
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
. 

 S
m

a
ll 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 j
u
s
t 

o
n
e
 c

a
s
e
 h

a
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
a
c
t

�
4

1
8
3
b

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 l

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y
 i

n
 H

o
s
te

l 
(w

e
e
k
s
)

T
0

1
7

1
2
.3

2
M

1
2

8
7
.9

5
7
.9

5
0

3
 c

lie
n
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

in
 s

a
m

p
le

 f
o
r 

Y
T

D
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n

�
1
1

2
0
2

N
o

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 s
le

e
p

in
g

 r
o

u
g

h
 o

n
 a

 s
in

g
le

 n
ig

h
t

T
0

5
0

T
1

0
0

0
0

N
/a

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

1

2
0
3

%
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 i

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
m

il
ie

s
 w

it
h

 

d
e
p

e
n

d
a
n

t 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 

a
c
c
o

m
o

d
a
ti

o
n

T
-1

5
.8

4
1
9
.2

7
-1

4
.2

M
-1

0
0

0
0

0
N

/a
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

-1
3

2
1
3

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
  

h
o

m
e
le

s
s
 

fo
r 

w
h

o
m

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
o

lv
e
d

 t
h

e
ir

 s
it

u
a
ti

o
n

.(
p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
)

I
5

1
2

M
2
.5

1
.7

2
3
.0

8
4
.2

2
0

N
/a

2
0
5
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
a
s
e
s
 Y

T
D

 -
 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 
3
4
9
. 

T
h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

5
8
.7

4
%

  
E

x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
in

g
 

to
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile

�
N

/a

2
1
4

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
: 

R
e
p

e
a
t 

h
o

m
e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 

(%
)

I
0
.3

2
4
.2

6
3
.3

3
M

3
.3

3
4
.1

7
4

2
.9

9
0

N
/a

2
 r

e
p
e
a
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 c

a
s
e
s
 Y

T
D

 a
n
d
 6

7
 A

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
s
 (

th
e
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

2
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

e
 o

n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

 

d
u
ty

 t
o
 t

h
e
m

 d
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
).

�
N

/a

P
a
g

e
 1

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
6
-0

7
 Q

2

Page 38



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
. 

 O
u

r 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i

n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

T
o
p
 a

n
d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

R
e
d

 -
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
B

e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

(n
o

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 B
V

P
Is

) 
Y

e
ll

o
w

 -
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
W

o
rs

e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 0

5
/0

6
 c

o
lu

m
n

: 
a
c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

0
5
/0

6
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
g

t/
 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

5
/0

6
B

Q
 0

5
/0

6
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

P
a
g

e
 2

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
6
-0

7
 Q

2

Page 39



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
. 

 O
u

r 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i

n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

T
o
p
 a

n
d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

R
e
d

 -
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
B

e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

(n
o

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 B
V

P
Is

) 
Y

e
ll

o
w

 -
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
W

o
rs

e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 0

5
/0

6
 c

o
lu

m
n

: 
a
c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

0
5
/0

6
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
g

t/
 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

5
/0

6
B

Q
 0

5
/0

6
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

B
e
n

e
fi

ts

7
6
a

B
e
n

e
fi

t 
s
e
c
u

ri
ty

 -
 n

o
 o

f 
v
is

it
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 c

a
s
e
s

T
0

0
2
8
3
.8

4
2
8
4

7
5
.5

8
1
6
3
.1

3
3
0
2
.4

7
0

A
b
o
v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
2
9
6
.6

7
6
b

B
e
n

e
fi

t 
s
e
c
u

ri
ty

 -
 n

o
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
ti

g
a
to

rs
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

c
a
s
e
s

T
0

0
0
.3

2
0
.3

8
0
.3

7
0
.3

7
0
.3

7
0

B
e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 I
f 

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

fa
ll 

th
e
n
 h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e
 m

e
t 

a
s
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 f

ix
e
d
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 j
u
s
t 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
is

 

ta
rg

e
t.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 m

a
in

 o
u
tp

u
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

u
s
t 

ta
k
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

, 
w

ill
 b

e
 

m
e
t.

�
0
.3

8

7
6
c

B
e
n

e
fi

t 
s
e
c
u

ri
ty

 -
 n

o
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
ti

g
a
ti

o
n

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

c
a
s
e
s

T
5
3
.4

2
4
.0

1
1
1
8
.6

5
5
9
.5

3
2
8
.3

1
6
1
.7

6
9
6
.7

4
0

O
n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
5
9
.5

3

7
6
d

B
e
n

e
fi

t 
s
e
c
u

ri
ty

 -
 n

o
 o

f 
p

ro
s
e
c
u

ti
o

n
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

c
a
s
e
s

T
0

0
1
5
.0

2
6
.2

5
2
.4

2
4
.4

6
8
.5

7
0

O
n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
6
.2

5

7
8
a

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 n

e
w

 c
la

im
s

T
2
6
.4

3
9
.1

2
5
.9

6
T

2
8

2
4
.3

3
2
6
.0

3
2
6
.9

8
0

O
n
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 C

a
p
it
a
 p

t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t

o
 c

o
u
n
te

r 
th

e
 

d
o
w

n
ti
m

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y 
c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
e
d
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
s
 

th
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r.

�
2
8

7
8
b

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 o

f 

c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e
s

T
9
.1

1
8
.8

6
.1

7
T

6
.8

6
.6

6
6
.4

6
6
.8

9
0

B
e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 C

a
p
it
a
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 

c
o
u
n
te

r 
th

e
 d

o
w

n
ti
m

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y 
c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 h

a
v
e
 k

e
p
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 b

u
t 

h
a
s
 d

ip
p
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

s
tr

e
tc

h
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 I
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
c
o
v
e
r 

in
 Q

4

�
6
.8

7
9
a

%
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t

T
9
9

9
6
.6

9
9
.6

T
9
9

8
8

8
7
.6

8
7
.4

7
0

B
e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 T
h
e
 t

h
ir
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

a
c
tu

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 i
s
 8

7
.2

%
. 

1
6
 e

rr
o
rs

 w
e
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 -

 6
 p

re
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n
d
 9

 (
C

a
p
it
a
) 

p
o
s
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

 A
c
c
u
ra

c
y 

is
 a

 k
e
y 

fo
c
u
s
 f

o
r 

C
a
p
it
a
 a

n
d
 c

h
e
c
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

�
9
9

7
9
b

(i
)

%
 o

f 
o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
o

v
e
re

d
 a

s
 a

 %
 o

f 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
d

e
e
m

e
d

 r
e
c
o

v
e
ra

b
le

T
7
9
.3

9
5
8
.9

8
1
0
2
.8

5
T

8
7

6
0
.3

9
6
0
.3

9
7
9
.0

2
0

O
n
 t

ra
c
k
.

�
8
7

7
9
b

(i
i)

%
 o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
o

v
e
re

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 

p
e
ri

o
d

I
3
9
.6

9
2
7
.3

5
4
9
.9

7
T

4
2

1
6
.4

5
2
0
.8

5
1
3
.9

1
0

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

p
o
s
t 

A
c
a
d
e
m

y 
c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 

o
v
e
rp

a
ym

e
n
t 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

.
�

4
2

7
9
b

 (
ii
i)

%
 o

f 
o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 o
ff

I
0

0
1
.8

4
6
.6

0
.1

4
.0

3
0
.9

5
0

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

p
o
s
t 

A
c
a
d
e
m

y 
c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 

o
v
e
rp

a
ym

e
n
t 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

.
�

6
.6

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

8
2
a
i

%
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
T

2
0
.8

7
1
4
.2

2
2
2
.1

4
T

2
4

2
1
.8

2
2
.1

2
2
.3

2
0

M
a
k
in

g
 s

te
a
d
y 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
2
5

8
2
a
ii

T
o

ta
l 

to
n

n
a
g

e
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
T

1
5
1
2
6

6
0
8
6

9
0
3
8

M
9
7
0
0

2
3
2
6

4
7
2
4
.1

7
1
4
0

0
1
.9

%
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 S
o
m

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
ri
n
g

 s
it
e
s
 &

 M
in

i 
R

e
c
yc

lin
g

 

C
e
n
tr

e
s
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
, 

to
 b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

4
th

 q
u
a
rt

e
r.

�
1
0
1
5
0

8
2
b

i 
%

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o

m
p

o
s
te

d
T

1
3
.0

5
3
.5

4
1
.7

1
B

4
.5

0
6

6
.4

7
6
.8

6
0

A
b
o
v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

b
o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
ro

w
n
 b

in
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
�

6
.0

0

8
2
b

ii
T

o
ta

l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

m
p

o
s
te

d
T

8
7
7
0

1
8
0
2

6
9
9

B
1
9
0
0

6
4
0
.7

1
3
8
3
.8

4
2
1
9
6

0
7
3
%

 a
b
o
v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 e

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ro
w

n
 B

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

�
2
6
0
0

8
4
a

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o

ll
e
c
te

d
 (

K
g

 p
e
r 

h
e
a
d

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

)
I

3
9
3

4
7
8

3
5
2

T
3
6
5

9
1
.9

1
8
4
.3

2
7
5
.4

0

0
.6

%
 m

a
rg

in
a
lly

 a
b
o
v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
3
6
9

8
4
b

%
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 (

fr
o

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r)

 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
s
te

 

c
o

ll
e
c
te

d
 (

K
G

 p
e
r 

h
e
a
d

 p
e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
)

T
-3

.7
4

1
.3

1
1
.0

9
M

3
.7

0
2
.8

4
.5

2
.8

7
0

�
1
.2

0

8
6

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

w
a
s
te

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 (
£
) 

T
3
9
.4

8
5
2
.4

2
4
5
.9

M
4
2
.5

6
0

0
0

0
N

/A
A

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

4
3
.2

4

P
a
g

e
 3

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
6
-0

7
 Q

2

Page 40



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
. 

 O
u

r 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i

n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

T
o
p
 a

n
d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

R
e
d

 -
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
B

e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

(n
o

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 B
V

P
Is

) 
Y

e
ll

o
w

 -
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
W

o
rs

e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 0

5
/0

6
 c

o
lu

m
n

: 
a
c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

0
5
/0

6
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
g

t/
 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

5
/0

6
B

Q
 0

5
/0

6
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

9
1
a

T
h

e
 %

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 s

e
rv

e
d

 b
y
 a

 k
e
rs

id
e
 

c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
T

1
0
0

9
3
.5

9
8
.6

M
9
9

9
8
.6

9
8
.3

9
8
.3

0
�

9
9

9
1
b

T
h

e
 %

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 s

e
rv

e
d

 b
y
 a

 k
e
rb

s
id

e
 

c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
t 

le
a
s
t 

2
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
T

1
0
0

9
0
.1

9
8
.6

M
9
9

9
8
.6

9
8
.3

9
8
.3

0
�

9
9

P
a
g

e
 4

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
6
-0

7
 Q

2

Page 41



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
. 

 O
u

r 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i

n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

T
o
p
 a

n
d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

R
e
d

 -
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
B

e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

(n
o

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 B
V

P
Is

) 
Y

e
ll

o
w

 -
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
W

o
rs

e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 0

5
/0

6
 c

o
lu

m
n

: 
a
c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

0
5
/0

6
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
g

t/
 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

5
/0

6
B

Q
 0

5
/0

6
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

1
6
6
a

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 c

h
e
c
k
li

s
t 

(%
)

T
1
0
0

8
5

6
6
.2

5
B

8
3

6
6
.2

5
6
6
.2

5
6
6
.2

5
0

S
e
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 

in
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
  

4
.2

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
a
rt

e
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

�
9
3

1
9
9
a

C
le

a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n

t 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 (

%
)

T
8
.8

2
1

1
2

M
1
5

1
6

0
0

0
N

/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

9
3

1
9
9
b

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 w

it
h

 

u
n

a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 l

e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

g
ra

ff
it

i 
v
is

ib
le

 %
T

1
6

1
T

2
0

1
9

0
0

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

2

1
9
9
c

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n

t 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 w

it
h

 

u
n

a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 l

e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

fl
y
 p

o
s
ti

n
g

s
 v

is
ib

le
 %

T
0

2
0

T
1

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

1

1
9
9
d

Y
e
a
r 

o
n

 y
e
a
r 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 /

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it

h
 f

ly
 t

ip
p

in
g

 

(g
ra

d
e
d

 1
 v

e
ry

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 -

 4
 p

o
o

r)

T
0

0
4

1
0

0
0

0
N

/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

1

2
1
6
a

C
o

n
a
tm

in
a
te

d
 l

a
n

d
 -

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
it

e
s
 o

f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

I
1
4
2
8

3
2
5

1
0
7
8

M
1
0
6
4

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y 
a
 f

a
c
to

r 
o
u
ts

id
e
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
–
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
w

 s
it
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 a
ri
s
e
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 s
e
e
k
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

ys
te

m
. 

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

is
 s

e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e

N
/a

1
0
5
0

2
1
6
b

N
u

m
b

e
r 

s
it

e
s
 w

h
e
re

 r
e
m

e
d

ia
ti

o
n

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
s
 %

 o
f 

's
it

e
s
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

'
I

9
1

1
.3

2
M

1
.3

3
0

0
0

0
N

/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
o
s
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y 
fa

c
to

rs
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
–
 w

h
ic

h
 s

it
e
s
 a

ri
s
e
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 s
e
e
k
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

ys
te

m
, 

a
n
d
 a

t 
w

h
a
t 

s
p
e
e
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 a

n
y 

c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 l
a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
.

N
/a

1
.3

5

2
1
7

%
 p

o
ll

u
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

in
s
ta

ll
a
ti

o
n

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 t
im

e
T

1
0
0

8
3

9
7

M
9
5

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

. 
D

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
fr

a
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
e
r 

ye
a
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 V

a
le

, 
n
o
 

p
o
llu

ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 d
u
e
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
c
o
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 1

0
0
%

N
/a

9
5

2
1
8
a

%
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
s
 o

f 
a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e
d

 v
e
h

ic
le

s
 

in
v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

4
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
n

o
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

T
9
6
.6

4
7
3

9
5

M
9
5

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

N
/A

N
/a

0
.9

5

2
1
8
b

%
 o

f 
a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e
d

 v
e
h

ic
le

s
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d

 w
it

h
in

 2
4
 

h
o

u
rs

 (
o

f 
le

g
a
ll

y
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o

)
T

9
5

6
1
.1

1
6
1
.1

1
B

0
.9

7
3
.5

3
2
6
.3

2
4
2
.8

6
0

N
/A

N
/a

0
.9

P
la

n
n

in
g

1
0
6

%
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e
s
 o

n
 b

ro
w

n
 f

ie
ld

 s
it

e
s

T
9
6
.4

7
6
2
.4

3
9
5
.2

9
M

6
0

0
8
2

0
0

N
/A

6
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

6
0

1
0
9
a

%
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 1

3
 w

e
e
k
s

T
7
4
.9

5
7
.0

8
5
0

B
6
0

6
4
.2

8
7
2
.7

2
7
9
.3

1
0

M
e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 M

a
jo

r 
a
n
d
 M

in
o
r 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
, 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
  

M
a
jo

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 I
n
 t

h
is

 l
a
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

w
a
s
 1

0
0
%

 o
f 

M
a
jo

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
3
 w

e
e
k
s
.

�
6
0

1
0
9
b

%
 o

f 
m

in
o

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 8

 w
e
e
k
s

T
8
1
.0

7
6
9

7
1
.8

M
6
5

5
1
.0

4
6
6
.6

6
6
9
.9

6
0

T
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

ta
te

d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 i
t 

h
a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

re
g

is
te

ri
n
g

 t
e
a
m

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
.

�
6
5

1
0
9
c

%
 o

f 
o

th
e
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li

c
a
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 8

 w
e
e
k
s

T
9
1
.3

9
8
3
.3

7
8
6
.6

6
M

8
0

6
5
.9

3
7
8
.5

8
8
2
.2

6
0

T
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

ta
te

d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 i
t 

h
a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

re
g

is
te

ri
n
g

 t
e
a
m

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
. 

S
im

ila
r 

to
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

th
e
 3

rd
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
y 

1
2
%

 a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

ig
u
re

 h
a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t.

�
8
0

P
a
g

e
 5

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
6
-0

7
 Q

2

Page 42



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
. 

 O
u

r 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i

n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

T
o
p
 a

n
d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

R
e
d

 -
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
B

e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

(n
o

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 B
V

P
Is

) 
Y

e
ll

o
w

 -
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
W

o
rs

e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 0

5
/0

6
 c

o
lu

m
n

: 
a
c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

0
5
/0

6
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
g

t/
 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

5
/0

6
B

Q
 0

5
/0

6
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

2
0
0
a

D
id

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 s
u

b
m

it
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 b

y
 2

8
.3

.2
0
0
5
 (

n
e
w

 2
0
0
5
-6

)
T

0
0

y
e
s

y
e
s

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

y
e
s

2
0
0
b

H
a
s
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 m

e
t 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 m

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 (

n
e
w

 f
o

r 
2
0
0
5
-6

)
T

0
0

y
e
s

y
e
s

0
0

0
0

N
/A

6
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

y
e
s

P
a
g

e
 6

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
6
-0

7
 Q

2

Page 43



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
. 

 O
u

r 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i

n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

T
o
p
 a

n
d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

R
e
d

 -
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
B

e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

(n
o

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 B
V

P
Is

) 
Y

e
ll

o
w

 -
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
W

o
rs

e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 0

5
/0

6
 c

o
lu

m
n

: 
a
c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

0
5
/0

6
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
g

t/
 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

5
/0

6
B

Q
 0

5
/0

6
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

2
0
0
c

D
id

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

u
b

li
s
h

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 r
e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 l

a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

I
0

0
y
e
s

y
e
s

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

y
e
s

2
0
4

%
 a

p
p

e
a
ls

 a
ll

o
w

e
d

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s
 

d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 r

e
fu

s
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
T

0
0

2
5

3
5

0
1
9
.0

4
0

0
N

/A

6
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

3
5

2
0
5

Q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
e
c
k
li

s
t 

(%
)

T
9
4
.5

8
3
.3

8
3

B
9
4

0
8
8
.8

8
0

0
N

/A
6
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

9
4

2
1
9
a

T
o

ta
l 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
s

I
0

0
5
2

5
2

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

5
2

2
1
9
b

%
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

 a
n

 u
p

 t
o

 d
a
te

 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
a
p

p
ra

is
a
l

I
3
1
.8

1
0

0
B

5
0

0
0

0
N

/A
W

o
rk

 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

c
o
re

N
/a

1
5

2
1
9
c

%
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

 p
u

b
li

s
h

e
d

 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

I
7
.7

0
0

B
5

0
0

0
0

N
/A

N
o
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
2
0
0
7
/0

8
N

/a
1
5

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

1
2
6

D
o

m
e
s
ti

c
 b

u
rg

la
ri

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
I

6
.4

1
3
.7

5
.9

4
T

5
.7

6
1
.3

2
.4

1
3
.4

6
0

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o
lla

te
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 b

e
h
a
lf
 b

y 
T

h
a
m

e
s
 V

a
lle

y 

P
o
lic

e
�

5
.5

9

1
2
7
a

V
io

le
n

t 
c
ri

m
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
I

1
2
.4

2
2
.8

1
2
.3

9
T

1
2
.0

2
3
.9

8
7
.9

5
1
1
.8

2
0

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o
lla

te
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 b

e
h
a
lf
 b

y 
T

h
a
m

e
s
 V

a
lle

y 

P
o
lic

e
. 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
n
o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 a

s
s
a
u
lt
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 b

y 

F
P

N
s
 (

F
ix

e
d
 P

e
n
a
lt
y 

N
o
ti
c
e
) 

w
h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 t

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
w

 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
y 

w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
.

�
1
1
.6

6

1
2
7
b

R
o

b
b

e
ri

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
I

0
.3

1
.3

0
.1

6
T

0
.1

5
0
.0

9
0
.1

6
0
.2

2
0

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o
lla

te
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 b

e
h
a
lf
 b

y 
T

h
a
m

e
s
 V

a
lle

y 

P
o
lic

e
. 

A
 f

a
ll 

in
 t

h
e
 b

u
rg

la
ry

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ft

 f
ro

m
 v

e
h
ic

le
 r

a
te

s
 i
s
 u

s
u
a
lly

 

a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 b

y 
a
 r

is
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

 a
n
d
 a

lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t

h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 

ro
b
b
e
ry

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll,

 t
h
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 b

u
rg

la
ry

 w
o
u
ld

 g
o
 s

o
m

e
 w

a
y 

to
 e

x
p
la

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
 

fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

0
.2

2
 f

o
r 

B
V

P
I 

1
2
7
b
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 h
a
s
 s

u
g

g
e
s
te

d
 

th
a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 a

 d
e
fi
n
it
e
ly

 a
 s

tr
o
n
g

 p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
s
 s

tr
e
e
t 

ro
b
b
e
ry

 h
a
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 

re
la

ti
v
e
ly

 e
a
s
y 

a
n
d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
.

�
0
.1

5

1
2
8

V
e
h

ic
le

 c
ri

m
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
I

7
.3

1
4
.6

5
.8

8
T

5
.7

1
1
.2

2
2
.5

6
3
.7

2
0

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o
lla

te
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 b

e
h
a
lf
 b

y 
T

h
a
m

e
s
 V

a
lle

y 

P
o
lic

e
�

5
.5

3

1
5
6

%
 o

f 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s
 o

p
e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

li
c
 -

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

T
8
4
.7

4
4
.6

6
8
3

M
1
0
0

8
3

9
2

1
0
0

0
A

ll 
b
u
ild

in
g

s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

�
1
0
0

1
7
4

N
o

 o
f 

ra
c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

I
0

0
0
.8

6
0
.8

6
0

0
.8

6
0
.8

6
0

1
 i
n
c
id

e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 Y

T
D

�
0
.8

6

1
7
5

%
 o

f 
ra

c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
a
t 

re
s
u

lt
e
d

 i
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti

o
n

T
1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

T
1
0
0

N
/A

1
0
0

1
0
0

0
N

/A
N

/a
1
0
0

2
2
5

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

d
o

m
e
s
ti

c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

I
0

0
4
5
.5

5
4
.5

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

8
0

2
2
6
a

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a
n

c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 t
o

ta
l 

s
p

e
n

t 
£

I
0

0
2
0
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
N

/A
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

2
0
0
0
0
0

2
2
6
b

C
S

L
 Q

u
a
li

ty
 M

a
rk

 %
 m

o
n

ie
s
 s

p
e
n

t 
o

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s

I
0

0
7
5

7
5

7
5

0
0

0
N

/A
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g

N
/a

7
5

P
a
g

e
 7

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
6
-0

7
 Q

2

Page 44



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
. 

 O
u

r 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i

n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

T
o
p
 a

n
d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

R
e
d

 -
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
B

e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

(n
o

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 B
V

P
Is

) 
Y

e
ll

o
w

 -
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
W

o
rs

e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 0

5
/0

6
 c

o
lu

m
n

: 
a
c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

0
5
/0

6
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
g

t/
 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

5
/0

6
B

Q
 0

5
/0

6
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
5
/0

6

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

2
2
6
c

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a
n

c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 d
ir

e
c
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 £
I

0
0

4
5
0
0
0
0

4
5
0
0
0
0

4
5
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
N

/A
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g

�
4
5
0
0
0
0

P
a
g

e
 8

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
6
-0

7
 Q

2

Page 45



Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 -
 T

h
ir

d
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0

6
/0

7
 1

.4
.0

6
 -

 3
1

.1
2

.0
6

L
o

c
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 (
c

u
m

m
u

la
ti

v
e

 y
e

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

)

L
P

I
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
0
6
/7

A
c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

L
I 
H

2
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
u

n
it
s
 o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 /
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
1

0
0

0
2

1
 (

R
e

n
te

d
)

3
0

 (
2

4
 r

e
n

te
d

 -
 

6
 S

h
a

re
d

 

O
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
)

T
o

 d
a

te
 t

h
is

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 m

a
jo

r 
re

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
s
 o

v
e

ra
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 w
h

e
re

 w
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 1

3
1

 u
n

it
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

6
0

 u
n

it
s
, 

m
a

n
y 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

e
 o

n
 s

tr
e

a
m

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

h
a

lf
 o

f 
2

0
0

6
/0

7
 F

Y
. 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 4
8

 u
n

it
s
 o

f 

n
e

w
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y 

ye
a

r 
e

n
d

. 
A

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t 
a

 t
w

o
 y

e
a

r 
(2

0
0

5
/0

6
-

2
0

0
6

/0
7

) 
to

ta
l 
o

f 
1

7
9

 u
n

it
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
1

6
0

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 t

w
o

 

ye
a

r 
to

ta
l 
b

e
tt

e
r 

re
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 c
yc

le
 o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 b

y 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.

L
I 
H

2
a

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
1

0
6

 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

9
0

0
2

1
2

1

L
P

I 
T

P
5

%
 o

f 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 o

n
 s

it
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

la
n

 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

o
lic

y 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

s
 w

h
ic

h
 f

a
ll 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

3
5

%
N

/a
1

0
0

%
N

/a

H
a

lf
 y

e
a

r 
re

p
o

rt
in

g

L
P

I 
T

P
6

%
 o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 

c
a

te
g

o
ry

6
0

%
N

/a
1

0
0

%
N

/a
H

a
lf
 y

e
a

r 
re

p
o

rt
in

g

L
P

I 
T

P
7

T
o

ta
l 
h

o
u

s
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 a

 %
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

P
la

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
1

3
4

%
N

/a
9

2
%

N
/a

H
a

lf
 y

e
a

r 
re

p
o

rt
in

g

E
H

2
%

 o
f 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

8
0

%
N

/a
N

/a
N

/a

C
a

n
n

o
t 

re
p

o
rt

 a
t 

p
re

s
e

n
t 

- 
d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
p

o
rt

 b
u

t 
is

 b
e

in
g

 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

a
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

0
6

. 
O

th
e

r 
C

o
u

n
c
ils

 a
re

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
,a

 

n
e

w
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

ri
a

lle
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 /
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7

T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 m

o
d

e
rn

is
e

 a
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
S

1
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 a

t 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t 

W
a

n
ta

g
e

1
5

,0
0

0
4

2
9

2
8

0
1

4
1

1
1

1
9

C
S

2
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 a

t 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t 

A
b

in
g

d
o

n
4

1
,0

0
0

1
4

5
7

7
2

7
4

9
7

4
2

0
3

1

C
S

3
%

 o
f 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 o

n
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y 

in
 W

a
n

ta
g

e
 L

o
c
a

l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

o
in

t
9

7
%

9
6

%
9

6
%

9
8

%

C
S

4
%

 o
f 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 o

n
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y 

in
 A

b
in

g
d

o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

o
in

t 
a

n
d

 L
S

P
2

 
9

7
%

9
8

%
9

7
%

9
9

%

C
S

5
%

 o
f 

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 W
a

n
ta

g
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t

9
6

%
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%

C
S

6
%

 o
f 

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 A
b

in
g

d
o

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t

9
6

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

%

C
S

7
%

 o
f 

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
it
h

 W
a

n
ta

g
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t

8
5

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

%

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 6
 S

L
A

's
 o

v
e

r 
1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
 e

a
c
h

 a
re

a
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 t
w

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

s
u

rv
e

ys
 a

t 
p

re
s
e

n
t 

9
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
  

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 1

0
0

%
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

C
S

8
%

 o
f 

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
it
h

 A
b

in
g

d
o

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t 

a
n

d
 L

S
P

2
8

5
%

1
0

0
.0

0
%

1
0

0
.0

0
%

1
0

0
%

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 6
 S

L
A

's
 o

v
e

r 
1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
 e

a
c
h

 a
re

a
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 t
w

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

s
u

rv
e

ys
 a

t 
p

re
s
e

n
t 

9
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
  

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 1

0
0

%
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

C
S

9
%

 o
f 

c
a

lls
 t

o
 b

e
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

0
 s

e
c
o

n
d

s
9

0
%

8
4

.3
0

%
8

2
.0

0
%

8
6

%
C

a
ll 

v
o

lu
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 r
is

e
n

 s
in

c
e

 J
u

ly
 a

 t
re

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 3

rd
 q

u
a

rt
ile

C
S

1
0

%
 o

f 
c
a

lls
 u

n
a

n
s
w

e
re

d
4

%
2

.0
0

%
2

.0
0

%
2

%
T

h
e

 s
tr

o
n

g
, 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e

C
S

1
1

%
 o

f 
m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 l
e

ft
 b

y 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

to
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 

a
n

 i
n

it
ia

l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 w
it
h

in
 o

n
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y

9
5

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

%

C
S

1
2

%
 o

f 
e

-m
a

ils
 t

o
 b

e
 a

u
to

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 w

it
h

in
 o

n
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

d
a

y
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

%

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 f

a
c

il
it

a
te

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
o

u
s

in
g

  

C
re

a
ti

n
g

 a
 c

le
a

n
e

r,
 g

re
e

n
e

r,
 s

a
fe

r 
a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

Page 46



Page 47



Q
1
 

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
3
 

T
a
rg

e
t

S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

N
o

. 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 

d
a

ys
 

s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
/m

t

h

A
v
.d

a
ys

 

lo
s
t 

p
e

r 

F
T

E
/m

th

N
o

. 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 

d
a

ys
 

s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
/ 

m
th

A
v
.d

a
ys

 

lo
s
t 

p
e

r 

F
T

E
/m

th

N
o

. 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

 

d
a

ys
 

s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
/ 

m
th

A
v
.d

a
ys

 

lo
s
t 

p
e

r 

F
T

E
/m

th

N
o

. 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 

d
a

ys
 

s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
/ 

m
th

A
v
.d

a
ys

 

lo
s
t 

p
e

r 

F
T

E
/m

th

T
o

ta
l 

n
o

. 

s
ic

k
 d

a
y
s

 

2
0

0
6

-0
7

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

 

n
o

 o
f 

w
k

g
 

d
a

y
s

 l
o

s
t 

p
e

r 

F
T

E

A
u

d
it

2
.0

0
0

.5
0

0
0

1
.8

3
0

.6
1

1
1

.5
3

.8
3

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
2

.6
7

0
.1

2
3

7
.8

3
1

.5
2

2
7

.8
3

1
.1

2
2

0
5

8
.2

3

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

&
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t
4

.1
7

0
.1

4
1

.5
0

.0
4

1
8

0
.4

7
7

1
1

.8
6

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
2

.0
0

0
.1

3
7

.3
3

0
.4

8
7

.6
7

0
.5

1
5

1
3

.3
8

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

1
0

.3
3

0
.3

8
6

.0
0

0
.2

8
2

1
.1

7
1

.0
4

1
1

2
.5

5
.5

4

F
in

a
n

c
e

4
4

.5
0

1
.0

3
1

8
.3

3
1

.1
9

5
.6

7
0

.3
6

2
0

5
.5

1
2

.9
2

H
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
a

fe
ty

3
1

.8
3

0
.8

6
1

.3
3

0
.0

5
3

7
.1

7
1

.3
4

1
5

2
5

.4
7

L
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
1

.6
7

0
.3

3
5

0
.9

8

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
1

4
.3

3
0

.3
0

2
5

.8
3

0
.5

3
3

6
.3

3
0

.7
1

2
2

9
.5

4
.4

9

P
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

4
1

.3
3

0
.8

9
4

6
.8

3
0

.9
8

4
8

.8
3

1
.1

3
4

1
1

9
.5

1

P
ro

p
e

rt
y 

&
 E

s
ta

te
s

1
.0

0
0

.1
3

0
.6

7
0

.0
8

1
.3

3
0

.1
7

9
1

.1
3

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e

c
to

rs
 O

ff
ic

e
s

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.3

3
0

.0
5

0
.5

0
.0

7
2

.5
0

.3
6

T
o

ta
ls

1
5

4
.1

6
0

.5
5

1
4

5
.9

8
0

.5
6

2
0

8
0

.8
0

1
4

6
5

.5
5

.6
5

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 f

ig
u

re
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

-2
0

0
6

2
3

5
.8

3
0

.6
8

1
7

0
.6

6
0

.5
1

2
2

3
.5

0
.6

7
2

8
7

.1
7

0
.8

9

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IC
K

N
E

S
S

 2
0

0
6

-0
7

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

O
v

e
ra

ll
 s

ic
k

n
e

s
s

 i
s

 u
p

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

la
s

t 
y
e

a
r 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
v

e
ra

g
e

 d
a

y
s

 l
o

s
t 

p
e

r 
ft

e
 p

e
r 

m
o

n
th

. 
 H

o
w

e
v

e
r,

 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
a

y
s

 s
ic

k
n

e
s

s
 i

s
 d

o
w

n
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

  
T

h
e

 r
e

a
s

o
n

 t
h

e
 f

te
 i

s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

e
v

e
n

 t
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 s

ic
k

n
e

s
s

 i
s

 l
o

w
e

r 
is

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 l
e

s
s

 

s
ta

ff
 f

te
 t

h
is

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
ta

ff
 f

te
 i

n
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

A
n

n
u

a
l 

T
o

ta
ls

Page 48



Q
1
 

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
3
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
v
. 

N
o

. 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r

/ 
m

th
 (

%
)

A
v
. 

N
o

. 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s
 l
e

ft
/m

th

A
v
. 

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r

/ 
m

th

A
v
. 

N
o

. 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r/
 

m
th

A
v
. 

N
o

. 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r/
 

m
th

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

 

L
e

a
v

e
rs

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

 

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r

A
u

d
it

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
0

0
.0

0
%

0
0

.0
0

%

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
%

0
0

.0
0

%
0

0
.0

0
%

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

&
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.3
3

0
.7

5
%

0
.3

3
0

.6
9

%
2

4
.1

7
%

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
0

.3
3

1
.7

5
0

0
.0

0
%

0
0

.0
0

%
1

5
.5

6
%

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

0
.3

3
1

.1
9

0
.3

3
1

.5
0

%
0

0
.0

0
%

2
9

.5
2

%

F
in

a
n

c
e

1
.3

3
2

.8
5

0
.6

7
4

.1
9

%
0

0
.0

0
%

6
3

5
.2

9
%

H
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
a

fe
ty

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
0

0
.0

0
%

0
0

.0
0

%

L
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.3
3

4
.7

1
%

0
.3

3
5

.5
0

%
2

3
3

.3
3

%

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
0

.6
7

1
.1

9
0

.6
7

1
.1

8
%

0
0

.0
0

%
4

6
.7

8
%

P
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.3

3
0

.6
2

%
2

4
.0

8
%

7
1

4
.2

9
%

P
ro

p
e

rt
y 

&
 E

s
ta

te
s

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
0

0
.0

0
%

0
0

.0
0

%

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e

c
to

rs
 O

ff
ic

e
s

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
0

0
.0

0
%

0
0

.0
0

%

T
o

ta
ls

2
.6

6
0

.8
4

2
.6

6
0

.9
0

%
2

.6
6

0
.9

0
%

2
4

8
.1

6
%

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 f

ig
u

re
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

-2
0

0
6

1
.9

9
0

.5
8

%
4

.3
2

1
.2

8
%

3
0

.9
0

%
5

1
.5

5
%

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
is

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

h
is

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

la
s
t 

ye
a

r.
  

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 T

U
R

N
O

V
E

R
 2

0
0

6
-2

0
0

7

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

Page 49



Corporate Governance Report to Executive 

2006/07 Quarter 3 - to the end of December 2006 
Financial Commentary 
 
The following comments are provided to explain the attached high level budget monitoring 
figures. 
 

SUMMARY 
 
This quarter we have introduced a new report to improve the effectiveness of our budget 
monitoring.  The attached report (in landscape format) headed 'NEW' provides predicted outturn 
variances for each service area.  In addition, unique to the third quarter report only, the 'latest 
budgets' are adjusted to reflect any service and budget change forms (SBCFs) which have been 
submitted as part of the 2007 budget-setting process. 
 
The previous style of report (in portrait format), also attached, headed 'OLD' is provided for 
continuity and to enable comparison.  The attached 'OLD' Corporate Governance report for the 
third quarter indicates an unadjusted overspend of £1.56m (19%), which reflects expenditure and 
income transactions to the end of December as recorded on the financial management system 
('fms').  The overspend is primarily due to an apparent £2.56m variance on benefit payments.   
 

Several adjustments have been made to omit the 'spurious variances' caused by timing 
differences of significant transactions, in order to provide a more accurate reflection of the 
budgetary position.  This includes the removal of £1.85m benefit payments which were printed 
and processed on the fms ahead of the due date to allow the benefits computer system to be 
turned off when the new system was introduced.  The timing adjustments reduce the real 
variance to a £635k (7.9%) underspend on the 'OLD' report.  This is the extent of the budget 
analysis on the 'OLD' report. 
 
The 'NEW' report uses the same data as the old report and incorporates the above analysis.  
However, it goes on to reflect current SBCFs and predicted outturns in order to provide a more 
accurate view on the Council's performance against budget.  The £0.6m (7.9%) underspend 
variance has been adjusted for any SBCFs submitted as part of the February 2007 budget-
setting process.  These adjustments have reduced the variance to a £181k (2.2%) underspend.  
Finally, budget holders have predicted their year-end outturns, which have been compared to the 
SBCF-adjusted budgets, resulting in a £13k overspend (0.1%). 
 
The 'NEW' report represents a significant improvement in the Council's budget monitoring 
arrangements.  It depends on the accuracy of officers' predictions, which will improve with 
practice over time.  Whilst this quarter's impressively low predicted variance is welcome, it has a 
significant margin for error.  We will repeat the process on a monthly basis and compare the 
predictions with the actual outturn after the accounts are closed down, to identify any process 
weaknesses that require correcting. 
 
Explanations of the main items are provided below.  Detailed explanations should be discussed 
in the monthly performance management meetings held by Portfolio Holders and 
Deputy/Assistant Directors.  Any significant variances which will impact the year-end position 
should continue to be reported by the appropriate Portfolio Holder to the Executive meeting.   
 

EXPLANATIONS 
 

The largest area of variance, spanning both expenditure and income is Benefits.  However, the 
net effect of the adjusted variances for benefit payments and benefit subsidy produces a £199k 
(1%) overspend.  On an annual budget of almost £18m this is considered reasonable. 
 
The £225k (4%) underspend on Salaries has been corrected by SBCFs submitted during the 
February 2007 budget-setting process (not shown in the 'OLD' report).   
 

The £106k (27%) underspend on Repairs and Maintenance is mostly due to the timing of 
expenditure against an inaccurate budget profile.  As indicated on the 'NEW' report, the Estates 
service area (which is the corporate custodian of most of the maintenance budgets) is likely to 
outturn close to adjusted budget.  
 

The £91k (20%) underspend on Grants is due to the delay between the Council 
approving/committing grants and the recipient organisations claiming them.   
 

Page 50



The cumulative net underspend on Other Expenditure has been reduced by several 
adjustments to recognise late payments of Assisted Travel, waste contract and pension 
backfunding.  The new free bus pass scheme introduced in April has been more successful than 
expected, resulting in much higher numbers of journeys than originally estimated.  As the Council 
reimburses the bus companies for free journeys the cost of the scheme is higher than budgeted.  
The predicted outturn overspend of £466k (91%) has been addressed in the February 2007 
budget-setting process.   
 

The over-achievement of the temporary accommodation income budget is matched by an 
overspend in its expenditure budget.  The over-achievement of both the Planning and Building 
Control income budgets has been addressed in the February 2007 budget-setting process.  
 
The £287k underspend variance on Internal Recharges represents unbudgeted income 
received by the DSO since it took on the cleaning of public conveniences, as well as other 
recharges by one Council department to another.  This is offset by an equivalent overspend 
within 'Other Expenditure'.   
 
 

Page 51



Corporate Governance financial report OLD report format
All figures are as at end December 2006

Actuals include Commitments

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               Original 

budget

Latest budget Profiled 

budget

Actuals Variance £ Variance % Adjust-

ments

Adjusted 

Variance £

Adj 

Variance %

Expenditure

Salaries 8,002,660 7,303,930 5,534,757 5,303,877 (230,880) (4.2%) (230,880) (4.2%)

Leisure salaries 287,700 287,700 215,775 221,608 5,833 9.3% 5,833 9.3%

8,290,360 7,591,630 5,750,532 5,525,485 (225,047) (3.9%) 0 (225,047) (3.9%)

Overtime 86,350 84,080 62,490 85,136 22,646 36.2% 22,646 36.2%

Temporary & Agency staff 131,290 292,790 238,628 266,896 28,268 11.8% 28,268 11.8%

Training 91,890 81,890 61,418 61,436 18 0.0% 18 0.0%

Repairs & Maintenance 500,000 539,220 393,365 286,475 (106,890) (27.2%) (106,890) (27.2%)

Temporary accommodation costs 150,000 150,000 112,500 161,337 48,837 43.4% 48,837 43.4%

Partnership grants 218,270 388,600 316,895 274,524 (42,371) (13.4%) (42,371) (13.4%)

Grants to Organisations 273,300 273,300 11,650 16,605 4,955 42.5% 4,955

Discrete Grants 265,590 197,210 119,273 (14,120) (133,393) (111.8%) 80,000 (53,393) (44.8%)

757,160 859,110 447,818 277,009 (170,809) (38.1%) 80,000 (90,809) (20.3%)

Benefit payments 17,849,050 17,849,050 12,377,525 14,942,832 2,565,307 20.7% (1,856,299) 709,008 5.7%

Other expenditure 12,143,630 11,991,170 8,352,251 7,936,646 (415,605) (5.0%) 267,700 (147,905) (1.8%)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE excluding 

support and capital 39,999,730 39,438,940 27,796,527 29,543,252 1,746,725 6.3% (1,508,599) 238,126 0.9%

Capita Contract/Ridgeway SSP     --

Accountancy SSP 0     -- 0

Benefit Fraud SSP 2,546 2,546     -- 2,546

R & B Client SSP 894,930 597,898 466,362 (131,536) (22.0%) 105,000 (26,536) (4.4%)

Payroll (Capita) 107 107     -- 107

Ridgeway SSP Total 0 894,930 597,898 469,015 (128,883) (21.6%) 105,000 (23,883) (4.0%)

Income

Car Parking (811,420) (811,420) (620,626) (606,699) 13,927 2.2% 13,927 2.2%

Benefit Subsidy (17,657,020) (17,657,020) (13,242,765) (13,752,672) (509,907) (3.9%) (509,907) (3.9%)

Temporary accommodation (270,000) (270,000) (202,500) (256,357) (53,857) (26.6%) (53,857) (26.6%)

Planning (532,400) (532,400) (399,300) (479,980) (80,680) (20.2%) (80,680) (20.2%)

Building Control (545,000) (545,000) (408,750) (461,258) (52,508) (12.8%) (52,508) (12.8%)

Leisure (401,280) (399,280) (297,685) (306,174) (8,489) (2.9%) (8,489) (2.9%)

0     --

Investment income (1,152,900) (1,152,900) (882,200) (354,000) 528,200 59.9% (553,163) (24,963) (2.8%)

Investment Property Income (1,919,600) (1,919,600) (1,439,700) (1,146,186) 293,514 20.4% (239,289) 54,225 3.8%

Other income (4,517,000) (4,827,320) (2,806,510) (2,769,824) 36,686 1.3% 36,686 1.3%

TOTAL INCOME excluding 

support and capital (27,806,620) (28,114,940) (20,300,036) (20,133,150) 166,886 0.8% (792,452) (625,566) (3.1%)

NET POSITION excluding support 

and capital 12,193,110 12,218,930 8,094,389 9,879,117 1,784,728 22.0% (2,196,051) (411,323) (5.1%)

Support Services expenditure 6,213,630 6,199,630 37,650 93,281 55,631 147.8% 55,631 147.8%

Capital Charges expenditure 4,353,400 4,353,400 0     -- 0

Internal Recharges (63,000) (63,000) (47,250) (335,242) (287,992) (609.5%) (287,992) (609.5%)

Support Services income (6,167,030) (6,167,030) 0     -- 0

Recharge to Capital income (99,500) (99,500) 0     -- 0

Other recharges (242,940) (242,940) (24,375) (16,625) 7,750 31.8% 7,750

NET POSITION including support 

& capital 16,187,670 16,199,490 8,060,414 9,620,531 1,560,117 19.4% (2,196,051) (635,934) (7.9%)

Contingency (399,080) (410,900) 0 0 0     -- 0

Reverse Agresso capital charges (4,353,400) (4,353,400) 0 0 0

Original capital charges 3,742,900 3,742,900 0 0 0

Total 15,178,090 15,178,090 8,060,414 9,620,531 1,560,117 19.4% (2,196,051) (635,934) (7.9%)

Reversal of capital financing charges (3,319,900) (3,319,900) 0 0

Net Usage of Funds (404,374) (404,374)

Contribution from Balances (181,785) (181,785)

Budget Requirement 11,272,031 11,272,031 8,060,414 9,620,531 1,560,117 19.4% (2,196,051) (635,934) (7.9%)

Page 52



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 r
e
p

o
rt

N
E

W
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

rm
a
t

A
ll
 f

ig
u

re
s
 a

re
 a

s
 a

t 
e
n

d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

D
o

w
n

lo
a
d

 d
a
te

d
 1

6
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0
0
6

A
c
tu

a
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

b
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

fi
le

d
 

b
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
ls

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 £

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 %

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
A

d
ju

s
te

d
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 £

A
d

ju
s
te

d
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 %

S
B

C
F

s
 

S
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

6
/0

2
/0

7

A
d

ju
s
te

d
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

S
B

C
F

s

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 £

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 %

S
B

C
F

s
 

S
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

6
/0

2
/0

7

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

S
B

C
F

s

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 %

b
c

A
u
d
it
 &

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

1
3
3
,1

8
0
 

1
1
5
,7

5
0
 

1
6
0
,8

3
3
 

1
4
0
,0

1
1
 

(2
0
,8

2
2
)

(1
2
.9

%
)

(2
0
,8

2
2
)

(1
2
.9

%
)

(2
6
,8

5
0
)

6
,0

2
8
 

8
8
,9

0
0
 

(2
6
,8

5
0
)

(2
3
.2

%
)

(2
6
,8

5
0
)

0
 

0
.0

%
 

C
E

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

5
1
,0

4
0
 

5
3
,9

3
0
 

2
8
,8

6
5
 

2
7
,7

8
3
 

(1
,0

8
2
)

(3
.7

%
)

(1
,0

8
2
)

(3
.7

%
)

(1
,0

0
0
)

(8
2
)

5
3
,9

3
0
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

(1
,0

0
0
)

1
,0

0
0
 

1
.9

%
 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
7
3
,2

4
0
 

4
4
6
,8

0
0
 

1
1
1
,3

0
5
 

3
3
,1

0
5
 

(7
8
,2

0
0
)

(7
0
.3

%
)

(7
8
,2

0
0
)

(7
0
.3

%
)

(1
0
8
,6

3
0
)

3
0
,4

3
0
 

3
6
5
,1

1
2
 

(8
1
,6

8
8
)

(1
8
.3

%
)

(1
0
8
,6

3
0
)

2
6
,9

4
2
 

6
.0

%
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 &
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

7
,3

8
5
,7

5
0
 

7
,4

3
0
,1

2
0
 

3
,3

6
8
,0

2
3
 

3
,3

4
0
,5

0
6
 

(2
7
,5

1
7
)

(0
.8

%
)

8
2
,0

0
0
 

5
4
,4

8
3
 

1
.6

%
 

(1
6
2
,3

1
0
)

2
1
6
,7

9
3
 

7
,3

3
1
,1

0
0
 

(9
9
,0

2
0
)

(1
.3

%
)

(1
6
2
,3

1
0
)

6
3
,2

9
0
 

0
.9

%
 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

1
,1

8
6
,4

3
0
 

1
,1

4
4
,5

2
0
 

6
1
9
,5

4
2
 

5
4
0
,0

3
6
 

(7
9
,5

0
6
)

(1
2
.8

%
)

(7
9
,5

0
6
)

(1
2
.8

%
)

(3
7
,8

3
0
)

(4
1
,6

7
6
)

1
,1

0
1
,6

9
0
 

(4
2
,8

3
0
)

(3
.7

%
)

(3
7
,8

3
0
)

(5
,0

0
0
)

(0
.4

%
)

E
s
ta

te
s

7
5
0
,4

1
0
 

7
8
0
,3

0
0
 

5
6
7
,6

8
8
 

5
1
8
,7

2
1
 

(4
8
,9

6
7
)

(8
.6

%
)

(4
8
,9

6
7
)

(8
.6

%
)

1
1
3
,1

0
0
 

(1
6
2
,0

6
7
)

8
9
5
,4

7
0
 

1
1
5
,1

7
0
 

1
4
.8

%
 

1
1
3
,1

0
0
 

2
,0

7
0
 

0
.3

%
 

F
in

a
n
c
e

1
,9

8
1
,6

2
0
 

1
,0

7
2
,5

3
0
 

(8
6
,2

2
8
)

1
,8

7
0
,8

5
4
 

1
,9

5
7
,0

8
2
 

2
2
6
9
.7

%
 

(1
,6

7
0
,5

9
9
)

2
8
6
,4

8
3
 

3
3
2
.2

%
 

2
2
1
,6

9
0
 

6
4
,7

9
3
 

1
,2

8
6
,7

2
0
 

2
1
4
,1

9
0
 

2
0
.0

%
 

2
2
1
,6

9
0
 

(7
,5

0
0
)

(0
.7

%
)

R
id

g
e
w

a
y 

S
S

P
0
 

8
9
4
,9

3
0
 

5
9
7
,8

9
8
 

4
6
9
,1

2
3
 

(1
2
8
,7

7
5
)

(2
1
.5

%
)

1
0
5
,0

0
0
 

(2
3
,7

7
5
)

(4
.0

%
)

0
 

(2
3
,7

7
5
)

8
9
4
,9

3
0
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
a
fe

ty
2
,3

4
1
,4

7
0
 

2
,3

8
9
,6

8
0
 

8
5
7
,8

3
7
 

8
4
5
,1

7
5
 

(1
2
,6

6
2
)

(1
.5

%
)

(1
2
,6

6
2
)

(1
.5

%
)

1
0
1
,2

4
0
 

(1
1
3
,9

0
2
)

2
,4

1
6
,9

7
0
 

2
7
,2

9
0
 

1
.1

%
 

1
0
1
,2

4
0
 

(7
3
,9

5
0
)

(3
.1

%
)

L
e
g

a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

9
9
5
,7

7
0
 

1
,0

0
6
,5

9
0
 

8
6
3
,1

7
9
 

6
4
3
,1

5
1
 

(2
2
0
,0

2
8
)

(2
5
.5

%
)

(2
2
0
,0

2
8
)

(2
5
.5

%
)

(1
1
6
,4

5
0
)

(1
0
3
,5

7
8
)

9
1
3
,8

6
0
 

(9
2
,7

3
0
)

(9
.2

%
)

(1
1
6
,4

5
0
)

2
3
,7

2
0
 

2
.4

%
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 S
u
p

p
o
rt

8
7
,3

3
0
 

1
0
2
,1

2
0
 

1
,7

8
0
,9

5
4
 

1
,5

5
2
,2

3
0
 

(2
2
8
,7

2
4
)

(1
2
.8

%
)

(2
2
8
,7

2
4
)

(1
2
.8

%
)

(1
3
7
,4

0
0
)

(9
1
,3

2
4
)

(7
0
,0

1
5
)

(1
7
2
,1

3
5
)

(1
6
8
.6

%
)

(1
3
7
,4

0
0
)

(3
4
,7

3
5
)

(3
4
.0

%
)

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

2
,6

5
3
,3

5
0
 

2
,6

3
6
,0

4
0
 

9
0
6
,0

5
5
 

5
9
2
,9

4
9
 

(3
1
3
,1

0
6
)

(3
4
.6

%
)

8
0
,0

0
0
 

(2
3
3
,1

0
6
)

(2
5
.7

%
)

(1
0
7
,2

9
0
)

(1
2
5
,8

1
6
)

2
,5

2
8
,7

5
0
 

(1
0
7
,2

9
0
)

(4
.1

%
)

(1
0
7
,2

9
0
)

0
 

0
.0

%
 

S
B

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

1
,2

1
2
,3

7
0

1
,1

9
0
,5

0
0
 

5
9
6
,3

1
0
 

5
4
1
,7

8
3
 

(5
4
,5

2
7
)

(9
.1

%
)

(5
4
,5

2
7
)

(9
.1

%
)

(1
0
7
,3

5
0
)

5
2
,8

2
3
 

1
,0

9
8
,1

5
0
 

(9
2
,3

5
0
)

(7
.8

%
)

(1
0
7
,3

5
0
)

1
5
,0

0
0
 

1
.3

%
 

T
S

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

8
,2

1
0

8
,1

8
0
 

1
0
,0

5
2
 

5
,2

9
0
 

(4
,7

6
2
)

(4
7
.4

%
)

(4
,7

6
2
)

(4
7
.4

%
)

(2
,1

5
0
)

(2
,6

1
2
)

8
,2

1
0
 

3
0
 

0
.4

%
 

(2
,1

5
0
)

2
,1

8
0
 

2
6
.7

%
 

N
E

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 

1
9
,2

6
0
,1

7
0
 

1
9
,2

7
1
,9

9
0
 

1
0
,3

8
2
,3

1
3
 

1
1
,1

2
0
,7

1
7
 

7
3
8
,4

0
4
 

7
.1

%
 

(1
,4

0
3
,5

9
9
)

(6
6
5
,1

9
5
)

(6
.4

%
)

(3
7
1
,2

3
0
)

(2
9
3
,9

6
5
)

1
8
,9

1
3
,7

7
7
 

(3
5
8
,2

1
3
)

(1
.9

%
)

(3
7
1
,2

3
0
)

1
3
,0

1
7
 

0
.1

%
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

c
o
m

e
(1

,1
5
2
,9

0
0
)

(1
,1

5
2
,9

0
0
)

(8
8
2
,2

0
0
)

(3
5
4
,0

0
0
)

5
2
8
,2

0
0
 

5
9
.9

%
 

(5
5
3
,1

6
3
)

(2
4
,9

6
3
)

(2
.8

%
)

(1
4
1
,4

0
0
)

1
1
6
,4

3
7
 

(1
,2

9
4
,3

0
0
)

(1
4
1
,4

0
0
)

(1
2
.3

%
)

(1
4
1
,4

0
0
)

0
 

0
.0

%
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y 
In

c
o
m

e
(1

,9
1
9
,6

0
0
)

(1
,9

1
9
,6

0
0
)

(1
,4

3
9
,7

0
0
)

(1
,1

4
6
,1

8
6
)

2
9
3
,5

1
4
 

2
0
.4

%
 

(2
3
9
,2

8
9
)

5
4
,2

2
5
 

3
.8

%
 

5
8
,6

0
0
 

(4
,3

7
5
)

(1
,8

6
1
,0

0
0
)

5
8
,6

0
0
 

3
.1

%
 

5
8
,6

0
0
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

N
E

T
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

1
6
,1

8
7
,6

7
0
 

1
6
,1

9
9
,4

9
0
 

8
,0

6
0
,4

1
3
 

9
,6

2
0
,5

3
1
 

1
,5

6
0
,1

1
8
 

1
9
.4

%
 

(2
,1

9
6
,0

5
1
)

(6
3
5
,9

3
3
)

(7
.9

%
)

(4
5
4
,0

3
0
)

(1
8
1
,9

0
3
)

1
5
,7

5
8
,4

7
7
 

(4
4
1
,0

1
3
)

(2
.7

%
)

(4
5
4
,0

3
0
)

1
3
,0

1
7
 

0
.1

%
 

C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y

(3
9
9
,0

8
0
)

(4
1
0
,9

0
0
)

R
e
v
e
rs

e
 A

g
re

s
s
o
 c

a
p

it
a
l 
c
h
a
rg

e
s

(4
,3

5
3
,4

0
0
)

(4
,3

5
3
,4

0
0
)

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
c
a
p

it
a
l 
c
h
a
rg

e
s

3
,7

4
2
,9

0
0
 

3
,7

4
2
,9

0
0
 

T
o

ta
l

1
5
,1

7
8
,0

9
0
 

1
5
,1

7
8
,0

9
0
 

8
,0

6
0
,4

1
3
 

9
,6

2
0
,5

3
1
 

1
,5

6
0
,1

1
8
 

1
9
.4

%
 

(2
,1

9
6
,0

5
1
)

(6
3
5
,9

3
3
)

(7
.9

%
)

(4
5
4
,0

3
0
)

(1
8
1
,9

0
3
)

1
5
,7

5
8
,4

7
7
 

(4
4
1
,0

1
3
)

(2
.9

%
)

(4
5
4
,0

3
0
)

1
3
,0

1
7
 

0
.1

%
 

R
e
v
e
rs

a
l 
o
f 

c
a
p

it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
 c

h
a
rg

e
s

(3
,3

1
9
,9

0
0
)

(3
,3

1
9
,9

0
0
)

N
e
t 
U

s
a
g

e
 o

f 
F

u
n
d
s

(4
0
4
,3

7
4
)

(4
0
4
,3

7
4
)

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 B
a
la

n
c
e
s

(1
8
1
,7

8
5
)

(1
8
1
,7

8
5
)

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t
1
1
,2

7
2
,0

3
1
 

1
1
,2

7
2
,0

3
1
 

8
,0

6
0
,4

1
3
 

9
,6

2
0
,5

3
1
 

1
,5

6
0
,1

1
8
 

1
9
.4

%
 

(2
,1

9
6
,0

5
1
)

(6
3
5
,9

3
3
)

(7
.9

%
)

(4
5
4
,0

3
0
)

(1
8
1
,9

0
3
)

1
5
,7

5
8
,4

7
7
 

(4
4
1
,0

1
3
)

(3
.9

%
)

(4
5
4
,0

3
0
)

1
3
,0

1
7
 

0
.1

%
 

Page 53



 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL     Report No. 159/06 
          Wards Affected: All 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
TO THE EXECUTIVE 

2nd  March 2007 
TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

15th March 2007 
 

Best Value Performance Indicators – Performance against Top and Bottom Quartile 2005-06 
 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary  
 
1.1 This report compares the Council’s performance for 2005/6 against that of the national top and bottom 

quartile data for 2005-06 which was published by the Audit Commission in late December 2006. 
 
1.2 The Contact Officer for this report is Robert Woodside, Principal Performance Management Officer 

(01235 520202 ext 499). 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
  
 Executive 

(a) That Members note the Council’s performance against the national top and bottom quartile 
results for 2005-06 and that active management of Best Value Performance Indicators is 
undertaken through the Corporate Governance Reporting process 

  
 Scrutiny Committee 

(a) That Members note the Council’s performance against the national top and bottom quartile 
results for 2005-06 and that active management of Best Value Performance Indicators is 
undertaken through the Corporate Governance Reporting process 

 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies  
 

(a) Vision Statement objective A and E. 
 
(b) The report does not conflict with any Council Strategies. 
 
(c) The report complies with existing policies. 
 

4.0 Background 
 
4.1 The Audit Commission has recently published top and bottom quartile data for Best Value 

Performance Indicators (BVPIs) for 2005-06. This allows a comparison to be made between the 
Vale’s audited actual performance for 2005/6 with that of all of the Councils in England. 

 
4.2 The table attached to this report (Appendix A) contains all 2005/06 BVPIs where the Audit 

Commission have supplied top and bottom quartile data. The headline totals for 2005/06 (the 
corresponding figures for 2004/05 are shown in brackets) from Appendix A are: 

 
Top Quartile 21 (20) 38% (43%) 
Middle Quartiles 23 (16) 42% (35%) 
Bottom Quartile 11 (10) 20% (22%) 
Total 55 (46)  

The table in Appendix A includes a column of the quartiles for 2004/05 (where available) which 
enables any change in the quartiles between the two years to be seen. There are 6 indicators where 
performance has moved to a better quartile, 5 indicators where performance has moved to a worse 
quartile, and 24 indicators where performance has stayed in the same quartile. This is shown by the 
direction of the arrows in the TQ/BQ 2004/05 column of Appendix A. 

Agenda Item 13

Page 54



 

 
The Quarterly Corporate Governance Report (third quarter 2005/06) will include these latest quartiles 
(2005/06) which will enable a comparison to be made with the current year’s performance. 
 

4.3 The following table shows the relative numbers of BVPIs in the top and bottom quartiles between 
2001/02 – 2005/06. Members should note that it is not possible to do a direct comparison between the 
years because there are changes each year to BVPIs; new ones are added and others deleted.  

 
4.4 Appendix B is a table which lists all 11 BVPIs which were in the bottom quartile in 2005/6. The table 

includes the third quarter 2006/7 results and shows the current quartile position. In summary, of the 
11 that were in the bottom quartile in 2005/6, 6 remain in the Bottom quartile, 4 have moved into the 
middle quartile and 1 into the top quartile.  

 
4.5 A detailed commentary on the third quarter performance for all BVPIs for 2006/7 is included in the 

third quarter Corporate Governance Report which is also on this agenda. 
 
 
 
 Comparison of numbers of BVPI’s in top, middle and bottom quartile: 2001/02 – 2005/06 

  2001/02 2002/03  2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 

Top Quartile 13 31% 18 38% 14 34% 20 43% 21 38% 
Middle Quartiles 20 48% 21 45% 17 42% 16 35% 23 42% 
Bottom Quartiles 9 21% 8 17% 10 24% 10 22% 11 20% 
 
Total 

 
42 

  
47 

  
41 

  
46 

  
55 

 

 
 

ROBERT WOODSIDE 
PRINCIPAL PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT OFFICER 

 
TIM SADLER 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 
Background Papers: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix A 
Best Value Performance Indicators – Top, Middle and  Bottom Quartile Report 2005/06 
 

Key: T – Target         I - Indicator 

21 Top Quartile (T) 

23 Middle Quartiles (M) 

11 Bottom Quartile (B) 

Page 55



 

Total 55  

Top and Bottom quartile data is against all England Authorities     � 6 Better 

Trend arrows: compares 2005/6 performance with 2004/5 (not possible for all BVPIs)   � 5 Worse 

T = top; B = bottom; M = middle quartile       � 24 Same 

BVPI Indicator Description 
Tgt/ 
Ind 

TQ 
05/06 

BQ 
05/06 

  
Actual 
05/06 

Quartile 
05/06 

Quartile 
2004/05 

Trend 

Corporate Health 

2b 
The duty to promote race 
equality checklist score 

T 79 53   47 B M � 

8 % Invoices paid on time T 96.71 89.24   92.88 M M � 

9 Council tax collected (%) T 98.4 96.39   99.08 T T � 

10 NNDR collected (%) T 99.26 98.1   99.21 T T � 

11a 
% of top 5% of earners that are 
women 

I 42.58 22.22   14.29 B B � 

11b 
% of top 5% of earners that are 
from ethnic minorities 

I 4.33 0   7.14 T B � 

12 Days sick per member of staff T 8.34 10.94   10 M M � 

14 Early retirements / staff I 0.17 0.78   0 T B � 

15 Ill health retirements / staff I 0.1 0.37   0 T T � 

16a % staff with disabilities I 3.86 1.86   5.9 T T � 

17a % staff from ethnic minorities I 4.8 0.9   2.51 M M � 

Housing  

64 
No of vacant private sector 
dwellings returned into 
occupation 

T 77 7   5 B M � 

183a 
Average length of stay in B&B 
(weeks) 

T 1 4.27   3.26 M M � 

183b 
Average length of stay in 
Hostel (weeks) 

T 0 17   12.32 M B � 

202 
No of people sleeping rough 
on a single night 

T 0 5   0 T     

203 
% change in average number 
of families in temporary 
accommodation 

T -15.84 19.27   -14.2 M T � 

213 

Number  households 
considered  homeless - 
housing advice intervention 
resolved situation 1,000 
households 

I 5 1   2 M     

214 
Housing advice service: 
Repeat homelessness (%) 

I 0.32 4.26   3.33 M     

                  

Benefits  

78a 
Average time for processing 
new claims 

T 26.4 39.1   25.96 T T � 

78b 
Average time for processing 
changes of circumstances 

T 9.1 18.8   6.17 T T � 

79a 
% of cases where calculation 
was correct 

T 99 96.6   99.6 T T � 

79b(i) 
% of overpayments recovered 
as a % of Housing Benefit 
deemed recoverable 

T 79.39 58.98   102.85 T T � 

79b(ii) 

% overpayments recovered 
during the period including 
overpayments identified during 
the period 

I 39.69 27.35   49.97 T     

BVPI Indicator Description 
Tgt/ 
Ind 

TQ 
05/06 

BQ 
05/06 

  
Actual 
05/06 

Quartile 
05/06 

Quartile 
2004/05 

Trend 

Environment  

82ai % of household waste recycled T 20.87 14.22   22.14 T T � 

82aii 
Total tonnage of waste 
recycled 

T 15126 6086   9038 M     

Page 56



 

82bi  
% of household waste 
composted 

T 13.05 3.54   1.09 B B � 

82bii 
Total tonnage of waste 
composted 

T 8770 1802   699 B     

84a 
Household waste collected (Kg 
per head of population) 

I 393 478   352 T T � 

84b 
% change (from previous year)  
waste collected KG per head  

T -3.74 1.31   1.09 M     

86 Cost of waste collection (£)  T 39.48 52.42   45.9 M M � 

91a 
The % of households served 
by a kerbside collection of 
recyclables 

T 100 93.5   98.6 M T � 

91b 
The % of households served 
by a kerbside collection of at 
least 2 recyclables 

T 100 90.1   98.6 M     

166a 
Environmental health checklist 
(%) 

T 100 85   66.25 B B � 

199a 
Cleanliness of relevant land 
and highways (%) 

T 8.8 21   12 M M � 

199b 
Proportion relevant land and 
highways with unacceptable 
levels of graffiti visible % 

T 1 6   1 T     

BVPI Indicator Description 
Tgt/ 
Ind 

TQ 
05/06 

BQ 
05/06 

  
Actual 
05/06 

Quartile 
05/06 

Quartile 
2004/05 

Trend 

199c 
Proportion of relevant land and 
highways with unacceptable 
levels of fly postings visible % 

T 0 2   0 T     

216a 
Contaminated land - number of 
sites of potential concern 

I 1428 325   1078 M     

216b 
Number sites where 
remediation of land necessary  
% of 'sites  potential concern' 

I 9 1   1.32 M     

217 
% pollution control 
improvements to existing 
installations completed on time 

T 100 83   97 M     

218a 
% of reports of abandoned 
vehicles investigated within 24 
hours of notification 

T 96.64 73   94.93 M     

218b 
% of abandoned vehicles 
removed within 24 hours (of 
legally being able to) 

T 95 61.11   61.11 B     

Planning  

106 
% new homes on brown field 
sites 

T 96.47 62.43   95.29 M M � 

109a 
% of major planning 
applications in 13 weeks 

T 74.9 57.08   50 B M � 

109b 
% of minor planning 
applications in 8 weeks 

T 81.07 69   71.8 M B � 

109c 
% of other planning 
applications in 8 weeks 

T 91.39 83.37   86.66 M B � 

179 
% of standard searches carried 
out in 10 working days 

T 100 98   99.79 M     

205 Quality of service checklist (%) T 94.5 83.3   83 B B � 

219b 
% of conservation areas with 
an up to date character 
appraisal 

I 31.81 0   0 B     

219c 
% of conservation areas with 
published management 
proposals 

I 7.7 0   0 B     

                    

BVPI Indicator Description 
Tgt/ 
Ind 

TQ 
05/06 

BQ 
05/06 

  
Actual 
05/06 

Quartile 
05/06 

Quartile 
2004/05 

Trend 

Community Development 

126 
Domestic burglaries per 1000 
households 

I 6.4 13.7   5.94 T T � 

127a 
Violent crimes per 1000 
population 

I 12.4 22.8   12.39 T M � 

127b Robberies per 1000 population I 0.3 1.3   0.16 T T � 

Page 57



 

128 
Vehicle crimes per 1000 
population 

I 7.3 14.6   5.88 T T � 

156 
% of authority buildings open 
to the public - accessible for 
disabled 

T 84.7 44.66   83 M     

175 
% of racial incidents that 
resulted in further action 

T 100 100   100 T     

 
Appendix B 
 
Best Value Performance Indicators in Bottom Quartile 2005/06  
(position at end of third quarter 2006/7) 
 
 

BVPI Indicator Description 
Tgt/ 
Ind 

TQ 
05/06 

BQ 
05/06 

Actual 
05/06 

Quartile 
05/06 

Third 
Quarter 
2006/7 

Quartile 
(as at third 

quarter) 

Tren
d 

2b 
The duty to promote race 
equality checklist score 

T 79 53 47 B 
 

31.6 B � 

11a 
% of top 5% of earners that 
are women 

I 42.58 22.22 14.29 B 
 

15.38 B � 

64 
No of vacant private sector 
dwellings returned into 
occupation 

T 77 7 5 B 

 
49 M � 

82bi  
% of household waste 
composted 

T 13.05 3.54 1.09 B 

 
6.86 M � 

82bii 
Total tonnage of waste 
composted 

T 8770 1802 699 B 

 
2196 M � 

166a 
Environmental health 
checklist (%) 

T 100 85 66.25 B 

 
66.25 B � 

218b 
% of abandoned vehicles 
removed within 24 hours (of 
legally being able to) 

T 95 61.11 61.11 B 

 
42.86 B � 

109a 
% of major planning 
applications in 13 weeks 

T 74.9 57.08 50 B 

 
79.31 T � 

205 
Quality of service checklist 
(%) 

T 94.5 83.3 83 B 
 

88.88 M � 

219b 
% of conservation areas 
with an up to date character 
appraisal 

I 31.81 0 0 B 
 

Annual 
reporting 

B 
(estimated) 

 � 

219c 
% of conservation areas 
with published management 
proposals 

I 7.7 0 0 B 
 

Annual 
reporting 

 B 
(estimated) 

�  

 

 

Page 58



Sfl/D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\1\9\AI00005914\20070302TMStrategyreport0.doc 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL    Report No. 160/06 
Wards Affected - ALL 

 
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF ASSET MANAGEMENT 

TO THE EXECUTIVE 
2 MARCH 2007 

 
Treasury Management and Investment Strategy for 2007/08 

 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 The Treasury Management Policy, agreed by Council December 2001 requires the approval of 

an annual Treasury Management Strategy for the next financial year.  This is in line with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management. 

 
1.2 In March 2004 the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister, now the Department for Communities 

and Local Government (DCLG) issued guidance under Section 15 of the Local Government 
Act 2003 on Local Government cash investments which requires approval of an Annual 
Investment Strategy.  The guidance does acknowledge that it might be convenient to produce 
a single document that meets the requirements of the CIPFA code and the Secretary of 
State’s guidance. 

 
1.3 This report puts forward an Annual Strategy for this authority for 2007/08 which, as last year, 

complies with the CIPFA code and the DCLG guidance.  This is unchanged from the existing 
strategy for 2006/07. This strategy restricts itself to non-property investments.  For property 
investment, Members should refer to the Investment Policy last agreed by the Council on 24 
March 2004 

 
1.4 The Contact Officer for this report is Steve Lawrence, Head of Asset Management 01235 

540321. 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 Members are asked to approve:  
 

the Annual Treasury Management & Investment Strategy for 2007/08 (set out at Appendix A), 
and the limits and guidelines specified in it. 

 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 

a) Vision strands A and B. 
 

b) This report complies with the Council’s strategies for sound financial management. 
 

c) This report complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Policy, approved by 
Council on 19 December 2001, and follows the procedure recommended in the revised 
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice, January 2002. 

 
4.0 Local Government Investments 
 
4.1 Local Authorities’ powers and practices for investing their surplus funds are contained in Part 1 

of the Local Government Act 2003. The act allows the Secretary of State to issue guidance on 
investments and to specify other guidance which should be followed.  The ODPM issued 
guidance in March 2004 and specified that regard should also be had to the Treasury 
Management Code of Practice and The Prudential Code for Capital Finance issued by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 59



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\1\9\AI00005914\20070302TMStrategyreport0.doc 

21 February 2007 

4.2 The general objective remains that local authorities should prudently invest surplus funds held.  
Priority should be given to security and liquidity but it is reasonable to seek the highest return 
consistent with those aims.  The DCLG guidance specifically discourages the use of 
speculative investments such as equities. Borrowing purely in order to invest remains unlawful. 

 
4.3 Somewhat confusingly the guidance introduces the concept of “specified” and “non-specified” 

cash investments.  Specified investments are those offering high security, high liquidity and 
low risk.  They should be in sterling and with a maturity of no more than 1 year.  Investments 
made with the UK Government or a local authority are automatically included as are bodies 
with “a high credit rating”, the definition of which is left to the authority.  Non-specified 
investments are those that don’t meet this description.  The aim seems to be not to discourage 
authorities from using non-specified investments but to ensure that proper procedures are in 
place to assess any greater risk.  These categories are considered separately in sections 4 
and 5 of the Strategy. 

 
4.4 The guidance also applies to investments made through external fund managers. 
 
5.0 Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 
 
5.1 The Treasury Management Policy requires an annual Treasury Management & Investment 

Strategy Statement.  This sets borrowing limits, investment objectives, approved organisations 
for investment, guidelines and performance criteria for the in-house operation.  Since there 
has been no significant change in the Council’s circumstances or the investment market the 
Strategy Statement for 2006/07 agreed in March 2006 is still suitable and has just been 
updated where necessary.  The proposed Strategy Statement for 2007/08 is set out at 
Appendix A. 

 
5.2 Prudential indicators required by the Capital Finance Regulations issued under the 2003 Act 

and the limits for external borrowing were agreed at the Council meeting on 21 February 2007. 
 
 

STEVE LAWRENCE 
HEAD OF ASSET MANAGEMENT 

 
Background Papers: 

Treasury Management in the Public Services – Code of Practice and Cross-sectoral Guidance 
notes. Published by CIPFA Jan 2002. 

 
Guidance on Local Government Investments ODPM 12 March 2004 

Page 60



APPENDIX A 

Sfl/D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\1\9\AI00005914\20070302TMStrategyreport0.doc 

TREASURY MANGEMENT & INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2007-08 
 
1.0 Investment Objectives  
 
1.1 The main objectives to be followed in 2007/08 are: 
 

• to invest in instruments conducive to achieving optimum returns whilst ensuring the 
security of the principal invested. 

 

• to ensure a balanced portfolio in terms of period and maturity date with specific regard to 
major cash inflows and outflows (e.g. precept payments and grant receipts); 

 

• to have regard to protecting the Council’s position against fluctuations in interest rates and 
enabling it to plan properly for future financial commitments; 

 

• to maintain sufficient liquidity to allow for cash-flow variations arising from income receipts 
and expenditure commitments, and to take advantage of interest rate movements when 
favourable; 

 

• to keep investment management expenses to a minimum whilst ensuring that the overall 
return to the Council is maximised.  

 
1.2 Investment of the Council’s funds will be in accordance with the Treasury Management Policy.  

The overriding factor will be the security of the principal invested.  Investment returns are 
associated with risk and, therefore, the margin of interest attainable will generally be lower the 
more secure the investment. 

 
2.0 Liquidity of Investments  
 
2.1 This refers to how easily the investment can be converted into cash.  In normal circumstances 

higher returns are achievable from investments with lower liquidity.  The use of longer term 
instruments (greater than 1 year to maturity) will fall in the non-specified investment category.  
It is proposed that these will only be used for the Council’s core funds and a maximum 
investment period of three years is proposed because this is consistent with the capital 
planning framework and forecasting interest rate movements beyond 18 months is difficult.  
The actual limits are included under non-specified investments below. 

 
3.0 Approved Organisations for Investment  
 
3.1 When assessing an organisation for investment purposes the Council will use Butlers 

creditworthiness advice for applying credit rating criteria.  Butlers is a division of ICAP 
Securities plc and is the Council’s appointed investment advisor.  The Council receives 
updates from Butlers of changes to credit ratings as they occur.  These updates will be 
incorporated into the Council’s counterparty list on the same day.  The criteria will be applied 
as follows: 
 
Banks the Council will use all banks with the following ratings (or equivalent) from Fitch, 

Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s: 
 Short Term: F1    Long Term: A- 
 Individual: C    Support: 3 
 

Wholly Owned Subsidiaries: The Council will use these where the parent bank 
meets the rating requirement as above. 

 
Building Societies the Council will use building societies which have ratings as for banks 

above. In addition, it will use unrated Societies with assets in excess of 
£500 million.  (This makes up the top 30). 

Page 61



APPENDIX A 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\1\9\AI00005914\20070302TMStrategyreport0.doc 

21 February 2007 

 
Money Market Funds Funds that have an AAA rating. 
 
UK Government: Including gilts (to be used by the external fund manager) and the Debt 

Management Office (responsible for lending to local authorities). 
 
Supranational Bonds: The Council’s external fund manager is allowed to invest in these 

instruments through their mandate.  
 
Other Local Authorities 
 

4.0 Specified Investments  
 
4.1 These are sterling investments of not more than one-year maturity in a body with a high credit 

rating and not defined as capital expenditure (making an investment in a company.)  This 
would include investments with The UK Government, a Money Market fund which is rated AAA 
by Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s,  a local authority or an institution with a short term 
credit rating of either F1 (Fitch), P-1 (Moody’s) or A-1 (Standard & Poor’s).   

 
5.0 Non-Specified Investments  
 
5.1 These are any other type of permitted investment (i.e. not defined as specified above).  This 

would include any sterling investments (there is no wish to invest in other currencies) with: 
 

 Gilt edged securities (over one year).  These are used by the Council’s Fund Manager.  
The mandate allows maximum duration of any investment to be 15 years but the 
average of all investments should not exceed 5 years. 

 Supranational bonds (over one year) (these are basically gilts but issued by foreign 
governments) with a AAA rating. 

 An institution with a long term credit rating of AA- (Fitch and Standard & Poor’s) or Aa3 
(Moody’s) for deposits with a maturity greater than 1 year and less than 3 years. 

 Non-rated Building Societies with assets in excess of £1 billion (the top 21) limited to no 
longer than 9 months, 

 Non-rated Building Societies with assets in excess of £500 million (the next 9) limited to 
no longer than 6 months, 

 Unrated subsidiaries of an institution which meets the credit rating criteria outlined above 
limited to 6 months. 

 
6.0 Limits with any institution  
 
6.1 A balanced portfolio should be maintained to ensure sufficient liquidity is available to allow for 

cash flow variations, and to protect the Council against fluctuations in interest rates.  The 
following limits will be applied (for organisations that meet the criteria above): 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Fitch Moody’s Standard & 
Poor’s 

Money 
Limit 

Time 
Limit 

Upper Limit Category F1+ / AA- P-1 / Aa3 A-1+ / AA- £5 m 3 years 

Lower Limit Category F1 / A- P-1 / A3 A-1 / A- £5 m 1 year 

Building Society Limits 1 Assets in excess of £1bn £3 m 9 months 

Building Society Limits 2 Assets in excess of £500m £3 m 6 months 

Unrated Subsidiaries - - - £3 m 6 months 

Page 62



APPENDIX A 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\1\9\AI00005914\20070302TMStrategyreport0.doc 

21 February 2007 

Other Institution Limits - - - £5 m various 

 
1. The Upper and Lower Limit categories will include both banks and building societies. 
2. The Other Institution Limit will be for other local authorities, the DMADF (Debt Management 

Account Deposit Facility – lending to the Government), Money Market Funds and Gilt and 
Supranational investments. These are all considered high quality names – although not 
always rated – and therefore will have the same limit as the Upper Category. 

 
6.2 In exceptional circumstances short term variations to these limits will be allowed, subject to the 

written authority of the Strategic Director. 
 
7.0 Borrowing Limits 2007/08 
 
7.1 The Council is required to determine the following limits for the financial year 1 April 2007 to 

31 March 2008.  The Prudential Code for Capital Finance stipulates that these are set at the 
same time as the Prudential Indicators for Capital Finance are considered.  Those indicators 
were included as part of the Executive Budget Proposal in Appendix A(i) of that report (yellow 
pages) and agreed on 21 February 2007. 

 

 Limit  £’000 

Operational boundary for external debt 2,000 

Authorised limit for external debt 5,000 

limit for amounts at variable interest rates nil 

 
 
8.0 Guidelines for In-house Investment   
 
8.1 The brokers listed below are currently authorised to arrange the Council’s cash investments: 
 

Prebon Marshall Yamane (UK) Ltd 
Tradition UK Limited 
Intercapital Europe (Icap) (a division of ICAP Securities plc.) 

 
8.2 New brokers can only be used after written consent from the Strategic Director. 
 
8.3 Investments may only be made with Local Authorities and other organisations as authorised 

by the Bank of England under the Banking Act 1987, subject to fulfilling the criteria above and 
up to the limits above. 

 
8.4 The Principal Accountant has responsibility for the daily management of cash and has the 

authority to agree investments for a period of up to three months within policy guidelines (the 
actual transaction must be authorised by one of the three bank signatories as with any 
payment). 

 
8.5 Money invested for a period exceeding three months requires the prior written authorisation of 

the Head of Asset Management. 
 
8.6 A weekly report will be produced to provide the Strategic Director & Chief Finance Officer with 

details of all investment activities. 
 
9.0 Performance Measures  
 
9.1 The Executive will receive regular reports on Treasury Management activities as detailed in 

the Treasury Management Policy. 

Page 63



APPENDIX A 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\1\9\AI00005914\20070302TMStrategyreport0.doc 

21 February 2007 

 
9.2 The following key performance measures are recommended: 
 

• in-house investment rates achieved compared to the LGC 7 day rate; 

• adherence to investment policy and strategy; 

• full investment of daily balances; 

• maintenance of a balanced portfolio; 

• weekly reports produced (in-house) or monthly (externally managed funds). 
 
 
March 2007 

Page 64



 
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL    Report No. 161/06 

      Wards Affected: - All 
 

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR FOR PLANNING AND COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
TO THE EXECUTIVE 

2 MARCH 2007 
 

Draft Local Development Framework Core Strategy Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report 
 
 

1 Introduction and Report Summary 
 

1.1 Under Section 39(2) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, Sustainability 
Appraisal is mandatory for new Development Plan Documents (DPDs). This puts into effect 
the requirements of European Directive 2001/42/EC on the Strategic Environmental 
Assessment of Plans and Programmes on the Environment which came into effect by 
regulations produced in 2004. The now Department for Communities and Local Government 
produced guidance in November 2005 on the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) of Local 
Development Documents. 

 
1.2 The first stage in the SA process (Stage A) is the production of a Scoping Report. This serves 

as the foundation for the SA of the Vale’s Core Strategy. Essentially it provides the information 
relating to the area and other background information together with a suggested assessment 
framework. 

 
1.3 Consultation on the document has to be undertaken with the now three designated 

environmental bodies (English Heritage, the Environment Agency and Natural England) and 
any other bodies or persons that the Council considers necessary. Following any amendments 
arising out of the consultation the background information and the framework will be used to 
assess the sustainability of the Core Strategy. A final SA Report has to be produced to 
accompany the Core Strategy DPD when submitted to the Secretary of State. 

 
1.4 A draft Scoping Report was considered by the Structure And Local Plan Advisory Group 3rd 

January 2007. The report has been modified in response to comments made at that meeting 
and subsequently in response to comments by other Members.  

 
1.5 The Contact Officer for this report is Peter Williams, Principal Planning Officer, (01235 

520202) 
 
2 Recommendations  
 
 (a) that the Executive approves the Draft Core Strategy Sustainability Appraisal Scoping 

Report as contained in the appendix to this report, and 
 
 (b) that the public and relevant organisations are consulted in accordance with the 

provisions of the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement. 
 
3 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies  
 

(a) A, B, C and F. 
 
(b) this report principally relates to the Local Development Framework Core Strategy and 

through this has a connection to most of the Council’s strategies 
 

4 Background and Supporting Information 
 
4.1 The first element of the Scoping Report (A1) is the identification of relevant policies, plans, 

programmes and sustainability objectives. In the Government advice this process can involve 

Agenda Item 15

Page 65



 
the review of a very large number of documents ranging from international documents such as 
the Johannesburg Declaration on Sustainable Development, through national documents such 
as the Planning Policy Statements, then regional documents such as the Regional Economic 
Development Strategy and finally locally significant documents such as crime and disorder 
strategies. 
 

4.2 Following advice by Riki Therivel, one of the authors of the original ODPM guidance on SA, it 
is considered that the review of documentation can be limited to those below regional level as 
all significant international, national and regional documentation will have been examined in 
the South East Plan’s review of plans and programmes. Reviewing the same documents 
would be an unnecessary duplication of effort. This approach is therefore used as the basis for 
the Vale’s review of relevant documents for the SA process. Other Councils which have not 
taken this approach have included reviews running to over 100 pages. 

 
4.3 The outputs from the review of plans is used to help generate the sustainability objectives on 

which the sustainability assessment will be based. This will ensure that the objectives are as 
all encompassing as possible. 

 
4.4 The second element of the SA (A2) is the collection of baseline information. Essentially this 

presents statistical information about the area across all the topic areas to be covered in a 
DPD. As this is for a core strategy the range in this case is very broad. Comparison data is 
included in each case where available so it is clear whether the situation is good or bad and by 
how much as well as what the future is expected to hold and whether the situation can be 
improved if necessary. 

 
4.5 In order to present the information in an easily understood manner a narrative rather than 

tabular approach has been taken to the presentation of the information. The information has 
been assembled from a wide range of sources and will form the basis of monitoring of the 
effects of the DPD. 

 
4.6 Partly deriving from this statistical information is the third part of the scoping report (A3) which 

involves the identification of sustainability issues and problems. Many of these problems are 
already recognised in the adopted Local Plan and other related documents. This section 
therefore consists of a list of known issues which relate to supporting data. The purpose of this 
section is also to help define sustainability objectives which can be used to assess the DPD.  
 

4.7 The final part of the scoping report is the development of the sustainability appraisal 
framework (A4). This will be used as the basis for an assessment of the sustainability 
implications of the DPD’s policies and proposals. It consists of a range of sustainability 
objectives which, where practicable, relate to specific targets and indicators. The effects of 
each policy and proposal are then ascertained by scoring the effect against each objective to 
gain an overall score. As set out in the draft report this will be on the basis of scoring effects 
with a + or - symbol where possible with a 0 for a balanced effect and a ? for an indeterminate 
effect. 
 

4.8 The guidance from the Government is that the range of objectives, indicators and targets 
should be manageable. Two Councils in Oxfordshire have used 17 and 25 objectives. The SA 
will then have to set out what, if any, mitigation for any overall adverse sustainability effects is 
possible in the form of a policy or proposal. 

 
4.9 Following approval by the Executive the three mandatory consultees will be asked for their 

comments. At the same time stakeholders will be informed that the SA Scoping Report is 
available and asked to comment. This will be in accordance with the Council’s adopted 
Statement of Community Involvement. Any comments which are received will be considered to 
see if the any part of the scoping report should be modified. Following any modification the 
sustainability framework and its subsequent approval of any changes by the Executive it will 
be used as the basis for assessing the sustainability of the Core Strategy during its 
development. 

Page 66



 
 
 

RODGER HOOD 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (Planning and Community Strategy) 

 
 

TIM SADLER 
STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

 
Background Papers:- 
 
Sustainability Appraisal of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local Development Documents 
(November 2005) 
 

Page 67



Page 68



 

Contents 
 
 

Introduction………………………………………………………………. 1 - 4 
 

 Review of Plans and Programmes……………………………………. 5 - 32 
 

Baseline Information…………………………………………………….. 33 - 52 
 
Sustainability Issues and Problems…………………………………… 53 
 
Sustainability Objectives and Framework…………………………… 54 - 57 

 

Page 69



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

1 

Vale of White Horse Core Strategy 
 

Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report (Stage A) 
 
 

Introduction 
 
1. The UK Government has published a Sustainable Development Strategy (Securing 

the Future – delivering a UK sustainable development strategy, March 2005) which 
contains a ‘purpose’, which has been agreed by the UK Government and the 
Devolved Administrations. This states that the goal of sustainable development is  

 
“to enable all people throughout the world to satisfy their basic needs and enjoy a 
better quality of life, without compromising the quality of life of future generations”. 
 

2. A set of shared UK principles that will be used to achieve the purpose and which will 
form the basis for policy in the UK is outlined in the shared UK framework and 
reflected in the UK Government’s Strategy. These have been agreed by all of the 
administrations in the UK including the vale of White Horse District Council: 

 

• Living within environmental limits; 
 

• Ensuring a strong, healthy and just society; 
 

• Achieving a sustainable economy; 
 

• Promoting good governance; and 
 

• Using sound science responsibly. 
 

4. The framework strategy also identifies four shared priorities for immediate action: 
 

• Sustainable consumption and production – achieving more with less; 
 

• Climate change and energy – securing a profound change in energy generation 
and use, preparing for climate change and setting a good example; 
 

• Natural resource protection and environmental enhancement through a better 
understanding of environmental limits, environmental enhancement and 
recovery, and a more integrated policy framework; and 
 

• Sustainable communities that embody the principles of sustainable development 
at the local level. 

 

Page 70



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

2 

5. The Council’s own core objectives are as follows: 
 

a. Strengthen local democracy and public involvement through access to 
information, consultation, and devolution of power so that everyone can take 
part in our community and contribute to the decisions which affect our lives 
 

b. Create a safer community and improve the quality of life among Vale 
residents 

 
c. Encourage a strong and sustainable economy which benefits all who live in, 

work in or visit the Vale 
 

d. Help disadvantaged groups and individuals within the Vale to realise their full 
potential 

 
e. Provide and support high quality public services which are effective, efficient 

and responsive to the needs of people within the Vale 
 

f. Protect and improve our built and natural environment 
 
 

6. The concept of sustainable development is central to the reformed planning system. 
The purpose of sustainability appraisal (SA) is to promote sustainable development 
through the integration of social, environmental and economic considerations into the 
preparation of new Development Plan Documents (DPDs). Paragraph 24 of Planning 
Policy Statement 1 ‘Delivering Sustainable Development’ states that “planning 
authorities should ensure that sustainable development is treated in an integrated way 
in their development plans. In particular, they should carefully consider the inter-
relationship between social inclusion, protecting and enhancing the environment, the 
prudent use of natural resources and economic development.” 

 
7. Under the previous system where local plans were produced sustainability appraisal 

was optional. Government guidance was produced to indicate what these appraisals 
should contain and most local planning authorities carried out an appraisal of their 
plan. One was carried for the now adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan in 
accordance with the then relevant Government Guidance. 

 
8. To ensure that there was a consistent approach to the environmental appraisal of local 

government plans and programmes across europe the European Directive 
2001/42/EC on the “strategic environmental assessment of plans and programmes on 
the environment” (the SEA Directive) was put in place. This was then transposed into 
UK law by the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 
2004. These regulations widened the original intention of the SEA Directive from 
environmental appraisal to sustainability appraisal which evaluates social and 
economic effects of plans or programmes as well as environmental effects. 

 
9. Under the Section 39(2) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 

Sustainability Appraisal is mandatory for new Development Plan Documents (DPDs). 
To assist local planning authorities the now Department for Communities and Local 
Government produced guidance on the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) of Local 
Development Documents in November 2005. This sets out the stages in a 

Page 71



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

3 

sustainability appraisal of a development plan document such as a core strategy. 
These are set out in the table on the following page. 

 
10. The first step in the sustainability appraisal process is stage A which is the production 

of a scoping report. This sets out the framework for carrying out the appraisal and its 
justification. The first part of the scoping report consists of an examination of other 
relevant plans and programmes (Stage A1) so that relevant sustainability objectives 
can be brought into the sustainability appraisal framework. This ensures that the 
appraisal takes those objectives into account when assessing the sustainability of 
policies and proposals in the core strategy. 

 
11. The next part of the scoping report is the collection of baseline information (Stage A2) 

about the Vale. This provides the baseline for assessing any effects of a policy or 
proposal on the Vale. The baseline assessment contains comparisons to other areas 
so that issues or problems can be identified. The baseline assessment also contains 
predictions of how the various factors will progress into the future based on current 
expected development. The effects of any policies or proposals on these expectations 
can then be assessed as part of the SA. 

 
12. Part A3 of the scoping report is the identification of sustainability issues and problems 

which affect the Vale. Many of these are already known from work on the adopted 
local plan. Others can be identified from the baseline information and from relevant 
plans and programmes. These can then be taken into account in the sustainability 
appraisal objectives when assessing the core strategy. 

 
Incorporating SA within the DPD process 

DPD Stage 1: Pre-production – Evidence Gathering 
Stage A: Setting the context and objectives, establishing the baseline and    

deciding on the scope 

 A1:  Identifying other relevant policies, plans and programmes,  
 and sustainability objectives. 
 A2:  Collecting baseline information. 
 A3:  Identifying sustainability issues and problems. 

 A4:  Developing the SA framework. 
 A5:  Consulting on the scope of the SA. 
Stage B: Developing and refining options and assessing effects 

 

 B1:  Testing the DPD objectives against the SA framework. 
 B2:  Developing the DPD options. 
 B3:  Predicting the effects the DPD. 
 B4:  Evaluating the effects of the DPD. 

 B5:  Considering ways of mitigating adverse effects and   
 maximising beneficial effects. 
 B6:  Proposing measures to monitor the significant effects of  
  implementing the DPDs. 
Stage C: Preparing the Sustainability Appraisal Report 

 

 C1:  Preparing the SA Report. 
Stage D: Consulting on the preferred options of the DPD and SA Report 

 

 D1:  Public participation on the preferred options of the DPD and  

Page 72



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

4 

 the SA Report. 

 D2(i): Appraising significant changes. 
 D2(ii): Appraising significant changes resulting from    
 representations. 
 D3:  Making decisions and providing information. 
Stage E: Monitoring the significant effects of implementing the DPD 

 

 E1:  Finalising aims and methods for monitoring. 
 E2:  Responding to adverse effects. 

 
12. Part four of the scoping report (Stage A4) is the development of the sustainability 

appraisal framework. The foundations of this framework are the sustainability 
objectives which are developed from the information contained in the first three parts 
of the scoping report. These objectives can then be used to score the various policy 
and proposal options in the core strategy so that the most sustainable option can be 
chosen. It also allows the potential for unsustainable impacts to be removed or 
mitigated to be examined. 
 

13. The next stage is for the scoping report to be made available for comment. The 
regulations require the Council to formally consult the now three statutory 
environmental bodies. These are English Heritage, the Environment Agency and 
Natural England. The government guidance indicates that Council’s should also 
consult stakeholders. The Council’s Statement of Community Involvement sets out 
how this will be undertaken. 
 

14. Following that consultation any comments will be considered and any modifications 
which are felt to be necessary will be made. The assessment framework will then be 
used to assess the policy and proposal options in the core strategy and a report will be 
produced setting out the results of that assessment.  
 

15. When the core strategy is submitted a final sustainability appraisal report will be 
prepared and published. Whether the sustainability appraisal is sound will then be 
examined as part of the inquiry. The monitoring elements of the appraisal will then be 
used to assess the actual effects of the core strategy after its adoption by the Council.  

Page 73



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

5
 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 S

A
 S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 –
 A

1
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

 
 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

P
la

n
n

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

3
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

T
o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 w

id
e

 c
h

o
ic

e
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 h

o
m

e
s
, 

b
o

th
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 m
a

rk
e

t 
h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

to
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 

 T
o
 w

id
e

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

h
o
m

e
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 h

ig
h

 
q
u

a
lit

y
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e

 w
h

o
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
a
ff

o
rd

 m
a

rk
e

t 
h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

in
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 a

re
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 o
r 

in
 n

e
e
d
. 

 T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

ili
ty

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

p
p

ly
 o

f 
h
o

u
s
in

g
. 

 T
o
 c

re
a

te
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
, 
in

c
lu

s
iv

e
, 

m
ix

e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n
 a

ll 
a

re
a

s
, 
b

o
th

 u
rb

a
n

 a
n

d
 r

u
ra

l.
 

 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
e

n
t,
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
m

e
s
  

 In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
  Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

 
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

9
 -

 
B

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 a

n
d

 G
e

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
b

io
lo

g
ic

a
l 
a

n
d
 g

e
o

lo
g
ic

a
l 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 a

re
 c

o
n

s
e

rv
e

d
 a

n
d

 
e

n
h
a

n
c
e
d

 a
s
 a

n
 i
n

te
g
ra

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l,
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
a

n
d

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t,

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

la
n

d
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
 b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 a

n
d

 
g
e

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
. 

 T
o
 c

o
n

s
e

rv
e

, 
e

n
h
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
to

re
 t
h

e
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d

’s
 

w
ild

lif
e

 a
n

d
 g

e
o

lo
g
y
 b

y
 s

u
s
ta

in
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
, 

th
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
t 
o
f 

n
a

tu
ra

l 
h
a

b
it
a

t 
a

n
d

 
g
e

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
a

n
d

 g
e

o
m

o
rp

h
o

lo
g
ic

a
l 
s
it
e

s
; 
th

e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e

y
 d

e
p

e
n
d

; 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
n

a
tu

ra
lly

 o
c
c
u

rr
in

g
 s

p
e
c
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

 T
o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 r
u

ra
l 
re

n
e

w
a

l 
a

n
d
 u

rb
a
n

 r
e
n

a
is

s
a

n
c
e

 b
y
: 

 
–

 e
n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 i
n

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
m

o
n

g
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
).

 
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d

, 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 

 M
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 r

iv
e

r 
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 w
a

te
r 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
. 

 R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 a
ir
, 
n

o
is

e
 a

n
d

 l
ig

h
t 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
. 

 

Page 74



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

6
 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 u

s
e
d

 b
y
 w

ild
lif

e
 a

n
d

 
v
a

lu
e

d
 b

y
 p

e
o
p

le
, 

re
c
o
g
n

is
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

c
o

s
y
s
te

m
s
 c

a
n

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 a

n
d
 

to
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 s

e
n

s
e

 o
f 

w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
; 

a
n
d

 
 –

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

ts
 t
a

k
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 r

o
le

 
a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

d
iv

e
rs

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

1
0

 –
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 f
o

r 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 W
a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

H
e

lp
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
th

ro
u

g
h
 d

ri
v
in

g
 w

a
s
te

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
u

p
 t
h

e
 w

a
s
te

 h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
, 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 w

a
s
te

 a
s
 a

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 a

n
d

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 t
o

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
a

s
 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
o
p

ti
o

n
, 
b

u
t 

o
n

e
 

w
h

ic
h

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 a
d

e
q
u

a
te

ly
 c

a
te

re
d

 f
o

r;
 

 P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

a
k
e

 m
o

re
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir
 o

w
n

 w
a

s
te

, 
a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

le
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
n

d
 

ti
m

e
ly

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 t

o
 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
; 

 H
e

lp
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

, 
a

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 o
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

E
u

ro
p
e

a
n

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

o
th

e
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 l
e

g
a

l 
c
o
n

tr
o

ls
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h

o
s
e

 s
e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
L

ic
e

n
s
in

g
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 1

9
9

4
; 

 H
e

lp
 s

e
c
u

re
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 o

r 
d

is
p

o
s
a

l 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
e

n
d
a

n
g
e

ri
n

g
 h

u
m

a
n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
h
a

rm
in

g
 t

h
e

 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,

 a
n

d
 e

n
a

b
le

 w
a

s
te

 t
o

 b
e

 d
is

p
o

s
e
d

 o
f 

in
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
n

e
a

re
s
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
; 

 R
e

fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
, 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 

o
f 

w
a

s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
, 

w
a

s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
).

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d

, 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 

 

Page 75



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

7
 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
, 

a
n
d

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 c
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
; 

 P
ro

te
c
t 

g
re

e
n

 b
e

lt
s
 b

u
t 
re

c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h
e

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 t

y
p

e
s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 w

h
e

n
 

d
e
fi
n

in
g
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 g
re

e
n
 b

e
lt
 b

o
u
n

d
a

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

, 
in

 
d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

th
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
n
e

e
d

s
, 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 w
id

e
r 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
a

n
d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
o
f 

s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 w

a
s
te

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t,

 a
re

 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
w

e
ig

h
t 

in
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 g
iv

e
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 

p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
; 

 E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 l
a

y
o

u
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
s
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 w
a

s
te

 m
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t.
 

 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

2
5

 –
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 F

lo
o
d

 R
is

k
 

T
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
fl
o

o
d
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

a
k
e
n

 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
a

t 
a

ll 
s
ta

g
e

s
 i
n

 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 
 

 T
o
 a

v
o

id
 i
n

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
in

 a
re

a
s
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
fl
o
o

d
in

g
, 

a
n

d
  

 T
o
 d

ir
e

c
t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 a
re

a
s
 a

t 
h

ig
h

e
s
t 

ri
s
k
. 

 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
e

n
t,
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
m

e
s
. 

 
 R

e
d

u
c
e
d

 r
is

k
 o

f 
fl
o

o
d

in
g
. 

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

 o
n

 c
lim

a
te

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 

T
h
e

 N
o

tt
in

g
h

a
m

 D
e

c
la

ra
ti
o

n
 o

n
 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a

n
g
e

 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
te

, 
a
t 

a
 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l,
 t

o
 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 U

K
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a

n
g
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
th

e
 K

y
o

to
 

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
c
a

rb
o

n
 d

io
x
id

e
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 2

0
1

0
. 

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 f

o
r 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
. 

 W
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
la

n
s
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
iv

e
ly

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
a

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

, 
a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t
o

 o
u

r 
lo

c
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
, 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
e

n
t,
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
m

e
s
. 

 
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
V

a
le

. 
 R

e
d

u
c
e
d

 r
o

a
d

 c
o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

Page 76



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

8
 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 b
e
n

e
fi
t 
fo

r 
o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 P
u

b
lic

ly
 d

e
c
la

re
, 

w
it
h

in
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 

th
e

 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

g
re

e
n

h
o
u

s
e

 
g
a

s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

o
w

n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
, 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 

e
n

e
rg

y
 s

o
u

rc
in

g
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

, 
tr

a
v
e

l 
a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

, 
w

a
s
te

 
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 d

is
p

o
s
a

l 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
 o

f 
g
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 A
s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n
g
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 o

f 
c
lim

a
te

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 a
n

d
 a

d
a

p
t 
a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 
 E

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
ll 

s
e

c
to

rs
 i
n

 o
u

r 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 a

d
a
p

t 
to

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

, 
to

 
re

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 g
re

e
n
h

o
u

s
e

 g
a

s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 
p

u
b

lic
 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 a
c
ti
o
n

. 
 M

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

p
la

n
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 
a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
. 

 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
o

llu
ti
o
n

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
).

 
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d

, 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

 o
n

 c
lim

a
te

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 In

c
re

a
s
e
d

 g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

n
e

rg
y
 

b
y
 r

e
n

e
w

a
b

le
s
. 

 

T
h
e

 S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

P
la

n
 

1
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 h
a

s
 t
h

e
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

 a
 

d
e

c
e
n

t,
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
 

 
2

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
fl
o

o
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 d

e
tr

im
e

n
t 
to

 
p

u
b

lic
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
, 

th
e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
 

3
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

re
d

u
c
e

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
 

4
. 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 p

o
v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
lo

s
e

 t
h
e

 g
a

p
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

o
u
th

 E
a

s
t 
a

n
d
 

th
e

 r
e

s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 r

e
g
io

n
 

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 

in
 t

h
e
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 o

b
je

c
iv

e
s
. 

Page 77



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

9
 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

 
5

. 
R

a
is

e
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
le

v
e

ls
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
g
io

n
 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 t
o

 a
c
q
u

ir
e

 t
h

e
 

s
k
ill

s
 n

e
e

d
e
d

 t
o

 f
in

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
 i
n

 w
o

rk
 

 
6

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 f
e

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
 

 
7

. 
C

re
a

te
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

 
8

. 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 a
ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 

 
9

. 
E

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

o
u

th
 E

a
s
t 

 1
0

. 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 i
n

 l
a
n

d
 u

s
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
-u

s
e

 o
f 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 l
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
-u

s
e

 o
f 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 f

ro
m

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
, 

a
n
d

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 u
rb

a
n

 
re

n
a

is
s
a

n
c
e

 

1
1

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 a

ir
 p

o
llu

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 

1
2

. 
A

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
 c

a
u

s
e

s
 o

f 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
g
re

e
n

h
o
u
s
e

 g
a

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 S
o

u
th

 
E

a
s
t 

is
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 f
o

r 
it
s
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 

1
3

. 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 t
h
e

 r
e

g
io

n
’s

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

1
4

. 
P

ro
te

c
t,
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
e

n
jo

y
m

e
n

t,
 t
h

e
 

re
g
io

n
’s

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
s
id

e
 a

n
d

 h
is

to
ri
c
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

1
5

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 r

o
a

d
 c

o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
o

llu
ti
o
n

 l
e

v
e

ls
 b

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

tr
a

v
e

l 
c
h

o
ic

e
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d
 f

o
r 

tr
a

v
e

l 
b
y
 c

a
r/

lo
rr

y
 

Page 78



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

1
0

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

1
6

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 g

lo
b

a
l,
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 b

y
 u

s
in

g
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 

a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 

1
7

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 w

a
s
te

 g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l,
 a

n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

 
 1

8
. 
M

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 w

a
te

r 
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
g
io

n
’s

 
ri

v
e

rs
 a

n
d

 c
o
a

s
ts

, 
a

n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 w
a

te
r 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

1
9

. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
e
n

e
rg

y
 

g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 f

ro
m

 r
e

n
e

w
a

b
le

 s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 r
e

g
io

n
 

2
0

. 
E

n
s
u

re
 h

ig
h

 a
n
d

 s
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
o

 e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 
c
a

n
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
g
io

n
 

2
1

. 
S

u
s
ta

in
 e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
re

g
io

n
 

2
2

. 
S

ti
m

u
la

te
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 r

e
v
iv

a
l 
in

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 

2
3

. 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 d

y
n

a
m

ic
, 

d
iv

e
rs

e
 a

n
d

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

-b
a

s
e
d

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 t

h
a
t 

e
x
c
e

ls
 i
n
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 h
ig

h
e

r 
v
a

lu
e

, 
lo

w
e

r 
im

p
a

c
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

2
4

. 
E

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 b

u
o

y
a

n
t,

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

to
u

ri
s
m

 s
e

c
to

r 

2
5

. 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 s

k
ill

e
d

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 l
o

n
g
-

te
rm

 c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
g
io

n
 

 

Page 79



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

1
1

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

T
h
a

m
e

s
 C

o
rr

id
o

r 
A

b
s
tr

a
c
ti
o
n

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

T
o
 m

a
n

a
g
e

 w
a

te
r 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ly
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o
 w

a
te

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 t
h

e
 

T
h
a

m
e

s
 C

o
rr

id
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
a
b

s
tr

a
c
to

rs
, 

ri
v
e

r 
u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 

 

M
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 r

iv
e

r 
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 w
a

te
r 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 

T
h
a

m
e

s
 p

a
th

 M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

2
0

0
6

-2
0

1
1

 (
N

a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g
la

n
d

) 
1

. 
T

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 b

e
 f
u

lly
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
, 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
T

h
a

m
e

s
 P

a
th

. 
 

2
. 

T
o
 s

e
c
u

re
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
T

h
a

m
e

s
 p

a
th

 
 

3
. 

T
o
 m

a
n

a
g
e

 t
h

e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 p

a
th

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

ly
 b

y
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

s
 

m
in

im
a

l 
a

n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

 
4

. 
T

o
 m

a
rk

e
t 

th
e

 T
h

a
m

e
s
 P

a
th

 a
n
d

 i
ts

 c
o

rr
id

o
r 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 u
s
e

. 
 

5
. 

T
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 T
h
a

m
e

s
 P

a
th

 i
s
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

, 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ly

. 
 

6
. 

T
o
 g

a
th

e
r 

a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
 t

o
 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
n
g
o

in
g
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 T
h
a

m
e

s
 

P
a

th
. 

 
7

. 
T

h
e

 T
h
a

m
e

s
 P

a
th

 t
o

 b
e

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 R

iv
e

r 
T

h
a
m

e
s
. 

 
8

. 
T

h
e

 r
o

u
te

r 
o
f 

th
e

 T
h
a

m
e

s
 P

a
th

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

q
u

a
lit

y
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
v
is

it
o

rs
. 

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
o

u
ri
s
m

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 

Page 80



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

1
2

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

9
. 

T
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 T

h
a

m
e

s
 P

a
th

 i
s
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 e

a
s
y
 t

o
 f

o
llo

w
 a

n
d
 

re
a

c
h

e
s
 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 ‘
Q

u
a

lit
y
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f
o

r 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
T

ra
ils

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

’.
 A

ll 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 t

o
 

b
e

 o
f 

a
 h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

d
e

s
ig

n
, 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

, 
s
y
m

p
a

th
e
ti
c
 

to
 t

h
e

 s
u

rr
o
u

n
d

in
g
s
, 

w
e

ll-
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
, 

s
a
fe

, 
a
n

d
 e

a
s
y
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
t 
to

 u
s
e

. 
 

1
0

. T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

o
s
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
o

u
te

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
c
o

rr
id

o
r 

o
f 

th
e

 T
h

a
m

e
s
 P

a
th

 t
h
a

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

T
ra

il 
to

 v
ill

a
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o
w

n
s
 o

r 
a

re
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

p
ro

m
o

te
d

 c
ir
c
u

la
r 

w
a

lk
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 P

a
th

. 
1

1
. T

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 p

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
p

o
in

ts
 

a
lo

n
g
 t

h
e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 P

a
th

 a
n
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

s
in

g
 i
t 

to
 v

is
it
 t

h
e

 T
ra

il.
 

 

1
2

. T
o
 m

a
n

a
g
e

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 T

h
a

m
e

s
 

P
a

th
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

G
ro

u
p

’s
 C

y
c
lin

g
 P

o
lic

y
. 

 

1
3

. T
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

 t
h
e

 v
is

u
a

l,
 e

c
o

lo
g
ic

a
l,
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
a

n
d

 a
rc

h
it
e

c
tu

ra
l 
la

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

rr
id

o
r 

o
f 

th
e

 
T

h
a

m
e

s
 P

a
th

. 
 

1
4

. T
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
it
h

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 

P
a

th
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
o

rr
id

o
r.

 
 

1
5

. T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 

P
a

th
. 

 

1
6

. T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 w

e
ll-

ta
rg

e
te

d
, 

a
c
c
u

ra
te

, 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 b

ra
n

d
e

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o

n
a

l 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
to

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 a
n
d

 
e

n
a
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o
 v

is
it
 a

n
d

 e
n

jo
y
 t

h
e

 T
h

a
m

e
s
 P

a
th

. 

T
h
a

m
e

s
 W

a
te

rw
a

y
 P

la
n

 2
0
0

6
-2

0
1

1
 

(R
iv

e
r 

T
h

a
m

e
s
 A

lli
a

n
c
e

) 
V

is
io

n
 –

 T
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f
re

s
h

w
a

te
r 

T
h
a

m
e

s
 f
o

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

w
ild

lif
e

, 
le

is
u

re
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

Page 81



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

1
3

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

 C
o

re
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
:-

 
1

. 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
u

s
e

rs
 (

o
n

 w
a

te
r 

a
n

d
 l
a
n

d
).

 
2

. 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 r

iv
e

r 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
u

s
e

rs
. 

3
. 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e
d

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

h
e

ri
ta

g
e

, 
a

n
d

 
la

n
d

s
c
a
p

e
 v

a
lu

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 w
a

te
rw

a
y
 c

o
rr

id
o

r.
 

4
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

iv
e

r 
a

n
d
 i
ts

 c
o

rr
id

o
r 

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
o

u
ri
s
m

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 

T
h
e

 R
id

g
e

w
a

y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
1

. 
T

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 b

e
 f
u

lly
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
, 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
h

e
 

R
id

g
e

w
a

y
. 

 2
. 

T
o
 s

e
c
u

re
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
T

h
e
 

R
id

g
e

w
a

y
 

 3
. 

T
o
 m

a
rk

e
t 
T

h
e

 R
id

g
e

w
a

y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
o

rr
id

o
r 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 u
s
e

 

 4
. 

T
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

T
h

e
 R

id
g
e

w
a

y
 i
s
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
. 

 5
. 

T
o
 g

a
th

e
r 

a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
 t

o
 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
n
g
o

in
g
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
T

h
e

 
R

id
g
e

w
a

y
. 

 6
. 

T
h
e

 r
o

u
te

 o
f 

T
h
e

 R
id

g
e

w
a

y
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

q
u

a
lit

y
 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
w

a
lk

e
rs

, 
h

o
rs

e
ri
d
e

rs
 a

n
d

 c
y
c
lis

ts
. 

 7
. 

T
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 T

h
e

 R
id

g
e

w
a

y
 i
s
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 e

a
s
y
 t

o
 f
o

llo
w

 a
n

d
 

re
a

c
h

e
s
 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 'Q
u

a
lit

y
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f
o

r 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
T

ra
ils

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

'. 
A

ll 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 t

o
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
o

u
ri
s
m

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 

Page 82



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

1
4

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

b
e

 o
f 

a
 h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

d
e

s
ig

n
, 

s
y
m

p
a

th
e

ti
c
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
s
, 

w
e

ll-
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

, 
s
a
fe

, 
c
o
m

fo
rt

a
b

le
, 

a
n

d
 e

a
s
y
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

v
e

n
ie

n
t 

to
 u

s
e
. 

 8
. 

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

o
s
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
o

u
te

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
c
o

rr
id

o
r 

o
f 

T
h
e

 R
id

g
e

w
a

y
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 T

ra
il 

to
 v

ill
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

w
n

s
 o

r 
a

re
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

p
ro

m
o

te
d

 c
ir
c
u

la
r 

w
a

lk
s
 

a
n

d
 r

id
e

s
 a

ro
u

n
d
 T

h
e
 R

id
g
e

w
a

y
. 

 9
. 

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 p

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
p

o
in

ts
 

a
lo

n
g
 T

h
e

 R
id

g
e

w
a

y
 a

n
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

s
in

g
 i
t 

to
 v

is
it
 t

h
e

 T
ra

il 
 1

0
. T

o
 d

e
te

r 
ill

e
g
a

l 
u

s
e

 o
f 

T
h
e

 R
id

g
e

w
a

y
 a

n
d

 t
re

s
p

a
s
s
 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
. 

 1
1

. T
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
b
e

tw
e

e
n

 u
s
e

rs
 b

y
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

u
s
e

 a
n

d
 b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
w

h
o

 c
a

n
 l
e

g
a

lly
 u

s
e

 
T

h
e

 R
id

g
e

w
a

y
 s

o
 a

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

 1
2

. T
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

 t
h
e

 v
is

u
a

l,
 e

c
o

lo
g
ic

a
l,
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
a

n
d

 a
rc

h
it
e

c
tu

ra
l 
la

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

rr
id

o
r 

o
f 

T
h

e
 

R
id

g
e

w
a

y
. 

 1
3

. T
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
it
h

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 i
n

 T
h
e

 
R

id
g
e

w
a

y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
o

rr
id

o
r 

(s
e

e
 a

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 7

 f
o
r 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
).

 

 1
4

. T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
T

h
e

 
R

id
g
e

w
a

y
. 

 1
5

. T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 w

e
ll-

ta
rg

e
te

d
, 

a
c
c
u

ra
te

, 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 b

ra
n

d
e

d
 

Page 83



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

1
5

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o

n
a

l 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
to

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 a
n
d

 
e

n
a
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o
 v

is
it
 a

n
d

 e
n

jo
y
 T

h
e

 R
id

g
e

w
a

y
. 

 
T

h
e

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 P

la
n

 2
0
1

6
 

A
im

 1
. 

T
o

 p
ro

te
c

t 
a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c

e
 t

h
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
o

f 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

. 
i.
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

’s
 b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
, 

la
n

d
s
c
a

p
e
 a

n
d

 h
e

ri
ta

g
e

; 
ii.

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 p
o

llu
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

f 
g
re

e
n
h

o
u

s
e

 
g
a

s
e

s
; 

iii
. 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
u

rf
a

c
e

 a
n

d
 

g
ro

u
n

d
w

a
te

r;
 

iv
. 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
o

ils
 a

n
d
 a

g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
la

n
d
. 

 
A

im
 2

. 
T

o
 e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 t

h
e

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

u
s
e

 o
f 

la
n

d
, 

e
n

e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

. 
i.
 t

o
 l
o

c
a

te
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
w

h
e

re
 i
t 

c
a
n

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 
to

 t
ra

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 w
a

lk
in

g
, 

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

; 
ii.

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
g
re

e
n
fi
e

ld
 l
a

n
d

; 
iii

. 
to

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e

s
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

e
n

e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 
a

n
d
 m

in
im

is
e

s
 w

a
s
te

 f
o

r 
d

is
p

o
s
a

l.
 

 A
im

 3
. 

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

li
fe

 
fo

r 
a

ll
 O

x
fo

rd
s

h
ir

e
’s

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

i.
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f
o

r 
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

n
e

w
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e
, 

o
f 

a
n

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

iz
e

 a
n
d

 t
y
p

e
 f
o

r 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

’s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
, 

a
n

d
 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
; 

ii.
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 

to
 j
o

b
s
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
le

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
; 

iii
. 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
r 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
e

n
t,
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
m

e
s
. 

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

. 
 In

c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
V

a
le

. 
  E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 d
y
n

a
m

ic
, 

d
iv

e
rs

e
 a

n
d

 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

-b
a

s
e

d
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
 w

it
h

 
h

ig
h

 v
a

lu
e

 l
o

w
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
o

u
ri
s
m

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

  R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 r
o

a
d

 c
o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
o

llu
ti
o
n

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

Page 84



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

1
6

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 n
e
e

d
s
; 
a

n
d

 
iv

. 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d

 a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

 p
la

c
e

s
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 a

n
d
 

w
o

rk
. 

 
A

im
 4

. 
T

o
 s

u
s

ta
in

 p
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty
 b

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 s

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 
i.
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

ti
n
u

e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

’s
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 e
m

e
rg

in
g
 g

ro
w

th
 s

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 
c
lu

s
te

rs
; 

ii.
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f
o

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
to

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 

n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

ty
’s

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
; 

a
n

d
 

iii
. 

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

iv
e

rs
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

u
ra

l 
e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 i
n

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

. 
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
  S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d

, 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 

  E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

 o
n

 c
lim

a
te

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 In

c
re

a
s
e
d

 g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

n
e

rg
y
 

b
y
 r

e
n

e
w

a
b

le
s
. 

 R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 r
is

k
 o

f 
fl
o

o
d

in
g
. 

  M
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 r

iv
e

r 
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 w
a

te
r 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
. 

  R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 a
ir
, 
n

o
is

e
 a

n
d

 l
ig

h
t 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
. 

 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 

2
0

0
6

-2
0

1
1

 
T

a
c
k
lin

g
 c

o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 

 D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
 S

a
fe

r 
R

o
a

d
s
 

 B
e

tt
e

r 
A

ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

 Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
d

 r
o

a
d

 c
o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
o

llu
ti
o
n

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
 R

e
d

u
c
e
d

 a
ir
, 
n

o
is

e
 a

n
d

 l
ig

h
t 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
. 

 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

(2
0

0
0

) 
T

o
 i
n
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 

 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
e

n
t,
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 

Page 85



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

1
7

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
te

w
a

rd
s
h

ip
 s

c
h
e

m
e

s
 

 T
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
m

i-
n

a
tu

ra
l 

h
a

b
it
a

ts
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
ie

s
, 
p
re

v
e

n
t 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
lo

s
s
e

s
 

a
n

d
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 r
e

s
to

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti
o
n

 
 T

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

s
p

e
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
H

a
b

it
a

ts
 

 T
o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 

 T
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
h

a
b

it
a

ts
 a

n
d

 
s
p

e
c
ie

s
 

 T
o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
n
 b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

 

h
o

m
e

s
. 

 
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
V

a
le

. 
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
o

u
ri
s
m

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d

, 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

 o
n

 c
lim

a
te

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

’s
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
S

u
s
ta

in
in

g
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
’s

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 

 A
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 

 T
a

c
k
lin

g
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 

 Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 

 Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
s
c
e

n
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
 &

 a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

 Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 i
n

e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 t

o
 n

a
rr

o
w

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
e

n
t,
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
m

e
s
. 

 
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
V

a
le

. 
 R

e
d

u
c
e
d

 r
o

a
d

 c
o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
o

llu
ti
o
n

. 
 R

a
is

e
d

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

Page 86



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

1
8

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

in
 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 

 R
a

ti
o

n
a

lis
in

g
 w

a
s
te

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a

n
d

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

 M
a

k
in

g
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
s
e

 o
f 

n
a

tu
ra

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
 In

c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d

, 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

’s
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 2

0
0
6

-2
0

1
6

 
T

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 f

o
u

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t:
 

 P
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 
in

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 

 N
u

rt
u

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
in

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
. 

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
n

in
g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
. 

 O
v
e

rc
o

m
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 o

f 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

 
W

it
h

in
 t
h

e
s
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

s
 t
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

ls
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 1

5
 t

h
e

m
e

s
 

a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

 
P

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
. 

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 i
n

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
lin

k
s
. 

 E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
n
d

 e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e
u

rs
h

ip
. 

 E
x
p

lo
it
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o
f 

th
e

 s
c
ie

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 b

a
s
e

. 
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
e

n
t,
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
m

e
s
. 

 
 R

a
is

e
d

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
V

a
le

. 
  E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 d
y
n

a
m

ic
, 

d
iv

e
rs

e
 a

n
d

 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

-b
a

s
e

d
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
 w

it
h

 
h

ig
h

 v
a

lu
e

 l
o

w
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 r
o

a
d

 c
o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
o

llu
ti
o
n

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

Page 87



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

1
9

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

R
e

m
o

v
in

g
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 g
ro

w
th

. 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

lu
s
te

rs
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
. 

 M
a

x
im

is
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 c

re
a

te
d

 b
y
 t

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

in
n

o
v
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 u

ti
lis

a
ti
o

n
. 

 C
o

n
n

e
c
ti
n

g
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

W
id

e
n

in
g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 
la

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e
t.

 
 In

v
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.
 

 S
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

 L
a

n
d

 u
s
e
. 

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

. 
 H

o
u

s
in

g
. 

 N
a

tu
ra

l 
a
n

d
 b

u
ilt

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.
 

 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
  S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d

, 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 

 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

’s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

T
o
 e

n
a

b
le

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

’s
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 t

o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 a

n
d

 r
e
ta

in
 k

e
y
 

s
ta

ff
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
: 

 
 T

o
 m

a
k
e

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 s
a
fe

r 
b

y
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 a

n
ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r,

 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 
m

is
u

s
e

, 
d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 n
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
d

is
a
ff

e
c
te

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

 T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 j
o

in
e

d
 u

p
, 
p

e
o
p

le
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 t

ra
v
e

l 
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u
t 

th
e

 
c
o

u
n

ty
 

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

  In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 

Page 88



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

2
0

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 p

ro
s
p

e
ri
ty

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
in

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 
 T

o
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
, 
s
e

lf
-e

s
te

e
m

 a
n
d

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 

p
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 o
f 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 b

y
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 l
if
e

lo
n

g
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 

 T
o
 c

re
a

te
 t

h
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

w
e

 w
a

n
t 

n
o

w
, 

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f
u

tu
re

 
 T

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 
 T

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
, 

c
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 l
e

is
u

re
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
h

a
t 

is
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 a
n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l.
 

 C
re

a
ti
n

g
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

C
re

a
ti
n

g
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

  G
re

a
te

r 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

  Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
  

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 R
ig

h
ts

 o
f 
W

a
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
P

la
n
 2

0
0
6

-2
0

1
1

 
(O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il)

 

A
im

 1
 -

 P
u
b

lic
 r

ig
h

ts
 o

f 
w

a
y
 a

re
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
. 

 A
im

 2
 -

 A
 b

e
tt
e

r 
jo

in
e
d

-u
p

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 t

h
a

t 
m

e
e

ts
 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 
d

e
m

a
n
d

s
 o

f 
u

s
e

rs
 w

h
ils

t 
a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
, 

th
e

 n
a

tu
ra

l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 o

u
r 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
h
e

ri
ta

g
e

. 
 A

im
 3

 -
 A

 p
u

b
lic

 r
ig

h
ts

 o
f 

w
a

y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
h

ic
h

 e
n

a
b

le
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

fo
r 

a
ll 

 A
im

 4
 -

 A
 t
h

ri
v
in

g
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
s
id

e
 w

h
e

re
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 v

is
it
o

rs
 a

re
 

a
b

le
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 a
n
d
 e

n
jo

y
 t

h
e

ir
 r

ig
h

ts
, 

in
 a

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 w

a
y
.  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
o

u
ri
s
m

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 J
o

in
t 

H
o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 W

a
s
te

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 2

0
0

1
 -

 2
0
2

0
 

T
o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 

re
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

n
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 c

o
n

s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

, 
a
n

d
 t
o

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
th

e
 w

a
s
te

s
 t

h
e

y
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

. 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d

, 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

. 

Page 89



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

2
1

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

 T
o
 h

e
lp

 h
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 a
n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 
th

e
ir
 w

a
s
te

s
. 

 T
o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 r
e

u
s
e
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
la

m
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

it
e
m

s
 s

o
 

th
a

t 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 o

th
e

rw
is

e
 b

e
 d

e
s
ti
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
d

is
p
o

s
a

l 
c
a

n
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 o

th
e

rs
. 

 T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a

s
te

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 W

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

2
0

0
0

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 E
U

 L
a
n

d
fi
ll 

D
ir
e

c
ti
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

. T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

re
c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 v

a
lu

e
 f

ro
m

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

s
 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 E
U

 L
a

n
d
fi
ll 

D
ir
e

c
ti
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

 T
o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

w
a

y
s
 o

f 
d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 
s
tr

e
a

m
, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 t

h
o

s
e

 e
le

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

e
a
m

 w
h

ic
h

 
a

re
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 

m
o

s
t 
p

o
llu

ti
n

g
. 

 T
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

la
n

d
fi
ll 

s
it
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

is
p
o

s
a

l 
o
f 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

s
. 

 T
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

w
a

s
te

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

re
 s

u
it
a

b
ly

 s
iz

e
d

 a
n

d
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
m

in
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

. 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 w

e
ll 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
, 
g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n

d
 a

m
e

n
it
y
 c

o
n

s
tr

a
in

ts
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

s
u

it
a

b
le

 s
it
e

s
. 

 T
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
m

a
rk

e
ts

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

v
e

re
d

 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
. 

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

 o
n

 c
lim

a
te

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 

Page 90



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

2
2

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

 T
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 m
e
th

o
d

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

w
it
h

in
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

  
 

V
a

le
 o

f 
W

h
it
e

 H
o

rs
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 
B

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d
 l
in

k
a
g
e

s
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

T
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

n
g
e

s
ti
o
n

, 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

n
d
 e

x
p

a
n
d

e
d

 c
y
c
le

 t
ra

c
k
s
, 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 r

o
a

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

, 
G

re
a

te
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 m
o

re
 s

y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
 a

n
d

 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

P
a

rk
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
 A

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
, 
re

lia
b

le
 a

n
d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

a
b

o
u

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

e
v
e

n
ts

 e
tc

, 
E

n
h

a
n

c
e
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
, 

M
o

re
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

n
e

w
 t

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
, 

G
re

a
te

r 
a

n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

M
o

re
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 p

o
in

ts
 (

e
.g

. 
s
h

o
p

s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a
l 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
).

 
 R

e
c

re
a

ti
o

n
, 
C

u
lt

u
re

 a
n

d
 L

e
is

u
re

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

E
x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e

s
/a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 v
e

n
u
e

s
, 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
b

e
tt
e

r 
n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
 a

m
o
n

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
, 

G
re

a
te

r 
u

s
e

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n

tr
o

l 
o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 

s
e

c
u

re
 o

p
e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

s
. 

 S
a

fe
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

  
B

e
tt

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 a

lla
y
 t

h
e

 f
e
a

r 
o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
e

n
t,
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
m

e
s
  

 Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

. 
 R

e
d

u
c
e
d

 r
o

a
d

 c
o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
o

llu
ti
o
n

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 R
a

is
e

d
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

 

Page 91



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

2
3

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t
o
 t

a
c
k
le

 a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r,

 
M

o
re

 v
is

ib
le

 p
o

lic
in

g
, 

B
e

tt
e

r 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

tr
a

ff
ic

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
. 

 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
  

R
e

d
u

c
e
 l
it
te

r 
b
o

th
 i
n

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 f
ly

 t
ip

s
, 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

G
re

a
te

r 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a
n

d
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 o

n
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
is

s
u
e

s
, 

E
n

s
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 m
a
n

n
e

r.
 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

  
P

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
re

 g
e
n

u
in

e
ly

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

fo
r 

k
e

y
 

w
o

rk
e

rs
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
o

c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
, 

E
n

s
u

re
 b

a
la

n
c
e

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

 m
o

re
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o
n

 s
it
e

s
, 

P
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 a
n
d

 b
e

tt
e

r 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 p

e
o
p

le
. 

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 L

if
e
lo

n
g

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

 
E

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

s
, 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h

e
 s

o
c
ia

l/
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
/ 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
b
e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

le
a

rn
in

g
, 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d

 g
u

a
rd

ia
n

s
, 

P
ro

m
o
te

 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

. 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 i
s
o
la

ti
o

n
, 

M
a

x
im

is
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
, 

G
re

a
te

r 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

y
o
u

n
g
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 g

e
n
e

ra
lly

, 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

 
V

a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e

 H
o

rs
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
d

e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
 a

n
d

 p
u
b

lic
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e
n

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
, 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
o

lu
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
w

e
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

Page 92



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

2
4

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

s
o

 t
h
a

t 
e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 c
a
n

 t
a

k
e

 p
a

rt
 i
n

 o
u

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 t
h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ff
e

c
t 

o
u

r 
liv

e
s
 

 C
re

a
te

 a
 s

a
fe

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

a
m

o
n

g
 V

a
le

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 
 E

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 w

h
ic

h
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
a

ll 
w

h
o

 l
iv

e
 i
n

, 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 o
r 

v
is

it
 t

h
e

 V
a

le
 

 H
e

lp
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 V
a

le
 t
o

 
re

a
lis

e
 t

h
e

ir
 f

u
ll 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
 P

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
p
e

o
p

le
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 V
a

le
 

 P
ro

te
c
t 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
b

u
ilt

 a
n

d
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
 

in
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
V

a
le

. 
 R

e
d

u
c
e
d

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l.
 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
 

Page 93



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

2
5

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

G
re

a
t 
W

e
s
te

rn
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 F

o
re

s
t 

P
la

n
  

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 G
re

a
te

r 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
V

a
le

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
 

Page 94



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

2
6

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

  
N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
s
e

x
 D

o
w

n
s
 A

re
a

 o
f 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g
 N

a
tu

ra
l 
B

e
a

u
ty

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
P

la
n

 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n
h

a
n
c
in

g
 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
a

n
d
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

  C
e

le
b

ra
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
a

s
t 

 
 C

o
n

s
e

rv
in

g
 r

e
m

o
te

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n

q
u

ill
it
y
  

 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
V

a
le

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 

Page 95



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

2
7

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
  

 S
u

s
ta

in
in

g
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
  

 T
h
e

 l
a

n
d

-b
a

s
e

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 a

s
 c

u
s
to

d
ia

n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

  
 P

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 a

 l
o

w
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 

 E
n

jo
y
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 a

n
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
ri
v
e

r 
 D

iv
e

rs
if
y
in

g
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
  

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 s
k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
u
tu

re
  

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
  

 E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 t
ra

v
e

l 
 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
  

 M
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 

 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
 R

a
is

e
d

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

 C
re

a
ti
n

g
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 r
o

a
d

 c
o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
o

llu
ti
o
n

. 
  

V
a

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

 P
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 f

o
r 

k
e

y
 

w
o

rk
e

rs
) 

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 H

o
m

e
 R

e
n
e

w
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
C

h
o

ic
e

 B
a

s
e

d
 L

e
tt

in
g
s
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
e

n
t,
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ly

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
m

e
s
  

 R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l.
 

 

Page 96



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

2
8

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

 
V

a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e

 H
o

rs
e

 E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 T

o
u

ri
s
m

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

2
0

0
1

/2
0
0

2
 

 

T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 V

a
le

’s
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 e
n
h

a
n

c
e

 
it
s
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
; 

 T
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e

 v
it
a

lit
y
 o

f 
th

e
 e

a
s
t,

 a
n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n
d

 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 t

h
e

 c
e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 V
a

le
; 

 T
o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
; 

 T
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
p

e
o
p

le
 i
n

 t
h
e

 V
a

le
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

s
k
ill

s
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e
m

e
n

t 
to

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
; 

 T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 t

o
u

ri
s
m

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i
n

h
e

re
n

t 
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 V

a
le

; 
 T

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 r

o
le

 o
f 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
; 

 T
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

 t
h
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 V
a

le
 a

n
d

 
m

a
in

ta
in

 i
t 
a

s
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
, 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 

v
is

it
o

rs
; 

 T
o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 b
e

tt
e

r 
lin

k
s
 w

it
h

 
E

u
ro

p
e

; 
 T

o
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
p
u

b
lic

, 
p
ri

v
a

te
 a

n
d

 

R
a

is
e

d
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
V

a
le

. 
  E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 d
y
n

a
m

ic
, 

d
iv

e
rs

e
 a

n
d

 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

-b
a

s
e

d
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
 w

it
h

 
h

ig
h

 v
a

lu
e

 l
o

w
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
o

u
ri
s
m

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 n
a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
 

Page 97



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

2
9

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

n
 e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

k
e

y
 p

la
y
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

; 
 T

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
th

e
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

is
s
u

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 r
e

s
e
a

rc
h

 a
n
d

 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t.
 

 
V

a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e

 H
o

rs
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

A
rt

s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

2
 –

 
2

0
0
5

 
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
, 
a

d
v
is

e
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

rt
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

in
 t

h
e
 V

a
le

; 
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
rt

s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

 r
u

ra
l 
a

re
a

s
; 

 A
d

v
o

c
a

te
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
a

rt
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
; 

 E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h
e

 a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
n

o
n

-a
rt

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 a
re

a
s
; 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

, 
e

n
h
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 a
rt

s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
n

d
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
; 

a
n

d
 

 U
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
 

G
re

a
te

r 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 b
u

ilt
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
 

V
a

le
 Y

o
u

th
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

2
0

0
6

 -
 2

0
0

9
 

 

T
h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
’s

 v
is

io
n

 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 

in
 t

h
e
 V

a
le

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
: 

 
L

iv
e

 a
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
if
e

; 
 S

ta
y
 s

a
fe

; 
 F

u
lf
il 

th
e

ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l;
 

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 R
a

is
e

d
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

 R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 

Page 98



V
a
le

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
o

p
in

g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
 

3
0

 

P
la

n
 o

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
im

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

R
e

la
te

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

G
e

t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
o

u
t 

o
f 

lif
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 s

k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
h

o
o
d

. 
 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l.
 

 
V

a
le

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

2
0

0
5

 -
 2

0
0

8
 

T
h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
’s

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
im

s
 a

re
: 

 
T

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 V

a
le

’s
 r

o
a
d

s
 

 T
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 

in
 t

h
e
 V

a
le

 

 T
o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 V

a
le

 a
 c

le
a

n
e

r,
 g

re
e

n
e

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 T
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 v
o

lu
m

e
 c

ri
m

e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 
a

n
d

 a
c
q
u

is
it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
) 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

b
y
 1

0
.1

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

8
 

 T
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 h

a
rm

 c
a
u

s
e

d
 b

y
 d

ru
g
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
m

is
u

s
e

 

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

V
a

le
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

 R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 a
ir
, 
n

o
is

e
 a

n
d

 l
ig

h
t 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
. 

 

Page 99



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

31 

Core Strategy SA Scoping Report – A2 Baseline Information  
 
 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 Part A2 of the sustainability appraisal process involves the collection of information 

about the Vale so as to provide essential background to the appraisal. Information 
has to cover the broad range of environmental, social and economic matters which 
are involved in assessing sustainability. This potentially involves an enormous 
amount of information. The aim has been to present sufficient information to provide 
an overall understanding of the general situation in the Vale. Greater detail could be 
provided but a balance has to be achieved between detail and clarity. It is felt that 
sufficient detail is presented to identify sustainability issues without an 
overwhelming level of information.    
 

2.0 Population/Demography 
 
2.1 One very significant factor in the planning of an area is the level of the population. If 

the level is rising it often means an increased demand for housing and related to that 
demand for employment and facilities such as transport infrastructure and retailing. 
The level of the population in the Vale is therefore an important piece of contextual 
information for the planning process.  

 
2.2 An understanding of the population of the Vale and of trends in its movement is 

therefore essential parts of the context for the deposit draft Local Plan. In the 2001 
Census the Vale was found to have a resident population at the time of 
some115,627. This had increased by 3% since the 1991 Census. As indicated on the 
NOMIS organisation’s website the 2005 mid year population estimate was 117,000 
showing a further small increase. Information provided by the National Statistics 
Office (NSO) shows that between 1982 and 2002 the Vale’s population increased by 
12%. The population projection for 2011 indicates that the Vale’s population will 
reach 120,168 which is a rise of 4,541 or nearly 4% since 2001. 

 
2.3 All the relevant information sources show a gradually increasing resident population 

which must be taken into account in the level of housing development the Council 
must plan for. However, to put this information into context, the NSO’s profile of the 
Vale refers to population density which in the Vale in 2002 averaged 202 people per 
square kilometre, compared with an average of 421, for the South East region and 
380 people per square kilometre for England overall. So although the Vale’s 
population is rising it is still a mainly rural area. 

 
2.4 Another significant contextual factor for future planning is the age structure of the 

local population. A young population will tend to indicate a greater need for 
employment and education facilities. An older population will mean that education 
and employment facilities are not needed as much due to the greater 
preponderance of retired residents.  

 
2.5 The 2001 Census found that the age structure was very similar to that of England 

and Wales and the South East, with only minor differences. The NSO website 
shows that there were comparatively slightly more 5 to 19 year olds at19.6% in the 
Vale than the SE or England and Wales, then slightly fewer 20 to 44 year olds at 

Page 100



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

32 

33.7%, slightly more 45 to 64 year olds at 25.4 and less over 65s at 15.44%. In 
comparison then the Vale has slightly more young people, its working age 
population is skewed to the over 45s but there are fewer retired residents than 
would be expected for England and Wales or the South East. 

 
2.6 This information indicates that there may be more pressure for family housing than 

housing for the retired but the differences are not enough to produce a dramatic 
difference when comparing the Vale to other areas. This information is monitored 
via the mid year estimates but the only accurate figures are those produced by the 
national census every ten years. 
 

2.7 In 2011 the population of the Vale is expected to be 120,168. In comparison to 2001 
there will be proportionally slightly less 0 to 4s at 5.7% and slightly less 5 to 19s at 
19.4%. The proportion of 20 to 44s will decrease in proportion significantly to 
30.5%. In contrast the proportion of 45 to 64s will rise to 27.1% and the proportion 
of 65+ will rise to 17.3%. This is a reflection of national population changes with an 
increase in the proportion of the population over 45. In the Vale this means the 45+ 
category is expected to increase from 40.85% of the population in 2001 to 44.36% 
in 2011. In common with the rest of the country this greater longevity will increase 
the number of single person households and increase housing demand. 
 

2.8 There are five main settlements in the Vale which are Abingdon, Wantage, Grove, 
Botley and Faringdon. The largest is Abingdon with a 2001 population of 31,329 
which is expected to reach 32,438 by 2011. The next largest is Wantage with a 
2001 population of 10,511 which is expected to rise to 11,373 by 2011. The parish 
of Grove had a population of 7,845 in 2001 with the ward population slightly lower at 
7,428. The Grove ward population is expected to reach 9,249 by 2011. The area of 
Botley approximates to the parish of Cumnor which had a population of 5,503 in 
2001. The larger ward of Appleton and Cumnor had a population of 6,409 in 2001 
and this is expected to decline to 6,166 by 2011. In 2001 the parish of Great 
Faringdon had a population of 6,187 and the larger ward of Faringdon and the 
Coxwells had a population of 7,037. The ward population is expected to reach 
7,851 by 2011. 
 

2.9 The total population of the more ‘urban’ wards, which still take in some surrounding 
settlements, was 56,306 in 2001 with the remaining more ‘rural’ wards in the Vale 
totalling 59,466. This ‘rural’ population therefore accounted for just over 51% of the 
Vale’s population in 2001. By 2011 the ‘urban’ wards are expected to account for 
60,771 persons with 58,542 in the ‘rural’ wards thus tipping the population towards 
a more ‘urban’ character in terms of where people live. However, the ‘urban’ part of 
the Vale consists of two market towns, two expanded villages and the suburban 
area of Botley. The character of the Vale will therefore continue to be rural but by 
2011 the majority of its population (just under 51%) will live in the wards containing 
its larger settlements. As development is expected to continue to focus on the larger 
settlements this will lead to an increasing proportion of the Vale’s population living 
in its larger settlements compared to the rural area.  
 

2.10 In the longer term the Vale’s population is expected to continue to grow. The Office 
of National Statistics publishes long term predictions based on long term trends. 
The latest of these predictions for the Vale runs from 2004 to 2028. This shows that 
the population will increase by 11,100 persons or 9.5% to 127,300. I should be 

Page 101



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

33 

noted that this is based on extrapolating current trends and is based on an 
estimated base figure for 2004. Actual growth may be higher or lower than this. 
However together with expected further reductions in household size the predicted 
growth in population will mean a continuing demand for new housing. 
 

2.11 As well as the overall increase in population there will also be changes in the age 
structure of the population. For example the numbers of over 75s will increase by 
81% and will form 12.7% of the population in 2028 compared to 7.7% in 2004. 
Given the high levels of single households in this group this is one of the main 
reasons for decreasing household sizes. Another significant change will be in those 
of working age relative to the proportions of children and retired. The figures show 
that the numbers of persons below 15 and above 59 years of age will rise by 12,800 
persons whilst those around working age will fall by 1,700. This has implications for 
the ability of the working population to support those who are not working. 

 
3.0 Housing  

 
3.1 During the 1960s there was substantial house building at Abingdon, Wantage and 

Faringdon, and in most of the larger villages, especially Grove. Planning policies 
then focused on restraint of development to protect the environment and the 
essentially rural nature of the District, which resulted in a reduction in the rate of 
population growth. The most recent Structure Plan to 2016 emphasized the 
concentration of development on the main urban areas with Grove proposed as a 
main location for development. Provision was also made for relatively modest 
development in other towns and villages where there is a reasonable range of 
employment services and community facilities. 
 

3.2 The total number of dwellings in the District as of 31st March 2004 was 47,765. The 
housing stock in the District is relatively modern, with 40% being built since 1964, 
against national and regional averages of 36.6% and 43% respectively. The 
proportion of older dwellings is less than the regional average. 15% of the stock 
was built prior to 1919 against a regional average of 20.5%. 

 
3.3 Of the nearly 3,000 properties built since 1991, 15% have been in the social sector, 

less than the regional average of 18%. Of the total stock 12.8% is Affordable 
Housing. Housing stock in the District has a relatively lower density compared to the 
regional average. 

 
3.4 At the 2001 census, 38.7% of homes were detached, 31.4% semi-detached and 

18.5% were terraced. Flats and smaller converted properties amounted to only 
10.1% of homes, despite the rapidly increasing number of smaller households and 
an increased emphasis on this type of development in recent years. 

 
3.5 The level of owner occupation is similar to the average for the South East Region 

but above the national average of 74.4% (2001 Census). The level of outright owner 
occupation in the District is 32.3% which compares to a figure of 29.75% for 
Oxfordshire as a whole. As at 31 March 2004 the tenure of housing in the District 
was as follows: 

 
Type of Accommodation Percentage 
Owner Occupied  76.2 

Page 102



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

34 

Housing Association  12.8 

Private Rented (estimated)  8 
Other (e.g. LA, Almshouses)  3 
TOTAL:  100 

 
3.6 Of the above, 349 dwellings were vacant, which equates to a figure of 0.007% of 

the total dwelling stock. 
 

3.7 Whilst the rate of population growth may have subsided, there has continued to be 
a dramatic increase in the number of households. This reflects the national trend 
towards smaller and more rapidly changing households. In the 2001 Census the 
average household size in the Vale was 2.52 persons. This compared to 2.43 
persons for the South East and 2.4 persons for England. The draft South East Plan 
predicts that the figure will be 2.19 persons in 2026 in the Vale. 
 

3.8 House prices in the UK have risen steeply in recent years, often outpacing wage 
increases. This has introduced a situation where housing is becoming less affordable 
in many areas. As set out in PPG3 Housing the Government therefore wishes to see 
a proportion of new houses being affordable and policy H16 in the draft deposit Local 
Plan is intended to reflect this requirement in the Vale. 

 
3.9 A key factor in the provision of suitable housing is the affordability of houses in 

relation to wages. According to figures published by the Land Registry the average 
house price in the Vale has risen from £166,296 in 2001 to £243,943 in 2005. This 
equates to a rise of £77,647 or 46.7% over 5 years or an average of £15,529.4 per 
annum which is 9.3% per annum compared to the 2001 average price. In comparison 
information from the NOMIS organisation’s website shows that average pay in the 
Vale has only increased from £26,713 in 2002 to £30,015 in 2005. This equates to a 
rise of 3% per annum in relation to 2002 wage levels. Housing in the Vale has 
therefore become significantly less affordable relative to pay.  

 
3.10 This conclusion is supported from the house price to income ratio information as 

published by the Audit Commission using information from the Joseph Rowntree 
Foundation. This shows that in 2003 house prices in the Vale were 4.54 times higher 
than incomes in the 20-39 age group. This compares to a national average ratio of 
house price to income of 4.13. Given the figures set out above it is likely that the ratio 
has continued to increase in the Vale. 

 
3.11 Information supplied by the County Council also supports the conclusion that there is 

a severe disparity between wages and house prices in the Vale. The information 
shows that the ratio between the mean house price and gross annual pay for all 
employee jobs in 2004 was 9.6. This was above the ratio for England of 8 and the 
ratio for the South East of 9.5. It was however below the ratio for Oxfordshire of 10.3. 
House price rises have slowed recently but in the longer term it is still likely that 
house prices will rise at a level which may be greater than wage rises. Affordability is 
therefore likely to remain a key issue for the Vale in the future. 

 
3.12 Government guidance contained in Planning Policy Statement 1 – Delivering 

Sustainable Development (PPS1) states that in preparing development plans, 
planning authorities should seek to promote the more efficient use of land through 
“the use of suitably located previously developed land and buildings”. A core 

Page 103



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

35 

indicator in the Annual Monitoring Report is an output indicator in relation to the use 
of previously developed land for development. It shows how many of the dwellings 
being created in the Vale are on previously used or ‘brownfield’ land and therefore 
to what extent Government policy is being implemented as well as how relatively 
sustainable housing development in the Vale is. 

 
3.13 The percentage of new homes built in an area on brownfield land is a Best Value 

Performance Indicator which councils are required to monitor and publish as part of 
their Performance Plans. In the Vale 277 homes were constructed during 2004/05 
and of these 254 were constructed on previously developed or ‘brownfield’ land. 
This equates to a percentage of 92% which indicates that the Vale is very 
successful at directing development to brownfield land and is therefore relatively 
sustainable in its use of greenfield land for housing. This is also not an isolated set 
of results as the figures for 2003/04 showed that 87% of new homes had been 
delivered on brownfield land. 

 
3.14 In comparison to performance elsewhere information supplied to the Council by the 

Audit Commission shows that the average for similar councils across England for 
2004/05 was 80% and for 2003/04 the figure was 75%. The Vale has therefore 
exceeded the national average for the last two years. 

 
3.15 Continued delivery of new housing on brownfield land is dependant on the 

availability of suitable brownfield land. Given the largely rural nature of the Vale and 
the major housing allocations on greenfield sites in the draft Local Plan it will not be 
possible to maintain these high figures. The Council is however aiming to deliver 
60% of new homes on brownfield land in future years in its performance plan. 
 

3.16 As well as directing new housing development to suitable brownfield land, a further 
way in which development can be more sustainable is by ensuring that whilst 
having regard to the need to maintain high quality design, densities of development 
are kept as high as possible. This ensures that the amount of land taken for 
development is minimised. Government policy in PPS1 is that in preparing 
development plans, planning authorities should seek to promote the more efficient 
use of land through higher density, mixed use development. This is reflected in 
policy H14 of the draft deposit Local Plan which aims to deliver 50 dwellings per 
hectare on sites close to the centre of the Vale’s main settlements, 40 dwellings per 
hectare elsewhere in those settlements and at Didcot, and then 30 dwellings per 
hectare in the rest of the Vale. 
 

3.17 The relevant core output indicator from the Annual Monitoring Report is divided into 
three levels. The lowest is for dwellings built at less than 30 dwellings per hectare 
(dph), the next is for dwellings built between 30 and 50 dph and the highest is for 
dwellings built at over 50 dph. Information on the densities which will be achieved 
on sites over 25 dwellings where planning permission has been granted or they are 
allocated in the draft deposit Local Plan 2011 has been collected since 1996. This 
shows that of the 4,219 dwellings permitted or allocated over this period 665 or 16% 
were to be constructed at less than 30 dph, 2,109 or 50% were to be constructed at 
between 30 and 50 dph and 1,445 or 34% were to be constructed at over 50 dph. 
The average density over all permitted or allocated sites for over 25 dwellings in the 
Vale was 40 dph. The distribution between the various densities is shown in the 
chart below. 

Page 104



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

36 

 

Density of Permitted Housing Development in the 

Vale of White Horse

Less than 30 dph 30 - 50 dph 50+ dph

 
 

3.18 The Government’s guidance set out in PPG3 ‘Housing’ is that planning authorities 
should avoid developments of less than 30 dph, encourage housing development at 
30 to 50 dph and in suitable locations aim to exceed 50 dph. This is the basis for 
the deposit draft Local Plan policy. However no such policy is contained in the 1999 
adopted Local Plan. The Council was therefore only able to achieve densities in 
accord with PPG3 via negotiation due to the limited weight which could be given to 
emerging Local Plan policies. Following adoption of the Local Plan policy the 
Council is now able to require higher densities. Therefore with the circumstances 
which have prevailed since 1996 it is considered that the achievement of an overall 
density of 40 dph with 84% of new homes permitted or allocated at densities greater 
than 30 dph is in accord with national policy on densities. 

 
4.0 Economy  

 
4.1 In 2005/6 the total of employees working in the Vale was 63,200. As can be seen 

below the Vale is ahead of the national and regional figures for the top three socio 
economic groupings and is behind the national and regional figures for groups 6 to 
8. The figure for the lowest grouping is however above the average for the South 
East. 
 
Employment by occupation (Apr 2005-Mar 2006) 

 

  
Vale of White 
Horse 
(%) 

South East 
(%) 

Great Britain 
(%) 

Soc 2000 major group 1-3 51.6 46.1 41.9 

1 Managers and senior 
officials 

18.5 17.1 14.9 

2 Professional 
occupations 

17.7 14.0 12.7 

3 Associate professional 
& technical 

15.4 15.0 14.3 

Soc 2000 major group 4-5 23.6 23.1 23.4 

4 Administrative & 
secretarial 

14.1 12.9 12.5 

Page 105



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

37 

5 Skilled trades 
occupations 

9.5 10.2 10.9 

Soc 2000 major group 6-7 11.1 14.9 15.6 

6 Personal service 
occupations 

5.2 7.9 7.9 

7 Sales and customer 
service occupations 

5.9 7.0 7.7 

Soc 2000 major group 8-9 13.1 15.8 18.9 

8 Process plant & 
machine operatives 

2.0 5.4 7.5 

9 Elementary 
occupations 

11.1 10.4 11.4 

 
4.2 The level of unemployed in an area is an important contextual indicator for the state 

of the local economy. Generally the lower the level of unemployment in an area the 
better a local economy is performing. Whether this is in well paid occupations is 
another matter however, so low unemployment may not mean that the local economy 
is thriving. Also the level of unemployed cannot be accurately counted. Only those 
who are qualified for and are claiming the Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) can be 
counted. Actual unemployment is always higher. It does however provide a 
benchmark with which to compare areas. 

 
 Vale of White Horse 

(%) 
South East (%) GB (%) 

Apr-00 0.8 1.7 3.1 

Apr-01 0.7 1.4 2.7 

Apr-02 0.7 1.5 2.7 

Apr-03 1.0 1.6 2.6 

Apr-04 0.8 1.5 2.4 

Apr-05 0.7 1.5 2.4 
 

4.3 As set out in the table above the Vale’s level of JSA claimants is consistently low in 
comparison to both the South East region and the levels for Great Britain. 

 
4.4 Another contextual indicator which can help to demonstrate the health or otherwise of 

the local economy is the percentage of the working age residents that are 
economically active. This gives a good idea of the economic productivity of an area. 
Again it does not indicate how prosperous an area is. As can be seen from the table 
below the Vale’s population has consistently maintained a higher proportion being 
economically active in comparison to the South East and to Great Britain. In more 
recent years however the Vale has trended downwards to the same level as the 
South East.  

 

Page 106



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

38 

Ratio of Ecomically Active to Working Age Population

72

74
76

78
80

82
84

86
88

90

Mar 99-Feb

00

Mar 00-Feb

01

Mar 01-Feb

02

Mar 02-Feb

03

Mar 03-Feb

04

Jan 04-Dec

04

Vale of White Horse (%) South East (%) GB (%)

 
 

5.51 The level of qualifications within the working population is another useful contextual 
indicator for the potential strength of the local economy. A working population which 
is well qualified will generally be able to take advantage of higher level jobs and 
generate greater levels of income. It also can make an area more attractive to 
employers. However, very well qualified people work in the public sector which is 
generally not relatively well paid. 

Page 107



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

39 

Qualifications of the Labour Force 
 

 
Vale of 

White Horse 

(%) 

South East 

(%) 

GB 

(%) 

NVQ4 and above 34.6 28.5 25.2 

NVQ3 and above 51.1 46.9 43.1 

NVQ2 and above 72.0 66 61.5 

NVQ1 and above 82.7 81.1 76 

Other Qualifications 6.0 8.0 8.8 

No Qualifications 11.3 10.8 15.1  
 

 

4.5 As can be seen from the table above the Vale has above average results for 
qualifications in relation to the rest of Great Britain and has above average results 
for every category in relation to the South East except for that for “no qualifications” 
which is slightly worse than the South East. This means that the population of the 
Vale is relatively better able to take advantage of employment opportunities in terms 
of qualifications than the rest of the UK. Information on this matter is obtained from 
NOMIS 
 

4.6 Another indicator which can help to give a picture of an area’s economic health is 
the number of businesses registering for VAT each year in an area. This gives an 
insight into the level of business formation in an area. In 2003 there were 425 
businesses registering for VAT in the Vale. This was 4.5% lower than in 2002 but 
was 10.4% higher than in 1994. In comparison the South East experienced an 
increase in VAT registrations in 2003 of 6.7% in comparison to 2002 and showed 
an increase 11.9% in comparison to 2004. This means that in the short term the 
Vale has not performed well compared to the South East but in the longer term the 
Vale is close to the figure for the South East. 
 

4.7 Another important area of the economy is retailing. Within the Vale Abingdon has 
the widest range of shops which are comparable to similar sized towns. In Wantage 
the choice of shops is limited and there are less national retailers than in Abingdon. 
Elsewhere Grove relates to Wantage for its main shopping needs, Faringdon has a 
good selection of shops for its size and Botley has a district centre which primarily 
serves as day to day shopping. 
 

4.8 Recent assessment in a Retail Capacity Study concluded in relation to convenience 
shopping that the retention of floorspace expenditure in the District is relatively high 
and existing retail floorspace is trading healthily.  In relation to comparison shopping 
the study concluded that retention of comparison expenditure is much lower than 
that for convenience shopping with the majority of such expenditure occurring in 
Oxford, Swindon and Reading.  
 

4.9 In the future the study conclude that expected improvements in shopping provision 
such as the new Sainsburys in Wantage would meet convenience need up to 2007 
with only a modest increase likely before 2011. This meant that a retail allocation 
was not required in the Local Plan 2011. For comparison shopping any 
development was also expected to be within existing resources. In the longer term 
the Draft South East Plan refers the further development of Didcot as a matter for 
priority support whereas oxford is regarded as physically constrained and lacking in 
physical capacity for development. 

Page 108



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

40 

 
5.0 Travel  

 
5.1 The Vale of White Horse has the A34 trunk road running north/south close to its 

eastern edge. This gives access to the M4 to the south and the M40 to the north. 
The A417 and A420 roads run diagonally across it linking to Swindon to the west 
and Didcot to the east. The main east west railway line runs through the Vale but 
there are no stations currently within the Vale. The station at Didcot is however 
close to the District’s boundary and a new station is proposed at Grove. 
 

5.2 In terms of the transport methods which Vale residents use to get to work the 
majority (66%) drive, or are a passenger in, a car. This is slightly higher than the 
South East (65%) and higher than the rate for England (61%). This high level of car 
usage is partly balanced by the fact that a higher percentage of people travel by bus 
or cycle in the Vale (12%) compared to the level in the South East (7%). Also a 
slightly higher number of people work from home in the Vale (11%) compared to the 
South East (10%).  Probably due to the lack of rail stations in the Vale only a small 
percentage of workers travel by rail (2%) compared to the South East (6%). Also 
travelling to work on foot is less popular in the Vale (8%) than in the South East 
(10%). 
 

5.3 In common with the rest of the UK car ownership has consistently been rising in the 
Vale. In 1981 78% of households in the Vale had access to at least one car when 
the figure for Oxfordshire was 73%. By 2001 86% of households in the Vale had 
access to at least one car when the figure for Oxfordshire was 82%. Over the same 
period the number of cars owned by Vale households rose by 73% and by 78% 
across Oxfordshire. Figures from the Census show that longer distance commuting 
for work is increasing. In 1991 5,992 residents commuted out of the Vale for work. 
By 2001 this had increased by almost 35% to 8,062. The increase across 
Oxfordshire was slightly lower at 33%. 
 

5.4 Traffic on Oxfordshire’s roads between 1995 and 2005 rose by over 20% on 
strategic roads including the M40 and the trunk roads. In comparison traffic on the 
non-strategic roads only grew by nearly 11%. For all roads traffic grew by 14.5% in 
Oxfordshire over 10 years compared to a growth of 16.2% on all roads nationally. 
For the future the Local Transport Plan 2006 to 2011 states that as a result of 
expected development the number of vehicle trips in the County could increase by 
more than 25% by 2011 and almost 40% by 2021 compared to 2000. National 
growth is expected to be lower to 2011 at 18%. The effect of this level of growth 
without road improvements would be severe congestion on major routes with a 
lengthening of peak traffic hours and diversion of traffic on to minor routes. 

 

Page 109



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

41 

6.0 Historic Environment  
 

6.1 The area covered by the Vale has supported human habitation for thousands of 
years and it therefore has a rich and varied historic environment. Ancient remains 
dot the Downs to the south and the Vale’s three market towns grew to prosperity in 
the middle ages. The Vale currently has 52 designated Conservation Areas within 
which there are certain limitations on development. There are also over 2000 Listed 
Buildings in the Vale where changes to their structure or setting are strictly 
controlled. As well as the built environment the vale also has eight historic parks 
and gardens that are included in the English Heritage National Register of Parks 
and Gardens of Special Historic Interest. 
 

6.2 With the long history of human habitation the Vale also has a significant number of 
important archaeological sites. At present there are 68 Scheduled Ancient 
Monuments in the Vale where consent is required from the Secretary of State for 
any works. These include such sites as the Neolithic long barrow called Wayland 
Smithy and the Roman temple at Frilford. New archaeological sites are also 
constantly being found and assessed and development is likely to lead to the 
discovery of further sites and artefacts.  

 
7.0 Natural Environment  
 
7.1 The Vale also has a rich natural environment. Among the diverse habitats are a 

broken band of Ancient Woodland on the North Corallian Ridge, the Chalk Downs 
which are designated as an AONB, fenland and heathland forming some of 
Oxfordshire’s rarest habitats and some traditional hay meadows in floodplains of the 
Thames and Ock rivers. The area of the Vale within the AONB is 23.4% or 135 sq 
km of its total land area and 908 hectares are currently designated as 23 Sites of 
Special Scientific Interest. Two sites are also candidate european Special Areas of 
Conservation. 
 

7.2 A core indicator in the Council’s Annual Monitoring Report is the change in areas 
and populations of biodiversity importance. The first part refers to change in priority 
habitats and species (by type). Information for this indicator is supplied by the 
Thames Valley Environmental Records Centre (TVERC). The information relates to 
recent survey data (5 years old) for County Wildlife Sites (CWS) but older data 
(approx. 15 years old) has been used for Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 
as discussed below. Only designated sites– CWS and SSSI – have been mapped 
completely to date. Non-designated sites will be mapped for BAP priority habitats 
by 2006 using known available datasets. Improved reporting from 2006 will improve 
the measurement of change. The following table sets out the baseline information 
for UK Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) priority habitats in the Vale : 

 

Page 110



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

42 

UK Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) Priority Habitats in the Vale 
 

Habitat District 
baseline 
information 
(hectares) 

County 
context 
(hectares) 

% of 
Oxfordshire 
Habitat in 
VoWH  

Lowland mixed 
deciduous woodland  

684.5 2467.5 27.7% 

Lowland beech and yew 
woodland 

2.0 563.2 00.35% 

Wet woodland 39.6 98.4 33.5% 
Wood pasture and 
parkland 

3.3 101.3 03.26% 

Lowland calcareous 
grassland 

182.5 668.9 27.3% 

Lowland meadow 81.2 1100.8 07.4% 

Coastal and floodplain 
grazing marsh 

0.0 9.3 NA 

Lowland dry acid 
grassland 

18.8 40.3 46.6% 

Lowland heathland 0.0 2.9 NA 
Fen 19.9 92.6 21.5% 
Reedbeds 0.4 6.5 06.1% 
Eutrophic standing water 161.4 355.8 45.4% 

 
7.3 Comparison data for previous years is not available in relation to the priority 

habitats. As can be seen from the table though the Vale contains significant 
portions of a range of the priority habitats found in the County. However none of the 
areas amount to a significant portion of the overall UK priority habitats. The Vale 
does however contain two candidate Special Areas of Conservation. One is at 
Cothill fen where the calcium-rich springwater-fed fens are considered rare in the 
European context. The other is at Hackpen Down, an area of unimproved chalk 
grassland. In relation to UK BAP priority species TVERC records show that the Vale 
has 40 of the UK’s 382 priority species. Overall the County has a total of 69 species 
recorded. 
 

7.4 Part (ii) of the indicator relates to change in areas designated for their intrinsic 
environmental value including sites of international, national, regional or sub-
regional significance. Data supplied by TVERC in the table below indicates that the 
Vale contains over one fifth of the County’s SSSI area, over one quarter of the 
County’s CWS area and, as stated above, two candidate SACs : 

 

Page 111



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

43 

Significant Environmental Areas  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.5 As well as those indicators defined as essential by the Government it is important 

for locally important species to be monitored to gauge the health of the Vale’s 
biodiversity. Information has therefore been collected across the County by TVERC 
on the following important indicative species and on SSSI: 

 

• Distribution and Status of Water Voles 

• Distribution and Status of Farmland Birds 

• Distribution and Status of Garden Butterflies 

• Condition of SSSI 
 

7.6 Distribution and Status of Water Voles – Information on Water Voles is important 
because they are a UK BAP priority species which has declined rapidly in numbers 
across Oxfordshire in recent years. Out of the County total of 9,645.2 ha the Vale 
has 4,371.9 ha or 45.3 % of the area measured as a Key Area positive for Water 
Voles. The Vale is therefore a very important area for Water Voles in the County 
context. 
 

7.7 Distribution and Status of Farmland Birds – Information on farmland birds is 
important because they are a useful indicator of the impact of rural activity on the 
natural environment. Data is derived from surveys by the British Trust for 
Ornithology and the Royal Society for the Protection of Birds. Compared to the 
1994 baseline value of 1.0, population densities have risen to 1.28. This compares 
favourably to a County value of 0.68. However the information is based on small 
sample sizes which may be leading to statistical errors. 
 

7.8 Distribution and Status of Garden Butterflies – Information on garden butterflies is 
important because it can indicate the impact of development on an area’s natural 
environment. In the Vale all 22 of the commonly occurring species surveyed were 
present but two, the Essex Skipper and the Wall butterflies, were less common. 
These species are however historically less common in the Berkshire, 
Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire areas. This suggests that development is not 
having a significant effect on butterfly populations. 
 

7.9 Condition of SSSI – Information on SSSI is a useful contextual indicator for the 
health of the natural environment. In the Vale 30% of the SSSI are in favourable 
condition at April 2005 as shown below. In comparison 45% of SSSI in the County 
and 45% in England are in favourable condition. However the Vale only has 1% of 
its SSSI in unfavourable and declining condition whereas the County has 3% and 

Type of Site District 
baseline 
information 
(hectares) 

County 
context 
(hectares) 

% of 
Oxfordshire 
Habitat in 
VoWH  

Special Area of Conservation 
(SAC) 

Na Na Na 

Sites of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSIs) 

908.2 4401.1 20.6% 

County Wildlife Sites (CWS) 
 

1,316.9 5,062.7 26.0% 

Page 112



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

44 

England has 12%. Also, some of the SSSI surveys relate to 1999. These figures will 
be monitored to check on any improvement or deterioration in the Vale’s SSSI. With 
the isolated location of most SSSI in the Vale change in condition is likely to be 
related to land management practices rather than development. 

 

Condition of SSSIs in the Vale of White Horse

Favourable Unfavourable declining

Unfavourable no change Unfavourable recovering

 
 

7.10 A significant feature of the Vale’s environment is its rivers, particularly the Thames 
and the Ock with its tributaries. Monitoring their quality is therefore an important 
contextual indicator of the relative health of the Vale’s environment. Information is 
sourced by the Audit Commission from OFWAT, which is the economic regulator for 
the water and sewerage industry in England and Wales, on the chemical and 
biological quality of rivers in local authority areas. The latest information for the Vale 
is for 2003 and can be seen on the Audit Commission’s Area Profiles website. This 
will be monitored as a contextual indicator AMR. 

 
7.11 The information shows that in relation to biological quality the rivers in the Vale 

achieved a percentage of 79.17% of their length at or above good quality in 2003. 
This compares to the national average of 53.61% of rivers achieving good quality. 
The Vale’s rivers are therefore in good biological condition in comparison to the 
national average. 
 

7.12 In relation to the chemical quality of the rivers within the Vale they achieved a 
percentage of 67.89% of their length at or above good quality in 2003. This figure 
compares well to the national average of 51.32% of rivers achieving good quality. 
The Vale’s rivers are therefore also in relatively good condition in relation to the 
national average of chemical quality. 
 

7.13 Biodiversity is linked to the landscape of the area. English Nature is promoting the 
identification of Regionally Important Geological Sites through the establishment of 
local groups.  These sites will be non-statutory, locally based sites which will be 
designated and informally and voluntarily managed. Regionally Important 
Geological Sites are proposed at Coxwell Pit; Faringdon (Rogers Concrete); The 
Manger, Whitehorse Hill; Hatford Sand Pit; Gimbro Copse Quarry, Pusey; Dry 
Sandford Quarries; Tubney Woods; Shellingford Quarry; and Wicklesham Quarry, 
Faringdon.  Four of these sites are also identified as Sites of Special Scientific 

Page 113



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

45 

Interest. 
 

7.14 Local Nature Reserves (LNRs) may be established by local authorities in 
consultation with English Nature under section 21 of the National Parks and Access 
to the Countryside Act 1949. They are habitats of local importance.  In the Vale 
there is a LNR at Tuckmill Meadows and new LNRs are proposed at the Abbey 
Fishponds and the western end of the Ock Valley in Abingdon, Chilswell Valley in 
South Hinksey, and Kennington Pond in Kennington.  A local nature reserve is also 
proposed by Oxford City Council at the Iffley Fritillary Meadows, a small proportion 
of which lies within the area of the Vale. 
 

7.15 Beyond the statutory designations the Vale also contains a number of County 
Wildlife Sites designated for their local ecological importance and a number of 
areas of woodland that have been identified as remains of Ancient Woodland. Also, 
part of the Vale to the west of Faringdon lies within the Great Western Community 
Forest. The aims of the Forest Plan 2006-2010 include the creation of a multi-
purpose forest embracing Swindon and its environs, increasing forest cover from an 
average 5% to 30%, encouraging community involvement and public access and 
enhancing biodiversity and landscape quality. 
 

7.16 The Vale is a rural area with a significant part of its land under cultivation for 
farming. The quality of the farmland ranges from Grade 4 up to Grade 2 in a 
number of locations. Guidance in PPS7 states that land of grade 3a or better should 
be protected from development unless sustainability considerations indicate 
otherwise. The Agricultural Census from DEFRA indicates that in 2003 there were 
448 holdings covering 47,249.3 ha in the Vale. Of these 326 holdings covering 
9,894 ha are permanent grass. There are then 147 holdings covering 13,452 ha 
which produce wheat. Then there are 79 holdings covering 3,731.8 ha producing 
oilseed rape and 86 holdings covering 2893.2 producing winter barley. Agriculture 
in the Vale is therefore very varied. In terms of employment only 1,067 residents 
gave their employment as being in the agriculture, hunting and forestry category 
which amounts to 1.8% of the resident workforce. 
 

7.17 As stated earlier a substantial part of the Vale (23.36%) lies within the Wessex 
Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. With it’s high concentration of wildlife 
sites and rural hinterland the remaining part of the Vale is also made up of attractive 
landscapes. The Oxfordshire Wildlife and Landscape Study (OWLS) has identified a 
range of landscape types in the Vale. These include significant areas of wooded 
estate lands and rolling farmland to the north and south with alluvial lowland, clay 
vale and lowland village farmland landscapes in the centre, all running generally 
east west. There are also river meadowlkands in close association with the rivers in 
the Vale and chalk downland within the AONB. 

 
8.0 Living Environment  

 
8.1 The Council has a duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to promote 

community safety. This is the subject of policy DC3 in the Local Plan dealing with 
designing development against crime. Crime is therefore a matter to be taken into 
account in planning decisions. It is therefore important to gauge the level of crime in 
an area to determine the level of the problem and tangentially get some indication 
of the impact of planning policies. Planning of development is however only one 

Page 114



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

46 

facet of what has to be a multidimensional approach to the reduction of crime in an 
area. 

 
8.2 The Audit Commission’s area profile for the Vale contains an indicator which relates 

to domestic burglaries per 1,000 households. Information for 2004/05 shows that 
the rate in the Vale was 5.51 per 1,000 households. This compares to a rate of 9.59 
for the County and a national rate of 11.72. This indicates that the Vale is a 
relatively safe area in relation to domestic burglaries. 

 
8.3 This information cannot be directly related to the planning of new development. 

However it does indicate that the Vale is a relatively safe area which must partly 
relate to the character of development. This is a subjective impression rather than 
an objective measurement of the safety of an area, but it is a useful contextual 
indicator for assessing the Vale against other areas. 
 

8.4 The Index of Multiple Deprivation is a means of comparing information about a 
range of indicators showing levels of deprivation for an area as one figure. This then 
allows the relative deprivation of areas to be established, compared and monitored 
over time. Areas can be deprived in terms of income, education, employment, 
health, good housing, services, environment and levels of crime. Information was 
originally produced for 2000 but this has been refined and a new set of information 
has been produced for 2004 by ODPM. 
 

8.5 The Index of Multiple Deprivation for 2004 shows that only one of the 75 Super 
Output Areas (SOA) in the Vale is deprived enough over the whole range of factors 
to be counted amongst the top 25% most deprived areas in England. There are no 
other SOAs in the Vale in the next ranking between 25% and 50%. This situation 
varies though when individual deprivation factors are considered. For example in 
relation to housing and services 10 out of the 75 SOAs in the Vale are in the most 
deprived 25% of SOAs in England. Overall though the Vale is relatively less 
deprived than the rest of England. 
 

8.6 In terms of mortality the Quality of Life Indicator 3.2 is drawn from the Compendium 
of Clinical Health Indicators 2002 and shows trends in mortality from all causes 
using directly standardised mortality rates per 100,000. Information has been 
produced for 1993-2001 annually for all ages for the Districts in Oxfordshire. Overall 
in Oxfordshire the mortality rate has declined from 689.7 in 1993 to 586.7 by 2001. 
In comparison the Vale’s rate has fallen from a lower level of 662.1 to 540.2 over 
the same period. The Vale therefore continues to have a lower mortality rate than 
the County overall.  
 

8.7 In terms of life expectancy the figure for the South East is 79.3 years compared to 
the higher figure for the Vale of 80.4 years. There are further variations within the 
Vale and the Abingdon Dunmore ward has the highest life expectancy with a figure 
of 86.6 years. 
 

8.8 Another aspect of health is the number of people who suffer from a limiting long 
term illness. This was the subject of a specific question in the 2001 Census. It found 
that The South East was the healthiest region in England on this measure with 
15.5% of the total population rating themselves as having a limiting long term 
illness, compared with the England average of 17.9%. Oxfordshire at 13.4% was 

Page 115



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

47 

ranked the second healthiest county in the South East (behind Buckinghamshire). 
For the Vale the figure was even lower at 13.1%. 
 

8.9 Teenage conception rates are also monitored as part of the Audit Commission’s 
area profiles. They are only collected on a County basis. The figure for 2004 was 
34.3 conceptions to under-18 year olds in a calendar year per thousand females 
aged 15 to 17. This compares favourably to the national average which was 44.3 in 
2004. Rates have fallen locally from 36.0 and nationally from 45.46 since 2002. 
 

8.9.1 Recreation is strongly linked to health. The National Playing Fields Association 
standards suggest that that a total of 2.4 hectares of playing space should be 
provided for every 1,000 persons. In 2002 the Council conducted a survey of formal 
playing space provision in the Vale’s five main settlements. The results of the 2002 
playing space survey are set out in the table below. 
 
 

Survey of Playing Space 2002 – summary of findings 

Sports Pitches 

1.6–1.8ha per 

1000 

Outdoor Play 

Space 

0.6–0.8ha per 

1000 

Total 

Hectares 

Population  

(2001) 

NPFA 

Range 

Found 

(02) 

NPFA 

Range 

Found 

(02) 

NPFA 

Range 

Found 

(02) 

Abingdon  

32,526 

52.04 –

58.55 

49.25 19.5 –

26.0 

45.60 71.54 –

84.55 

94.85 

Wantage  

9,442 

15.11 –

17.00 

11.59   5.7 – 

7.5 

10.18 20.81 –

24.5 

21.77 

 

Grove  

8,212 

13.14 –

14.78 

10.54  4.93 –

6.6 

7.74 18.03 –

21.38 

18.28 

Faringdon  

6,053 

  9.7 –

10.9 

   8.28    3.63 – 

4.8 

   3.21 13.31 –

15.7 

 11.49 

Botley  

8,967 

14.35 –

16.1 

  17.73     5.4 – 

7.2 

4.96 19.75 –

23.3 

22.69 

 

 
8.10 In Abingdon the study suggests that the overall provision of playing space is 

adequate by comparison to the NPFA standard; however, sports pitches are under- 
provided but space suitable for play is well above standard.  This is accounted for 
by the large areas of open space along the Thames, at Abbey Meadows, Albert 
Park and Long Furlong.  The study indicates that Wantage is within standard for 
outdoor play space but is below standard for sports pitches.  The proposal for a new 
pitch at Tuckwell Fields opposite the cricket ground on the A417 east of Wantage 
will help to address this shortfall.  The situation at Grove is similar to Wantage with 
a shortfall of sports pitches but play space is within standard.  In Botley sports 
pitches meet the standard and play space is just below standard. At Faringdon 
sports pitches and play space are below standard. 
 

8.11 Another relevant indicator is the percentage of residents within 20 minutes of a 
range of three different sports facilities. This is included in the Audit Commission’s 
area profile for the Vale and in 2005 showed that in 2005 16.8% of the Vale’s 

Page 116



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

48 

population lived within 20 minutes travel time of 3 different sports facilities. This 
compares to the national average of 20.86% living within 20 minutes travel time of 3 
different sports facilities. The Vale is therefore less sustainable in terms of the 
distribution of its sports facilities. However, this is probably an effect of the Vale’s 
rural character which will mean that it will generally be below the average as the 
majority of the national population live in more urbanised areas. 
 

8.12 Another relevant indicator in the Audit Commission’s area profile for the Vale is 
resident satisfaction with sports/leisure facilities. The indicator specifically relates to 
whether residents of an area consider that sport and leisure facilities have improved 
or stayed the same in the past 3 years. For the Vale 93.26% of residents consider 
that sport and leisure facilities have improved or stayed the same. In comparison 
the national average for this indicator is 88.43% and for the County the figure is 
89.17%. The Vale’s residents are therefore slightly more satisfied with their sport 
and leisure facilities than either in the County overall or nationally. This is a 
subjective impression rather than an objective measurement of the provision of 
sport and leisure facilities, but it is a useful contextual indicator for assessing the 
quality of such facilities. It is likely that it reflects recent Council and private 
investments in leisure facilities in the Vale. 
 

8.13 A further relevant indicator in the Audit Commission’s area profile for the Vale is 
resident satisfaction with Parks/Open Spaces. The indicator refers to what 
percentage of an area’s residents consider that parks and open spaces have got 
better or stayed the same over the previous three years. For the Vale the indicator 
shows that 94.17% of residents consider that parks and open spaces have got 
better or stayed the same in the last 3 years. In comparison the figure for the 
County is 86.41% and nationally the figure is 86.8 %. The Vale’s residents are 
therefore more satisfied with their parks and open spaces than either in the County 
overall or nationally. This is a subjective impression rather than an objective 
measurement of the provision of parks and open spaces, but it is useful for 
assessing the quality of such facilities. 
 

9.0 Sustainability  
 
9.1 A significant sustainability indicator is the amount of water we consume. Recent dry 

periods have illustrated how dependant we are on a supply of water for our 
everyday lives. Reducing consumption and wastage of this increasingly scarce 
resource is therefore a desirable aim. Information on this subject is contained in the 
Audit Commission’s area profile for the Vale and has been taken from information 
supplied by OFWAT. The information indicates that the average daily per capita 
consumption of water in litres in the Vale in 2003 was 154.14. In comparison the 
national average daily per capita consumption of water for 2003 was 154 litres. Per 
capita consumption of water in the Vale was therefore the same as the national 
average and is therefore no more or less sustainable than the rest of the country. 
No information is however available for previous years so a trend for water 
consumption cannot be established. 
 

9.2 Information relating to the domestic consumption of gas and electricity is produced 
by the Audit Commission as part of its area profile for the Vale. It is taken from 
information produced by DTI Energy Trends. It indicates that the annual average 
per customer consumption of gas in the Vale in 2003 was 20,360 kWh. This 

Page 117



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

49 

compares to a national average of 20,126.16 kWh which means that gas 
consumption in the Vale is slightly above average. However between 2001 and 
2003 gas consumption in the Vale fell by 1.4% whereas the national average 
consumption rose by 1%. If these trends continue then gas consumption in the Vale 
should fall below the national average in the near future. 
 

9.3 The average annual per customer consumption of electricity in the Vale in 2003 was 
5,301 kWh. The national average per capita consumption for 2003 was however 
4734.19 kWh. Per capita consumption of electricity in the Vale was therefore some 
12% higher than the average. No information is available for previous years so a 
trend for electricity consumption cannot be established. However the figures 
indicate that in relation to the national picture the consumption of electricity in the 
Vale is significantly less sustainable. This may be related to a higher than average 
proportion of higher earners in the Vale with associated higher appliance usage. 
 

9.4 Another matter which is a good sustainability indicator is the average amount of 
waste collected per head. Audit Commission figures for 2003/4 indicate that the 
average in England was 439.1 kilograms per head and in the South East was 533 
kilograms. In comparison the Vale figure of 358 kilograms was much lower. 
Information on recycling from the Audit Commission shows that 19.4% of waste was 
recycled in the Vale in 2003/4 which compares to the figure for Oxfordshire of 
17.5%.  
 

9.5 Waste collected and the level of recycling are closely linked with higher recycling 
leading to lower levels of waste collection. Increasing population and further 
economic growth could mean that the total tonnes of household waste produced per 
annum in Oxfordshire could rise from 240,000 tonnes in 2003/4 to 410,000 by 2020. 
To meet Government targets recycling in Oxfordshire must rise from its current level 
of 24% to 33% by 2020. This would mean an 80% increase in the amount of waste 
recycled. 
 

9.6 The Council monitors levels of nitrogen dioxide throughout the district using passive 
diffusion tubes and continuous monitoring. Monitoring is also undertaken to assess 
levels of sulphur dioxide, ozone, and airborne particles of less than 10 microns 
which are known as PM10 and benzene. The concentrations of air pollutants in the 
district do not exceed the national air quality objective levels except in the busy 
narrow streets of central Abingdon due to the levels of nitrogen dioxide from vehicle 
emissions. In view of this the council has been advised to declare an ‘Air Quality 
Management Area’ in the the centre of Abingdon. The council is working with the 
Highways Authority, Oxfordshire County Council with the aim of improving traffic-
related air quality in Abingdon. The Abingdon Integrated Transport Strategy [AbITS] 
is one initiative to improve traffic flow in Abingdon. One of the aims of this strategy 
is to improve air quality through reduced traffic congestion in the centre of 
Abingdon. 
 

9.7 Following the outcome of their Progress Report 2004, the Council commissioned 
NETCEN to undertake a Detailed Assessment for nitrogen dioxide at locations in 
the central Abingdon area. This Detailed Assessment has identified a significant risk 
of exceeding the UK objectives for NO2 in 2005 and the EU Limit values for NO2 in 
2010 at the locations in central Abingdon studied in the detailed assessment. This 
necessitated the introduction of an air Quality Management Area in central 

Page 118



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

50 

Abingdon with the need for a Further Assessment Report later this year (2007). This 
report will try to assess the impact of the AbITS road changes and to identify areas 
where the Air Quality Objectives are still being exceeded. It is anticipated that there 
may still be exceedences at some locations and that there may be the need to 
develop an Air Quality Action Plan in consultation with stakeholders and interested 
parties. This will follow on from the Further Assessment Report. 
 

9.8 Elevated levels of NO2 have also been noted at Westminster Way, Botley, close to 
the A34. Extended monitoring is now being undertaken in this area in order to 
inform a Detailed Assessment Report which may show exceedence of the Air 
Quality Objective. If this is the case there may be a need to declare an Air Quality 
Management Area in this locality. It is anticipated that this report will be available 
mid 2007. 

 
 

Page 119



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

51 

Core Strategy SA Scoping Report A3 - Sustainability Issues and Problems 
 

 

Stage A3 in the SA process involves the identification of any sustainability issues or 
problems that relate to the Vale. Some issues and problems have already been identified 
via the preparation of the Local Plan, others can be identified via the review of other plans 
and strategies and by examining the baseline data. Further issues and problems may arise 
as a result of the consultation on this document. The issues and problems will then be 
used to inform the sustainability objectives that will be the foundation of the sustainability 
appraisal framework. The following sustainability issues and problems have been identified 
in relation to the Vale: 
 

• Lack of affordable housing 
 

• Provision of employment opportunities 
 

• Congestion on strategic and local road network 
 

• Lack of alternatives to the private car 
 

• Need to conserve water 
 

• Reduction and prevention of flooding 
 

• Need to reduce use of fossil fuels and encourage renewables 
 

• Protection of valued landscapes  
 

• Quality of built environments 
 

• Protection of cultural heritage 
 

• Protection and improvement of biodiversity 
 

• Need to restrain/reduce effects of noise air, water and light pollution 
 

• Pressure for development, particularly housing 
 

• Protection and provision of recreational facilities 
 

• The health of Vale residents 
 

• Impacts from tourism 
 

• Low levels of educational achievement 
 

• Action to address the causes and effects of climate change 
 

• The generation of waste 

Page 120



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

52 

Core Strategy SA Scoping Report – A4 Sustainability Objectives and Framework 
 
 
1. Task A4 in the SA process is the development of a sustainability framework which will 

be used to assess the sustainability of policies and proposals in the Core Strategy. The 
foundation of this assessment is the development of sustainability objectives against 
which to compare the policies and proposals. These can be developed from the 
information gleaned via tasks A1, A2 and A3 already undertaken in this Scoping 
Report. 
 

2. Once established the policies and proposals will be compared to the objectives and will 
be assigned a negative or positive effect where possible. The balance between the 
negative and positive values will then be used to measure the relative sustainability of 
options. It should be noted that it may not be possible to clearly define what effects a 
policy or proposal might have. In such cases an indeterminate value will have to be 
awarded or there may not be an effect in relation to that objective so a zero score 
would be given. 

 
3. Where a score shows that there will be unsustainable impacts from a policy or proposal 

the first step will be to examine alternative options, if they are available, and if this does 
not resolve the issue then to consider what mitigation may be possible to reduce the 
impacts. It should also be noted that even after an appraisal finds a policy or proposal 
to be relatively unsustainable there may still be reasons to proceed with it. This would 
be the case for example in relation to the quantity of housing allocated to the Vale in 
the South East Plan. As it is a requirement of the South East Plan the Vale’s Core 
Strategy will need to allocate sufficient land to meet the requirement. The aim of the 
appraisal is to reduce and mitigate unsustainable impacts. It is not possible to remove 
them all. 

 
4. The Integrated Regional Framework (IRF), which is used as the basis for the SA of the 

South East Plan, contains 25 sustainability objectives under the following four headings 
drawn from the UK strategy for sustainable development A Better Quality of Life: 

 

• Social progress which recognises the needs of everyone 

• Effective protection of the environment 

• Prudent use of natural resources 

• Maintenance of high and stable levels of economic growth 
 
5. The 25 IRF objectives could be utilised as the basis of the SA framework for the Vale 

as other Council’s have done. It is considered however that the objectives should relate 
as closely as possible to the Council’s own objectives as set out below: 

 
a. Strengthen local democracy and public involvement through access to 

information, consultation, and devolution of power so that everyone can take 
part in our community and contribute to the decisions which affect our lives 

 
b. Create a safer community and improve the quality of life among Vale residents 
 
c. Encourage a strong and sustainable economy which benefits all who live in, 

work in or visit the Vale 
 

Page 121



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

53 

d. Help disadvantaged groups and individuals within the Vale to realise their full 
potential 

 
e. Provide and support high quality public services which are effective, efficient and 

responsive to the needs of people within the Vale 
 

f. Protect and improve our built and natural environment 
 
6. Out of these objectives it is considered that all of the objectives can be utilised to form 

sustainability objectives. Objectives b, c and f can then be split into subsidiary 
objectives. In relation to the 25 IRF objectives the following topics are not specifically 
reflected in the Council’s overall objectives and are suitable sustainability objectives for 
a Core Strategy: 

 
i) Access to decent, sustainably constructed and affordable homes; 
ii) Reduced risk of flooding; 
iii) Improved health and wellbeing; 
iv) Raised educational achievement and skills levels; 
v) Vibrant communities; 
vi) Greater engagement in cultural activity; 
vii) Sustainable use of land, buildings and materials; 
viii) Reduced air pollution; 
ix) Effective action on climate change; 
x) Reduced road congestion and associated pollution; 
xi) Maintained and improved river quality and water resources; 
xii) Increased generation of energy by renewables; and 
xiii) Establish a dynamic, diverse and knowledge-based economy with high value 

low impact activities. 
 
7. It is considered that a combination of the Council’s corporate objectives and those from 

the IRF provide a suitable range of sustainability objectives as set out below. Each 
objective has the relevant reference from the preceding objectives to show the 
linkages. 

 
1. Access to decent, sustainably constructed and affordable homes (i) 
2. Improved accessibility to high quality services and involvement in decision 

making for the public (a, e.) 
3. Improved community safety (b) 
4. Increased quality of life for Vale residents (b) 
5. Raised educational achievement and skills levels (iv) 
6. Establish a strong and sustainable economy within the Vale(c)  
7. Establish a dynamic, diverse and knowledge-based economy with high value 

low impact activities (xiii) 
8. Develop a strong and sustainable tourism sector (c) 
9. Reduced road congestion and associated pollution (x) 
10. Reduced poverty and social exclusion with disadvantaged groups achieving 

potential (d)  
11. Vibrant communities (v) 
12. Greater engagement in cultural activity (vi) 
13. Improved health and wellbeing (iii) 
14. Improve and protect the natural environment (including biodiversity) (f) 
15. Improve and protect the built environment (f) 

Page 122



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

54 

16. Sustainable use of land, buildings and materials (vii) 
17. Effective action on climate change (ix) 
18. Increased generation of energy by renewables (xii) 
19. Reduced risk of flooding (ii) 
20. Maintained and improved river quality and water resources (xi) 
21. Reduced air, noise and light pollution (viii) 

 
8. To ensure that these objectives take account of the sustainability issues and problems 

identified at stage A3 in the process the following table shows the relationship between 
the two. All the identified issues are addressed by the sustainability objectives. 

 
Sustainability Objective Relevant Issue/Problem 

1. Access to decent, sustainably 
constructed and affordable homes (i) 

Lack of affordable housing: 
Pressure for development, 
particularly housing. 

2. Improved accessibility to high quality 
services and involvement in decision 
making for the public (a, e.) 

 

3. Improved community safety (b)  
4. Increased quality of life for Vale 

residents (b) 
Protection and provision of 
recreational facilities. 

5. Raised educational achievement and 
skills levels (iv) 

Educational achievement 
 

6. Establish a strong and sustainable 
economy within the Vale (c)  

Provision of employment 
opportunities 

7. Establish a dynamic, diverse and 
knowledge-based economy with high 
value low impact activities (xiii) 

 

8. Develop a strong and sustainable 
tourism sector (c) 

Impacts from tourism 

9. Reduced road congestion and 
associated pollution (x) 

Congestion on strategic road 
network 

10. Reduced poverty and social exclusion 
with disadvantaged groups achieving 
potential (d)  

Lack of alternatives to the private 
car; 
 

11. Creating vibrant communities (v)  
12. Greater engagement in cultural activity 

(vi) 
 

13. Improved health and wellbeing (iii) The health of Vale residents 
14. Improve and protect the natural 

environment (including biodiversity) (f) 
Protection and improvement of 
biodiversity 

15. Improve and protect the built 
environment (f) 

Protection of valued landscapes 
and built environments; 
Protection of cultural heritage 

16. Sustainable use of land, buildings and 
resources (vii) 

 

17. Effective action on climate change (ix) Action to address the causes and 
effects of climate change 
 

18. Increased generation of energy by 
renewables (xii) 

Need to reduce use of fossil fuels 
and encourage renewables 

Page 123



Vale of White Horse Core Strategy – Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report March 2007 

55 

19. Reduced risk of flooding (ii)  

20. Maintained and improved river quality 
and water resources (xi) 

Need to conserve water 

21. Reduced air, noise and light pollution 
(viii) 

Need to restrain/reduce effects of 
noise air, water and light pollution 

 
9. The 21 sustainability objectives also need to be checked back against the objectives 

selected from the relevant plans and programmes reviewed in section A1 of this report. 
This is addressed in the third column of the table where the related sustainability 
objectives are set out.  

  

Page 124



 
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL   Report No. 162/06 

      Wards Affected: - All 
 

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR FOR PLANNING AND COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
TO THE EXECUTIVE  

MARCH 2ND 2007 
 

Minerals and Waste Framework Core Strategy Preferred Options 
 
 

1 Introduction and Report Summary 
 

1.1 Under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, local plans are being replaced by a 
Local Development Framework. Responsibility for minerals and waste planning rests with the 
County Council. Under the new system the County Council has to produce Core Strategy and 
Site Allocations minerals and waste documents. The first stage in the production of the 
Minerals and Waste Framework was last year when there was consultation on issues and 
options for the Core Strategy document. The next stage is preferred options where the policies 
and proposals are defined for the first time. Following consultation and revisions a final 
document will then be submitted to the Secretary of State when formal objections can be 
made. 

 
1.2 As the Minerals and Waste Development Framework will form part of the Development Plan 

for the Vale it must be considered by Council. However responsibility for making comments at 
this stage rests with the Executive. The closing date for responses is 23rd March 2007. The 
document has been passed to the political assistants as well as to the Deputy Director 
(Contracts & Procurement) but at the time of writing no comments have been received. This 
report considers the preferred options most likely to affect the Vale as prepared by the County 
Council and recommends comments to form the basis of the Council’s response. 

 
1.3 The Contact Officer for this report is Peter Williams, Principal Planning Officer, (01235 

520202) 
 
2 Recommendations  
 
 (a) that the Executive approves the comments on the Minerals and Waste Framework 

Core Strategy Preferred Options document as contained in this report. 
 
3 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies  
 

(a) A, B, C and F. 
 
(b) this report principally relates to the Local Development Framework Core Strategy and 

to the Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Strategy . 
 

4 Background and Supporting Information 
 
4.1 The document does not contain site specific proposals for minerals or waste development. 

Instead it indicates general areas where such allocations might be made. The County Council 
is currently reviewing all potential sites prior to consulting on a very broad range of possible 
sites in the near future. It should be remembered that minerals can only be extracted from 
where they can be found and that the County Council is under a duty to ensure that adequate 
quantities of minerals are available to support expected need. Waste treatment is expected to 
be located as close as possible to sources. Government planning guidance on minerals is 
provided in Minerals Policy Statement 1 – Planning and Minerals. In relation to waste 
government guidance is contained in Planning Policy Statement 10 – Planning for Sustainable 
Waste Management. 

 

Agenda Item 16

Page 125



 
4.2 Issue 1 – Minerals and Waste Framework Plan Period - On minerals the first issue to be 

addressed is the period to be covered by the framework. Originally the two end dates 
suggested were 2018 (now 2019) to give 10 years coverage after adoption or 2026 to match 
the South East Plan. A longer period would require more allocations to be made but would 
ensure supply for the period covered by the South East Plan. Providing that development is 
carefully phased and regular monitoring ensures that provision matches supply there is no 
reason why a longer period should have more impact than a shorter period which, in any event 
would require an earlier policy review and a review of all allocations to ensure longer term 
supply. It would also match the period to be covered by the Vale’s own Local Development 
Framework. 
 

Comment – The Minerals and Waste Development Framework should cover the 
period to 2026 provided that careful phasing and regular monitoring is used to control 
the rate of development.  
 

4.3 Issue 2 – Minerals Supply - The next minerals issue is the quantity of minerals to be 
extracted. The levels required by the Government under Regional Planning Guidance 9 
(RPG9) have been incorporated into the South East Plan. Taking into account the levels of 
existing provision, Oxfordshire will be required to provide 29.3 million tonnes of sand and 
gravel and 6.8 million tonnes of crushed rock to 2026. The options for meeting this 
requirement are (i) to identify wholly new sites or areas of search, or (ii) identify extensions to 
existing quarries with new provision only in the long term, or (iii) identify provision only to 2019 
supported by criteria policy. As the response recommended above is for the framework to 
cover the period up to 2026 supporting the third option would be inconsistent. Given the 
choice between seeking wholly new sites and identifying extensions to existing sites with new 
sites only later, it is considered that the impact of the second option would be less. 
 

Comment – The framework should aim to secure extensions to existing sites in the 
shorter term with wholly new allocations in the longer term. 
 

4.4 The framework has to provide separate figures for sharp sand and gravel and for soft sand. 
The options are to split on a historical basis at 10% soft and 90% sharp or to split on the basis 
of recent production at 17% soft and 83% sharp. It is considered that it is more logical to 
reflect recent production. 

 
Comment – The split between sand and gravel should be 17% soft sand and 83% 
sharp sand/gravel. 
 

4.5 Issue 3 – Strategy for Location of Sand and Gravel Workings - The overall location for 
sand and gravel workings is the next issue. Currently most sharp sand and gravel production 
is from the Lower Windrush Valley and Eynsham-Cassington-Yarnton areas. Soft sand is 
extracted in the main resource area between Faringdon, Oxford and Abingdon. The three 
potential locations for sharp sand and gravel located in the Vale out of 15 locations are: 
Radley, Marcham and Appleford/Little Wittenham . The only realistic option for soft sand 
extraction is in the main resource area. The options suggested are for any sharp sand and 
gravel allocations to be located at existing sites in West Oxfordshire and at new sites in 
southern Oxfordshire outside the AONB. For soft sand the preferred option is for new sites to 
be located in the main resource area. Although there is no realistic alternative to the location 
of new soft sand extraction it is not clear from the framework whether future sharp sand/gravel 
works will affect the Vale. The preferred option should therefore be accepted but a clearer 
definition than the phrase ‘southern Oxfordshire’ would be preferable.  

 
Comment – The preferred options for the general location of new sand and gravel 
sites is accepted but there should greater clarity over the likely location of future 
workings. 
 

4.6 Issues 4&5 – Strategy for the Location of Crushed Rock Production (limestone and/or 
ironstone) and Recycled/Secondary Aggregates  - The provision for crushed rock will not 
affect the Vale. On recycled aggregates, which reduce the need to extract sand and gravel, 

Page 126



 
the issue is where should plants to process material to produce the aggregates be located. 
The South East Plan says that such sites should be close to sources of material and can be 
located in the Green Belt if there are no alternatives. This matches national planning guidance. 
The options are to locate on a sequential basis with the first option being in urban locations 
with green field sites as a last resort and then on brownfield land as a first option with green 
field sites again as a last resort. This approach would not exclude sites in the Green Belt. It is 
considered that this approach is broadly acceptable but Green Belt sites should only be 
considered when all other options have been examined and rejected. 

 
Comment – The proposed overall approach to location is accepted but it should be 
made clear that Green Belt sites will only be considered when all other options have 
been examined and rejected. 
  

4.7 Issue 7 – Methodology for the Identification of Areas or Sites for Mineral Working -  
Preferred option 7 sets out criteria for evaluating potential mineral working sites. As the criteria 
cover all the usual material planning considerations, which includes proximity to land uses 
which are sensitive to nuisance e.g. housing, the suggested option is considered to be 
acceptable. However, it is considered that specific mention of Green Belts should be made in 
accord with guidance in PPG2 Green Belts and MPS1 Planning and Minerals regarding the 
need to ensure high environmental standards during operation and a high standard of 
restoration. 

 
Comment - The criteria in Option 7 are acceptable but specific reference should be 
made to the Green Belt. 
 

4.8 Issues 8 to 10 Restoration, Minimising Environmental Impacts and Safeguarding 
Minerals Resources - It is considered that no comments are required in relation to the 
preferred options for restoration, minimising impact and safeguarding minerals as they reflect 
this Council’s longstanding approach to these issues.  
 

4.9 Issue 11 Waste Management Facilities - The overall approach proposed in relation to waste 
management is to reduce, recycle and re-use followed by treatment and then disposal, which 
includes landfill only as a final resort. The County Council needs to identify a range of sites 
which allow all of the required processes to take place. It cannot however be specific about 
what activity can occur on each site. This is dependant on the needs of the private companies 
who will carry out the processes. Sites can include locations in the Green Belt when other 
options are not available. 
 

4.10 The first issue to be considered is what the overall approach should be to the site selection 
process. Options examined by the County include setting criteria, identifying broad locations, 
identifying specific sites, or using a combination of the options. The preferred options are: to 
identify specific sites for strategic facilities and broad locations for local sites, to be flexible 
over the activities which will be allowed at sites but to restrict uses in some locations and to 
provide for a range of small and large sites. Given the importance of securing adequate waste 
management facilities for the future these options are considered to be an appropriate way 
forward as they will provide for a wide variety of facilities, whilst respecting the constraints 
which might affect provision in particular locations 

 
Comment – The preferred options 11a (i) to (iii) are considered to be an appropriate 
way forward. 
 

4.11 The next issue addressed is where should sites be located. The main difficulty here is the 
potential conflict between the need to have such facilities close to where waste arises and the 
need to ensure that sensitive locations are protected. The preferred option suggested by the 
document is to take a sequential approach with urban areas as first choice and greenfield sites 
as a last resort together with using brownfield land first with greenfield sites again as a last 
resort. A concern is that Green Belt sites are included as potential locations. Your officers 
consider that the document should make it clear that Green Belt sites should be very much a 
last resort to meet the requirements of Government guidance. 

Page 127



 
 

Comment – The overall locational approach is acceptable but it should be made clear 
that Green belt locations should only be considered when all other options are 
unacceptable i.e. to protect Green Belts whilst taking into account other factors as set 
out in PPS10 - Planning for Sustainable Waste Management. 
 

4.12 Issue 12 - Ensuring Movement up the Waste Hierarchy - The next waste issue is the need 
to ensure that all other options are utilised to ensure that as little waste as possible goes to 
landfill. The options are to ensure sufficient provision is made for recycling as a minimum and 
to limit provision for landfill. It is considered that this is a sensible approach which is consistent 
with this Council’s views on waste management and the waste hierarchy. 

 
Comment – the preferred options for discouraging landfill are considered to be a 
sensible approach. 
 

4.13 Issue 13 – Provision of Facilities and Capacity for Waste Management - On the matter of 
the provision of sufficient waste facilities the main issue is whether the County should make 
provision just to meet its own need or should it accept a need to process waste from London. 
The need to make provision to accommodate a share of London’s waste is set out in regional 
guidance alongside self sufficiency which is expected to be the basis for local provision in the 
same guidance. The County’s preferred option is to follow the regional guidance and this is 
considered to be the appropriate approach. An alternative approach is unlikely to be 
successful when it would be contrary to the approved Regional Planning Guidance and 
emerging South East Plan 

 
Comment – the preferred options for self sufficiency with acceptance of waste from 
London are considered to be a sensible approach. 
 

4.14 Issue 14 – Methodology for the Identification and Assessment of Sites for Waste 
Management Facilities - For identifying and assessing sites for waste management facilities 
a range of criteria are suggested. In general these are considered to be acceptable but again 
no specific mention of the Green Belt is made.  

 
Comment - The criteria in Option 14 are acceptable but specific reference should be 
made to the constraints imposed by Green Belt policy. 
 

4.15 Issue 15 – Landfill - With regard to landfill some provision will still be needed for the residue 
remaining after all other processes have been implemented. The suggested approach is to 
increasingly limit landfill to encourage other processes and to direct inert waste to mineral site 
restoration. It is considered that this is an appropriate approach consistent with this Council’s 
views on landfill.  

 
Comment - The approach set out in Option 15 is acceptable. 
 

4.16 Issue 16 – Minimising the Environmental Impacts of Waste Management - The final 
waste issue is to consider how to minimise the impacts of new waste facilities. The suggested 
approach is to examine the need for mitigation on a case by case basis at the planning 
application stage and require mitigation by condition as part of any planning permission.  

 
Comment - The approach set out in Option 16 is considered to be appropriate. 

 
RODGER HOOD 

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (Planning and Community Strategy) 
 

TIM SADLER 
STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

 
 
 

Page 128



 
Background Papers:- 
 
Minerals and Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options Consultation Paper February 2007 
 
Minerals Policy Statement 1 – Planning and Minerals 
 
Planning Policy Statement 10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 
The South East Plan – Draft Plan for Submission to Government March 2006 
 
  

Page 129



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\7\3\AI00005374\DistrictWasteActionPlanExecMar070.doc   
Produced by Democratic Services CMN/07.02.03 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL  Report No.  163/06 
 Wards Affected – All 
  

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 
TO THE EXECUTIVE   

2 MARCH 2007 
 

District Waste Action Plan 2007/8 
 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary  
 
1.1 The Vale Executive endorsed the Oxfordshire Joint Waste Strategy (JWS) on 1 September 2006. 

To support the implementation of this strategy member authorities are required to prepare a 
District Waste Action Plan (DWAP) detailing changes and developments in relation to local 
service provision each year and demonstrating adherence to JWS policies and targets. 

 
1.2 The Vale’s draft DWAP is attached as Appendix A. 
 
1.3 The contact officer for this report is Mike Mackay, Deputy Director (Contracts & Procurement), 

telephone 01235 520202 ext 337. 
 
2.0 Recommendations  
 

  That the Committee approves the District Waste Action Plan 2007/8 
 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
 This Plan supports the Council’s priority of delivering a cleaner and greener environment.

  
4.0 Background 
 
4.1 The District Waste Action Plan is intended to provide a brief summary of the Council’s plans in 

relation to the delivery of its waste management services during 2007/8 and developments relate 
to the policies contained in the JWS. The format follows the County standard and actions are 
linked to the relevant JWS policy where appropriate. Targets quoted are as per the existing 
performance plan. 

 
4.2 The DWAP was taken to the Strategic Review Committee on 23 January 2007 for review and 

was formally received at that meeting. 
 
4.3 There are no direct budget implications arising from this report. 
 
 
 

MIKE MACKAY 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR (CONTRACTS & PROCUREMENT) 

 
STEVE BISHOP 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 
 
 
Background Papers: Oxfordshire Joint Waste Strategy 
 

 

Agenda Item 17

Page 130



 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
 &

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

(i
f 

a
p

p
li

c
a
b

le
) 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 
(o

th
e
r 

th
a
n

 
W

a
s
te

 T
e
a
m

) 

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r/

T
e
a
m

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

W
a
s
te

 p
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e
u

s
e
 

1
.1

 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 i
n
 

th
e
 O

W
P

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 G
ro

u
p
 t

o
 j
o
in

tl
y
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 w
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 v

ia
 W

a
s
te

 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 P

a
c
k
s
 &

 r
e
u
s
a
b
le

 b
a
g

s
, 

re
a
l 
n
a
p
p
ie

s
, 
“S

a
v
v
y
 S

h
o
p
p
in

g
”.

  
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 
to

 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

 T
a
rg

e
t 
=

 3
6
9
 k

g
 a

ri
s
in

g
s
 

p
e
r 

h
e
a
d
 

 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

W
S

C
  

P
o
lic

ie
s
 

8
, 

5
 &

 3
 

1
.2

 
P

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 j
o
in

t 
h
o
m

e
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

s
p
o
n
s
o
re

d
 b

y
 W

R
A

P
 

 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 s

a
le

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
o
s
te

rs
 

 T
a
rg

e
t 
=

 1
2
0
0
 u

n
it
s
 s

o
ld

 

 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

W
S

C
 +

 C
T

 
P

o
lic

y
 3

 

R
e
c

y
c
li

n
g

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

p
o

s
ti

n
g

 
2
.1

 
P

ro
m

o
te

 e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
B

ro
w

n
 B

in
  

&
 G

re
e
n
 B

o
x
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 a
re

a
s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 &

 
s
u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 
ra

te
 o

f 
re

c
o
v
e
ry

, 
 T

a
rg

e
t 
=

 2
5
%

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 &

 
6
%

 c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

 

 
3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

W
S

C
 

P
o
lic

y
 3

 

2
.2

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t

o
 G

re
e
n
 

S
a
c
k
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

 

D
iv

e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
g

re
e
n
 w

a
s
te

 
fr

o
m

 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

 T
a
rg

e
t 
=

 +
6
0
0
 t

o
n
n
e
s
 

(s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
) 

 
0
1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
7
 

W
S

C
 +

 V
e
o
lia

 
P

o
lic

y
 3

 

2
.3

 
E

x
p
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

f 
M

in
i 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 (

M
R

C
) 

to
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 
ri
s
e
 i
n
 P

I 
 T

a
rg

e
t 
=

 9
9
%

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
ti
m

e
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

W
S

C
 +

 V
e
o
lia

 
P

o
lic

y
 7

 

2
.4

 
C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
n
ta

in
e
rs

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 d

w
e
lli

n
g

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 f
la

ts
 

w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 M

R
C

s
 

O
b
ta

in
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

c
o
n
ta

in
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

g
re

a
te

r 
u
s
e
 o

f 
M

R
C

s
 &

 
e
x
tr

a
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 

 T
a
rg

e
t 
=

 +
1
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
a
t 

2
0
 

s
it
e
s
. 
C

a
d
d
ie

s
 (

o
r 

s
im

ila
r)

 

 
3
0
 S

e
p
 2

0
0
7
 

W
S

C
 

P
o
lic

y
 3

 

V
a
le

 o
f 

W
h

it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 -

 W
a
s
te

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
0
0
7
-8

 

Page 131



 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
 &

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

(i
f 

a
p

p
li

c
a
b

le
) 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 
(o

th
e
r 

th
a
n

 
W

a
s
te

 T
e
a
m

) 

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r/

T
e
a
m

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

to
 1

,0
0
0
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
) 

2
.5

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 

le
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 

  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 w

a
s
te

 t
o
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

  T
a
rg

e
t 
=

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
t 

4
 s

it
e
s
 

 
3
0
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 

W
S

C
 +

 L
F

M
 

P
o
lic

ie
s
 1

 
&

 7
 

2
.6

 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 W

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 f
ro

m
 V

a
le

 o
ff

ic
e
 

s
it
e
s
 

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 w

a
s
te

 t
o
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

 
3
1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
7
 

W
S

C
 +

 F
M

 
P

o
lic

y
 1

 

2
.7

 
C

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

’ 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 j
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
ro

je
c
t 
fu

n
d
e
d
 b

y
 W

R
A

P
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
W

a
s
te

 I
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 &

 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

 
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

e
x
te

rn
a
lly

 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

W
S

C
 +

 C
T

 
P

o
lic

y
 8

 

2
.8

 
R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 f
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
p
ilo

t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
k
it
c
h
e
n
 

w
a
s
te

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

 
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 f

u
tu

re
 e

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
ti
m

e
 

3
1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

W
S

M
 +

 V
e
o
lia

 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 6

 
&

 9
 

2
.9

 
A

s
s
is

t 
in

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 a
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
W

R
A

P
 p

ro
je

c
t 

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

+
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 r

a
te

 i
n
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 a

re
a
s
 

 

 
3
0
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

W
S

C
+

W
R

A
P

 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 8

 
&

 9
 

2
.1

0
 
P

ro
d
u
c
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 d

a
y
 

c
a
le

n
d
a
r 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
W

R
A

P
 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
W

a
s
te

 I
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 &

 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

 
 

 
3
1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

W
S

C
+

C
T

 
P

o
lic

y
 8

 

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
W

a
s
te

 a
n

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 W

a
s
te

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
3
.1

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 p

ri
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

b
u
lk

y
 w

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 

fr
id

g
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

e
te

rr
e
n
t 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 r

e
-u

s
e
 

  

 
3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

W
S

M
  

P
o
lic

ie
s
 3

 
&

 4
 

V
a
le

 o
f 

W
h

it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 -

 W
a
s
te

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
0
0
7
-8

 

Page 132



 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
 &

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

(i
f 

a
p

p
li

c
a
b

le
) 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 
(o

th
e
r 

th
a
n

 
W

a
s
te

 T
e
a
m

) 

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r/

T
e
a
m

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 
=

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 b
y
 2

5
%

 i
f 
re

v
ie

w
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

W
a
s
te

 P
o

li
c
y
 a

n
d

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

4
.1

 
S

u
b
m

it
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 W

a
s
te

 A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
8
-9

 t
o
 S

R
C

. 
 

S
R

C
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 

 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
 

D
D

(C
&

P
) 

 

4
.2

 
S

u
b
m

it
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 W

a
s
te

 A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 t

o
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
a

l 
 

 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

 
D

D
(C

&
P

) 
 

4
.3

 
C

o
m

p
ile

 a
n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
B

V
P

Is
 a

n
d
 

L
P

Is
 f
o
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
W

a
s
te

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 o

n
 a

 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 
 

 
1
5
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
7
 

1
5
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

1
5
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
 

1
5
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
  

W
S

M
 

 

4
.4

 
P

re
p
a
re

 &
 s

ig
n
 o

ff
 P

I 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

  
 

A
c
c
u
ra

te
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 o
f 

P
.I
.s

  
 

3
0
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

W
S

M
 

 

4
.5

 
C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

b
u
d
g

e
ta

ry
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
7
/8

 
 

P
la

n
 f

u
lly

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r/

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

D
D

(C
&

P
) 

 

4
.6

 
V

e
o
lia

 (
th

e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
fo

rm
e
rl
y
 

k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 C

le
a
n
a
w

a
y
) 

J
o
in

t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

N
e
w

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 t
o
 

b
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

w
it
h
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

 T
a
rg

e
t 
=

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

n
o
n
-c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 
a
s
 

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 0

7
/0

8
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

P
I 

ta
b
le

. 

V
e
o
lia

 
J
IP

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 3

1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

P
la

n
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

W
S

M
 

 

4
.7

 
J
o
in

t 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
W

a
s
te

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

to
 b

e
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 O

W
P

 
J
P

P
 

O
W

P
 

 
D

e
a
d
lin

e
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 O

W
P

 J
P

P
 

D
D

(C
&

P
) 

P
o
lic

y
 1

4
 

4
.8

 
S

u
b
m

it
 J

P
P

 T
e
n
d
e
r 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

to
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 

E
x
e
c
 

 
S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
7
 E

x
e
c
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

D
D

(C
&

P
) 

P
o
lic

y
 1

4
 

V
a
le

 o
f 

W
h

it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 -

 W
a
s
te

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
0
0
7
-8

 

Page 133



 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
 &

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

(i
f 

a
p

p
li

c
a
b

le
) 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 
(o

th
e
r 

th
a
n

 
W

a
s
te

 T
e
a
m

) 

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r/

T
e
a
m

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

4
.9

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

W
a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
/9

 
o
n
w

a
rd

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

L
A

A
 C

o
u
n
ty

-
w

id
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 O

W
P

 j
o
in

t 
ta

rg
e
ts

. 
 

 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

D
D

(C
&

P
) 

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

5
.1

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
 c

o
n
te

n
ts

 a
n
d
 

u
p
g
ra

d
e
 w

h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 
 

A
c
c
u
ra

te
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
  

 
M

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

W
S

C
 

P
o
lic

y
 8

 

5
.2

 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

 e
v
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 W

R
A

P
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
v
e
h
ic

le
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 
p
u
b
lic

 e
v
e
n
ts

 
 T

a
rg

e
t 
=

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
1
0
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 

 D
S

O
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
D

u
ri
n
g

 2
0
0
7
 (

T
B

A
) 

W
S

C
 +

 C
T

 
P

o
lic

y
 8

 

5
.3

 
P

ro
d
u
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

V
a
le

 V
ie

w
s
  

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
W

a
s
te

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

e
x
te

rn
a
lly

 

M
o
n
th

ly
 a

rt
ic

le
s
. 

W
S

C
 +

 C
T

 
P

o
lic

y
 8

 

5
.4

 
P

ro
d
u
c
e
 W

a
s
te

 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
fo

r 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
. 

 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

 
1
5
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
8
 f

o
r 

M
a
rc

h
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
  

W
S

C
 +

 C
T

 
P

o
lic

y
 8

 

 K
e
y
 t

o
 i
n
it
ia

ls
: 

 
 

B
V

P
I 

=
 B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

r 
 

M
R

C
 =

  
M

in
i 
R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

C
T

 =
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 T

e
a
m

  
 

O
W

P
 =

 O
xf

o
rd

s
h
ir
e
 W

a
s
te

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
D

D
(C

&
P

) 
=

 D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
(C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 &
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t)

 
 

P
I 

=
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

r 
D

S
O

 =
 D

ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

 
S

R
C

 =
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

F
M

 =
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

 
W

M
 =

 W
a
s
te

 M
in

im
is

a
ti
o
n
 

J
P

P
 =

 J
o
in

t 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

 
W

S
C

 =
 W

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 C

o
o
rd

in
a
to

r 
L
A

A
 =

 L
o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

 
W

S
M

 =
 W

a
s
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

L
F

M
 =

 L
e
is

u
re

 F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

 
W

R
A

P
 =

 W
a
s
te

 a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
P

I 
=

 L
o
c
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

r 
 

W
T

O
s
 =

 W
a
s
te

 T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
 

V
a
le

 o
f 

W
h

it
e
 H

o
rs

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 -

 W
a
s
te

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
0
0
7
-8

 

Page 134



 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Direct Services Organisation 

 
 

Business Plan 2007 - 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bill Farrar 

Deputy Director, Commercial Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 18

Page 135



 

 

  
 

 

CONTENTS 
 

 

1.0 Introduction 

 

2.0 Executive Summary 

 

3.0 Situation Analysis 

 

3.1 What is the DSO? 

 

3.2 Services 

 

3.3 Customers 

 

3.4 Resources 

 

3.5 SWOT Analysis 

 

 

4.0 Aims and Objectives 

 

4.1 Mission Statement 

 

4.2 Core Values 

 

4.3 Limiting Factors and Changes 

 

5.0 Strategic Review 

 

5.1 Service Review 

 

5.2 New Service Development 

 

5.3 Priorities 

 

 

6.0 The Future 

 

7.0 Conclusions 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 136



 

 

  
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

Successful organisations know how important it is to perform well and continue to develop. They not only 

ensure that their product meets current demands but they also plan and invest for the future. 

 

Whilst good strategic, operational and financial management is essential stakeholders must also be 

engaged if they and the business are to progress together and in the same direction. 

 

A good Business Plan can provide the communication needed to convey to Members, customers, the 

community and employees the condition of its service and its commercial intentions. 

 

The following Business Plan should run in parallel with the Service Plan and is a statement of “where it is 

now, where it wants to be and how it intends to get there”. 

 

 

 

 

2.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

This is the first Direct Services Organisation Business Plan and can be developed further in time. 

 

There is a clear need to concentrate on core services, developing them to meet the needs of a modern 

and changing commercial environment and also to maximise the use of the valuable skills and expertise 

of staff both for the Authority and Council Tax payers. 

 

The Service requires the support of the Executive and the commitment of other Service Areas to 

commission and interact with our in-house service as a first option in procuring work. 

 

The ultimate aims of the DSO are: 

(i) in the short term, to reach a break-even position financially and  

(ii) in the longer term, to develop the quality and width of its services to levels that will benefit the 

Council, its other Services and the Community. 

The DSO has made great strides in minimising the operating financial deficit and in building a sound 

customer base. It intends to continue its improvement by seeking more external customers and providing 

new and additional services. 

 

 

 

 

3.0 SITUATION ANALYSIS 

 

3.1 What is the DSO? 

 

The Vale has operated a works unit called the DSO for many years providing a 24-hour daily service to the 

Council and to external customers (and neighbouring Authorities) that own or occupy domestic and 

commercial property in the Vale, South Oxfordshire and neighbouring Districts. 

 

On 1 April 2005, with the discontinuance of Technical Services and the restructuring of the senior 

management of the Vale of White Horse District Council, the DSO and Address Management were 

transferred to join with Building Control. After a year of initial recovery the Council endorsed the DSO’s 

viability subject to its continuing improvement and the submission of a Business Plan. 

 

The DSO is one of 4 Services within the Commercial Services group and now comprises: 

 

Page 137



 

 

  
 

 

1. Workforce Unit – a range of building and manual services for the Council and private customers 

 

2. Address Management – statutory duty of Street Naming, Property Identification and Road Closures 

 

3. Public Conveniences Cleaning – this work was previously contracted-out and has recently been 

taken back in-house  

 

The DSO’s fundamental objective is to provide the Council with a cost-effective resource facility that it 

needs to ensure its own operations are adequately supported as well as meeting the expectations of the 

community and the public. 

 

It is managed and led by the DSO Manager who is a member of the Commercial Services Management 

Team (CMT) and reports to the Deputy Director for Commercial Services. 

 

Its Points of Excellence are: 

• Quality Service 

• Customer Confidence 

• Customer Care 

• Reliability 

• Cost 

 

 

3.2 The Services 

The DSO carry out a range of work listed below: 

Septic Tanks  -  emptying units on a daily basis for householders and businesses in the Vale and South 

Oxfordshire District. 

Sewer Blockages  -  clearing drains daily for private householders, businesses, local authorities and 

housing associations in the Vale and South Oxfordshire District. 

Sewer Treatment Works and Pumping Stations  - maintenance and repairs on a regular basis on units 

owned by private householders, businesses, local authorities and housing associations in the Vale and 

South Oxfordshire District. 

Car Parks  -  continual maintenance and repairs on premises owned by and situated in the Vale. 

Public Conveniences  -  maintenance and repairs as well as the cleaning of 6 premises owned by and 

situated in the Vale. 

CCTV Surveys - specialist work commissioned occasionally by private householders and businesses in 

the Vale and South Oxfordshire District 

Contract Work (External)  -  wide range of minor building and manual work commissioned by private 

customers, companies and other local authorities. It provides services to the community that require 

quick and reliable responses and which the private sector often cannot or decline to provide. The DSO 

responds to emergencies and other incidents, eg. flooding (sandbagging) and dangerous structures. 

Contract Work (Internal)  -  wide range of building and manual work for other Council Services. In 

addition to speed and reliability the Services also benefit from the confidence in assured flexibility, control 

and costs. Services are recharged at the most economical commercial rate. This necessary work 

includes Committee set-ups, office moves, road signage, etc. 

Address Management  -  this section of the DSO administers the statutory duty of ensuring that names 

are given to all roads and streets and that their signs are properly erected and displayed. It also has the 

responsibility for closure of roads when suitable applications are made for events and incidents. 

 

 

Page 138



 

 

  
 

 

3.3 Customers 

 

DSO has a wide range of customers from private owners and occupiers of property, commercial 

businesses and local authority and statutory bodies: 

 

 

Individual Users 

 

° Businesses 

° Council tax payers 

° Property owners 

° Riparian owners 

° Tenants 

 

Service Providers 

 

° Consultants 

° Contractors 

° Developers 

° Solicitors 

° Utility Service providers 

° Sign manufacturers 

° Street map publishers 

 

External Bodies 

 

° Oxfordshire County Council 

° South Oxfordshire District Council 

° Town and Parish Councils in the Vale of White Horse DC and South Oxfordshire DC 

° Environment Agency 

° Thames Water 

° Housing Associations 

° Ordnance Survey 

° Land Registry 

° Royal Mail 

Page 139



 

 

  
 
3.4 Resources 

 

Staff 

 

The current establishment headcount for the DSO is 13 staff  (set out in Appendix A). The multi-skilled 

DSO operatives cover each other and deliver the whole range of the services. The section works in 

teams and as individuals depending upon timescales, standards agreed and the nature of the contracts. 

 

The flexibility and commitment of the staff and management is essential for effective service delivery. 

When staff resources are low, due to extra business and/or vacancies, agency personnel and/or overtime 

are used to meet the contracts. 

 

Facilities and Premises 

 

The administration is based at Abbey House, Abingdon with the service depot located at Regis Yard, 

Challow Station. The DSO service properties at: 

° Charter Car Park, Abingdon 

° Public Conveniences (6no.) in Abingdon, Botley, Faringdon and Wantage 

° Sewer Treatment Works and Pumping Stations (7no.) at various locations in the Vale 

 

Communication with the public and customers is routed via Abbey House using the most appropriate 

method available, ie. mail, telephone (land line or mobile), fax, and e-mail. 

 

Vehicle and Plant 

 

The DSO fleet vehicles operate from Regis Yard with maintenance being carried out by external agents. 

 

Appendix B shows the current list with the year of purchase and programmed dates of replacement. Due 

to the nature of the work, the large geographical area covered and response times, the vehicles need to 

be in good mechanical order and reliable. Therefore, the replacement periods are use-dependent, 

varying from 5 to 10 years (or more). 

 

A reserve of £50,000 is set up to fund the vehicle purchases the cost of which being met, in due course, 

from the service’s revenue account. Occasionally vehicles are leased or hired depending upon the timing 

and the type of work. Generally only small items of plant are purchased, other than jetting or generator 

units, with specific items of mechanical plant or machinery hired in as required on a rechargeable basis. 

 

Page 140



 

 

  
 

3.5 SWOT Analysis 

 

The most important asset that Local Authorities have is their knowledge of their own operating area. 

Their weakness is often the combination of restrictive legislation, highly competitive market place and 

internal overheads. 

 

 Internal External 

Strengths 

 

° Experience 

° Motivation 

° Trained Staff 

° New positive corporate attitude 

° Support/back-up of large organisation 

 

° Local knowledge (Vale & SODC) 

° Reputation of quality service 

° Accountability 

° Existing Team 

° Available 24 / 7 

° Fast response time 

° Price 

 

Weaknesses 

 

° Staffing levels 

° De-motivation 

° Council policies and procedures 

° Legislation 

° Bureaucracy 

° Lack of feedback 

° Staff resistant to change 

 

 

° Depot location 

° Overload of work 

° Disposal restrictions 

Opportunities 

 

° Training and apprenticeship 

° Profit share 

° Partnership and joint working 

° ICT and communication 

 

° Expand core work 

° Diversification 

° Marketing and promotion of business 

° Standing orders 

° E-Gov 

 

Threats 

 

° Council Policy 

° Overheads and costs 

° Recruitment 

° Staff retention 

° Ageism 

° Political Change 

 

° Competition 

° Marketplace climate (inflation) 

° Loss of work 

° Externalisation threats 

° Lack of support and leadership 

° Redundancy 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 141



 

 

  
 

 

4.0 AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 

4.1 Mission Statement 

 

The DSO intends to provide: 

° the Council with effective, efficient and economic services that will meet the demands of its 

internal services and the community and 

° services underpinned by quality, reliability and value for money, which meets the performance 

standards demanded of a modern and dynamic local authority. 

 

 

4.2 Core Values 

 

The DSO is committed to: 

 

° Customer Care 

° Good Management and Leadership 

° Environmental; Awareness 

° Equal Opportunities 

° Commercial Attitude 

 

 

4.3 Limiting Factors and Changes 

 

Local Government is restricted by legislation in a number of areas: 

 

° Who the Authority can work for 

° The nature of the work 

° The location of the work 

° The value of the contract 

° The staff used to resource the contract 

 

Council policies and procedures, which the private sector is not subject to, can hinder the ability to win 

business - eg. Contract Standing Orders, Equal Opportunities, etc. 

 

Changes in the following areas might influence business development: 

 

° European and national legislation 

° Budgets 

° Council priorities 

° National and local economy 

 

 

Page 142



 

 

  
 

5.0 STRATEGIC REVIEW 

 

 

5.1 Service Review 

 

During the first 6 months after the transfer of the DSO in April 2005 its operations and finances were 

rigorously analysed. Whilst the management of staff and service delivery was found to be sound all other 

areas required immediate attention. 

 

Subsequently the administration and financial control was improved, charges increased and accounting 

simplified and a commercial and business enterprise approach was introduced. 

 

Most of the DSO services have maintained their market share. The volume of work has increased with no 

loss of customers and order books remain full. 

 

Commercial links with organisations such as Vale Housing Association were increased and terms of the 

Housing Act Works contract were extended with South Oxfordshire District Council. Other work in that 

District has also increased. 

 

In June 2006, the contracted-out public convenience cleaning contract was taken back in-house and 

assigned to the DSO and, in January 2007, the Street Naming and Numbering Policy was updated with 

the introduction of Charges. 

 

The core services of septic tank emptying, sewer clearances and sewer treatment works have remained 

very strong. Similarly, minor works contracts have also expanded beyond internal and external clients to 

town and parish Council in other authorities. 

 

 

5.2 New Service Development 

 

The SWOT analyses and feedback from customers indicates the need for expansion and development of 

existing core services. However, opportunities exist for joint or partnership working in associated 

construction related activities, ie. property repairs and maintenance, cleaning contracts, drainage works, 

etc. 

 

 

5.3 Priorities 

 

Council Priorities 

 

The DSO is continuing to explore with other Authorities ways of making services better and more cost 

effective through possible partnering and joint working. It also contributes to Council Priorities with 

respect to (i) creating a cleaner, greener, safer and healthier environment and (ii) the Medium Term 

Financial Plan. 

 

Service Priorities 

 

The following areas require particular attention: 

° Continue to review finances and accounting procedures 

° Marketing of services 

° Benchmarking performance standards and charges 

° Establishing relevant and useful performance indicators 

° Customer surveys 

° Risk assessments 

 

  

Page 143



 

 

  
 

6.0 THE FUTURE 

 

2005-06 was an exceptional year in which the final deficit was reduced, beyond expectations, to £47k. In 

a year of consolidation, 2006-07 is likely to produce a £44k deficit. In 2007-08, the deficit is expected to 

fall to £20k and the service is expected to break even in 2008-09. Appendix C illustrates a 4 year 

schedule of account. 

 

If the current trends continue the DSO expect to achieve their fundamental goals: 

• An excellent service to the community and its customers 

• Retain and increase market share and income 

• Balance the accounts 

• Maintain staffing levels and develop a motivated, professional and happy team 

 

In doing so the following aspects have been identified as Critical Success Factors: 

• Marketing 

• Training 

• Communications & ICT Systems 

• Good Financial and Performance Management 

 

In 4 years time the DSO expect that: 

• Current levels of income and volume of work are sustained 

• Opportunities for partnership and regional working have increased 

• Services would be more diverse 

• Liability will have increased and litigation will have become easier and more common

Page 144



 

 

  
 

  

7.0 CONCLUSIONS 

 

 

The DSO’s commercial approach, through financial control, efficient management, minimising 

expenditure and maximising income, has established itself as a substantial and business-like unit with 

scope to develop further. 

 

The professional and committed attitude of the workforce gives confidence in the unit being well 

organised and efficient. The high market share and volume of compliments illustrate its popularity. 

 

It is a well-organised and efficient unit that is a credit to the Council and, given sufficient time and 

support, it should prove to be a worthwhile asset. 

 

All elements of the business shall be overhauled with a greater emphasis on marketing the service.  

 

Within a commercial environment and competing against the private sector, the level of Charges will play 

an important part in achieving success and a large market share. The benefit to the Council would be to 

provide its community with a service that it could trust to maintain high standards but cost effectively. 

 

The DSO could develop the business with a view to breaking even financially by the end of 2008-09 with 

a further intention of sustaining a healthy and useful direct service group that could enhance and support 

the Council. 

 

The DSO provides the community with a cost effective quality service. Ceasing the function would have 

two significant effects: 

 

° Work for the Council 

The Council would need to commission external private contractors to fulfil these tasks - there is a risk 

that these costs would be greater than the current recharges. 

 

° Work for the Community 

There is no legal obligation for the Council to provide such services. However, as customers have relied 

on these services for many years, this may lead to an adverse public perception of the Council. 

Furthermore, as much of the work is not financially attractive to private contractors this could result in 

reductions in local standards and amenities in the Vale. 

 

 

Page 145



 

 

  
  

 
  
  
  
  
  

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

     

D
IR

E
C

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

 -
 2

0
0
7

P
C

 C
le

a
n

e
r

 M
ic

k
 B

a
ll
a

rd

P
C

 C
le

a
n

e
r

 M
a
r
ie

 B
a
ll
a
rd

P
C

 C
le

a
n

e
r

 G
o

r
d
o

n
 B

a
rk

e
r

D
S

T
e

c
h

n
ic

ia
n

T
im

 T
a
lb

o
t

D
S

T
e

c
h

n
ic

ia
n

 R
o
b

in
 W

a
lk

e
r

D
S

T
e

c
h

n
ic

ia
n

A
lf
 S

c
r
iv

e
n
s

D
S

T
e

c
h

n
ic

ia
n

K
e
v
in

 C
r
e
e
d

D
S

T
e

c
h

n
ic

ia
n

R
o
b

in
 C

o
o
k

D
S

T
e

c
h

n
ic

ia
n

 A
n
d

y
 W

e
b
b

D
S

T
e

c
h

n
ic

ia
n

 A
la

n
 M

c
In

ty
re

S
e

n
io

r 
A

d
m

in
 O

ff
ic

e
r

 J
u
li
e

 G
re

e
n

H
e

le
n
 U

n
w

in

A
d

m
in

 A
s
s
is

ta
n
t

(
P

a
rt

 t
im

e
)

D
S

 M
a
n

a
g

e
r

 B
a

rr
y
 D

a
v
ie

s

D
e
p

u
ty

 D
ir

e
c
to

r

C
o
m

m
e
r
c
ia

l 
S

e
r
v
ic

e
s

B
il
l 
F

a
r
ra

r

Page 146



 

 

  
  

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
 

In
v

e
n

to
ry

 o
f 

D
S

O
 V

e
h

ic
le

s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

 

 
E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 C

o
s
t 

(£
1
,0

0
0
’s

) 
 -

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
D

a
te

 

Vehicle 

Regn No 

Registration Date 

Current Age (Years) 

Replacement Age 

2007-08 

2008-09 

2009-10 

2010-11 

2011-12 

2012-13 

2013-14 

2015-16 

2016-17 

2017-18 

T
a
n
k
e
r 

- 
  
S

c
a
n
ia

 
M

2
2
9
 

V
V

R
 

M
a
r 

9
5
 

1
1
 

1
1
 

5
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5
0
 

 

M
e
rc

e
d
e
s
 V

it
o
 V

a
n
 

Y
1
9
8
 

F
B

W
 

A
p
r 

0
1
 

6
 

9
 

 
1
4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
4
 

M
e
rc

e
d
e
s
 V

it
o
 V

a
n
 

O
U

0
2
 

B
S

X
 

A
p
r 

0
2
 

5
 

7
 

 
 

1
4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
e
rc

e
d
e
s
 S

p
ri
n
te

r 
V

a
n
 

Y
1
9
9
 

F
B

W
 

A
p
r 

0
1
 

6
 

9
 

 
 

 
2
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
rc

e
d
e
s
 S

p
ri
n
te

r 
V

a
n
 

R
9
7
6
  

V
F

C
 

S
e
p
 9

7
 

9
 

1
3
 

 
 

 
 

2
2
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
e
rc

e
d
e
s
 S

p
ri
n
te

r 
V

a
n
 

P
8
6
0
 

H
U

D
 

J
u
l 
9
7
 

9
 

1
4
 

 
 

 
 

 
2
2
 

 
 

 
 

T
a
n
k
e
r 

- 
M

e
rc

e
d
e
s
 

R
1
3
0
  

X
F

C
 

D
e
c
 9

7
 

9
 

1
5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
0
 

 
 

 

J
e
tt
e
r 

V
W

L
 

5
2
3

X
 

J
u
n
 8

2
 

2
4
 

T
b
a
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
5
 

 
 

G
e
n
e
ra

to
r 

E
4
4
9
 

E
R

X
 

M
a
r 

8
8
 

1
8
 

T
b
a
 

5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
 

 
 

W
h
a
le

 J
e
t 

U
n
it
 

N
/A

 
A

p
r 

0
1
 

6
 

7
 

 
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 147



 

 

  
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 

 
 

 
 

4
-Y

e
a
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

ro
je

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
D

S
O

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

 
C

o
s
tc

 (
T

) 
C

C
 

A
c

 
A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
(T

) 
P

re
d

ic
t 

2
0
0
6
-0

7
 

P
re

d
ic

t 
2
0
0
7
-0

8
 

P
re

d
ic

t 
2
0
0
8
-0

9
 

P
re

d
ic

t 
2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
0
3
 

4
0
9
 

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 
1
2
,0

0
0
 

1
2
,0

0
0
 

1
3
,0

0
0
 

1
4
,0

0
0
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
0
3
 

4
1
4
 

P
ri
n
ti
n
g
 

5
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
5
0
 

2
0
0
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
0
3
 

4
3
6
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 -

 T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
s
 

1
1
7
 

1
2
0
 

1
5
0
 

2
0
0
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
0
3
 

7
0
2
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 (

a
c
tu

a
ls

) 
1
2
,0

0
0
 

1
2
,0

0
0
 

1
3
,0

0
0
 

1
4
,0

0
0
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
0
3
 

9
1
8
 

S
a
le

s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
0
3
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(3
,0

0
0
) 

(1
5
,0

0
0
) 

(1
8
,0

0
0
) 

(1
9
,0

0
0
) 

 
 

 
A

d
d

re
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
2
1
,1

6
6
 

9
,2

2
0
 

8
,3

0
0
 

9
,4

0
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

1
0
1
 

S
a
la

ri
e
s
 

2
6
1
,1

8
6
 

2
8
1
,2

0
5
 

2
9
5
,0

0
0
 

3
1
0
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

1
0
2
 

O
v
e
rt

im
e
 

5
7
,8

7
8
 

6
0
,0

0
0
 

6
2
,0

0
0
 

6
4
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

1
0
3
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 N
a
t 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

1
8
,3

7
2
 

2
0
,1

3
7
 

2
1
,0

0
0
 

2
2
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

1
0
5
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 S
u
p
e
ra

n
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 

4
5
,4

4
6
 

4
8
,9

3
0
 

5
0
,0

0
0
 

5
2
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

1
0
9
 

S
ta

n
d
b
y
 O

v
e
rt

im
e
 

1
4
,2

3
1
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

1
6
,0

0
0
 

1
8
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

1
1
9
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 S

ta
ff

 
1
8
,1

4
4
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

2
2
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

2
0
2
 

R
e
p
a
ir
s
 &

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
F

ix
 &

 F
it
ti
n
g
s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

2
0
3
 

R
e
p
a
ir
s
 &

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g
s
 

1
5
0
 

1
5
0
 

2
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

2
1
2
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 R

e
n
ta

l 
1
8
,0

0
0
 

1
4
,0

0
0
 

1
5
,0

0
0
 

1
2
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

2
1
6
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s
 

4
,4

9
1
 

4
,4

9
1
 

5
,0

0
0
 

5
,5

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

2
2
5
 

W
a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

1
,4

0
6
 

1
,4

0
6
 

0
 

0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

3
0
1
 

R
e
p
a
ir
s
 &

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
V

e
h
ic

le
s
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

1
2
,0

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

3
0
2
 

F
u
e
l 

3
2
,4

8
3
 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

3
6
,0

0
0
 

3
8
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

3
0
3
 

L
ic

e
n
c
e
s
 

2
,7

4
0
 

2
,7

4
0
 

2
,8

0
0
 

3
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

3
0
4
 

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 -
 V

e
h
ic

le
 

7
,0

2
9
 

7
,0

2
9
 

7
,0

0
0
 

8
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

3
0
5
 

O
th

e
r 

C
o
n
s
u
m

a
b
le

s
 

1
,8

4
3
 

1
,8

4
3
 

2
,0

0
0
 

2
,5

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

3
0
6
 

H
ir
e
 o

f 
P

la
n
t 
a
n
d
 V

e
h
ic

le
s
 

1
1
,0

0
0
 

8
,0

0
0
 

8
,0

0
0
 

9
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

3
1
0
 

C
a
r 

A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s
 -

 L
u
m

p
 S

u
m

 
5
4
2
 

5
4
2
 

6
0
0
 

7
0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

3
1
1
 

C
a
r 

A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s
 -

 M
ile

a
g
e
 

8
2
0
 

8
2
0
 

1
,0

0
0
 

1
,2

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

3
1
2
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 I
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

6
,5

6
0
 

6
,5

6
0
 

9
,0

0
0
 

1
2
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

3
1
3
 

V
e
h
ic

le
 P

u
rc

h
a
s
e
s
 

3
,0

0
0
 

1
3
,0

0
0
 

3
0
,0

0
0
 

3
0
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
0
2
 

T
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

2
,9

0
6
 

3
,0

0
0
 

3
,0

0
0
 

3
,5

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
0
3
 

R
e
p
a
ir
s
/M

a
in

t 
o
f 

F
u
rn

it
u
re

, 
T

o
o
ls

 &
 E

q
u
ip

 
3
5
4
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

6
0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
0
9
 

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 
2
7
,8

1
2
 

3
0
,0

0
0
 

3
1
,0

0
0
 

3
2
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
1
3
 

C
lo

th
in

g
 

2
2
1
 

5
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

6
0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
1
4
 

P
ri
n
ti
n
g
 

3
2
0
 

4
0
0
 

4
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
1
8
 

S
ta

ti
o
n
e
ry

 -
 O

th
e
r 

S
ta

ti
o
n
e
ry

 
6
9
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

1
5
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
2
3
 

A
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 

0
 

0
 

5
0
0
 

7
0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
2
4
 

E
xt

e
rn

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
6
,0

0
0
 

2
8
,0

0
0
 

2
9
,0

0
0
 

3
0
,0

0
0
 

Page 148



 

 

  
C

o
s
tc

 (
T

) 
C

C
 

A
c

 
A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
(T

) 
P

re
d

ic
t 

2
0
0
6
-0

7
 

P
re

d
ic

t 
2
0
0
7
-0

8
 

P
re

d
ic

t 
2
0
0
8
-0

9
 

P
re

d
ic

t 
2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
2
9
 

P
u
b
lic

 L
ia

b
ili

ty
 I

n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

3
,3

2
0
 

3
,3

2
0
 

3
,5

0
0
 

4
,0

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
3
6
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 -

 T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
s
 

1
,0

8
9
 

1
,2

0
0
 

1
,4

0
0
 

1
,6

0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
3
7
 

C
o
m

p
u
ti
n
g
 

6
9
 

1
0
0
 

2
0
0
 

5
0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
3
9
 

S
u
b
s
is

te
n
c
e
 

5
7
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

2
0
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

th
e
r 

T
9
3
 

4
5
2
 

S
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 B

o
d
ie

s
 

1
,6

0
3
 

1
,6

0
0
 

1
,6

0
0
 

1
,0

0
0
 

S
T

W
s
 &

 P
u
m

p
 S

ta
ti
o
n
s
 -

 S
O

D
C

 
U

0
4
 

2
0
2
 

R
e
p
a
ir
s
 &

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
F

ix
 &

 F
it
ti
n
g
s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
T

W
s
 &

 P
u
m

p
 S

ta
ti
o
n
s
 -

 S
O

D
C

 
U

0
4
 

2
0
8
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 

1
,6

3
8
 

1
,6

3
8
 

1
,7

0
0
 

1
,8

0
0
 

S
T

W
s
 &

 P
u
m

p
 S

ta
ti
o
n
s
 -

 S
O

D
C

 
U

0
4
 

2
2
2
 

D
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 F

e
e
s
 

2
,0

6
9
 

2
,2

0
0
 

2
,4

0
0
 

2
,6

0
0
 

S
T

W
s
 &

 P
u
m

p
 S

ta
ti
o
n
s
 -

 S
O

D
C

 
U

0
4
 

4
2
4
 

E
xt

e
rn

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
T

W
s
 &

 P
u
m

p
 S

ta
ti
o
n
s
 -

 S
O

D
C

 
U

0
4
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(3
7
,0

0
0
) 

(4
0
,0

0
0
) 

(4
1
,0

0
0
) 

(4
2
,0

0
0
) 

S
T

W
s
 &

 P
u
m

p
 S

ta
ti
o
n
s
 -

 P
ri
v
a
te

 
U

0
5
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(1
3
,0

4
9
) 

(1
4
,0

0
0
) 

(1
6
,0

0
0
) 

(1
7
,0

0
0
) 

S
T

W
s
 &

 P
u
m

p
 S

ta
ti
o
n
s
 -

 P
ri
v
a
te

 
U

0
5
 

9
5
3
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 

(1
3
,0

0
0
) 

(1
3
,0

0
0
) 

(1
4
,0

0
0
) 

(1
5
,0

0
0
) 

S
T

W
s
 &

 P
u
m

p
 S

ta
ti
o
n
s
 -

 U
n
a
llo

c
a
t 

U
0
6
 

2
1
3
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 L

e
a
s
e
s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
T

W
s
 &

 P
u
m

p
 S

ta
ti
o
n
s
 -

 U
n
a
llo

c
a
t 

U
0
6
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

M
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
 

U
0
8
 

9
5
3
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 

(4
9
,0

0
0
) 

(5
0
,0

0
0
) 

(5
2
,0

0
0
) 

(5
3
,0

0
0
) 

E
m

p
ty

in
g
 S

e
p
ti
c
 T

a
n
k
s
 -

 V
a
le

 
U

0
9
 

2
2
2
 

D
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 F

e
e
s
 

3
7
,3

7
7
 

3
8
,0

0
0
 

4
0
,0

0
0
 

4
1
,0

0
0
 

E
m

p
ty

in
g
 S

e
p
ti
c
 T

a
n
k
s
 -

 V
a
le

 
U

0
9
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(5
9
,0

5
3
) 

(7
0
,0

0
0
) 

(8
0
,0

0
0
) 

(9
0
,0

0
0
) 

E
m

p
ty

in
g
 S

e
p
ti
c
 T

a
n
k
s
 -

 S
O

D
C

 
U

1
1
 

2
2
2
 

D
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 F

e
e
s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

E
m

p
ty

in
g
 S

e
p
ti
c
 T

a
n
k
s
 -

 S
O

D
C

 
U

1
1
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(7
2
,1

2
5
) 

(8
0
,0

0
0
) 

(9
0
,0

0
0
) 

(1
0
2
,0

0
0
) 

S
e
w

e
r 

B
lo

c
k
a
g
e
s
 -

 V
a
le

 P
ri
v
a
te

 
U

1
3
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(8
,2

6
1
) 

(2
5
,0

0
0
) 

(3
1
,0

0
0
) 

(3
3
,0

0
0
) 

S
e
w

e
r 

B
lo

c
k
a
g
e
s
 -

 V
H

A
 

U
1
4
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(3
2
,6

5
3
) 

(3
5
,0

0
0
) 

(3
8
,0

0
0
) 

(3
9
,0

0
0
) 

S
e
w

e
r 

B
lo

c
k
a
g
e
s
 -

 S
O

D
C

 
U

1
5
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(2
,2

2
8
) 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
e
w

e
r 

B
lo

c
k
a
g
e
s
 -

 S
O

D
C

 P
ri
v
a
te

 
U

1
6
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(9
,8

8
4
) 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
e
w

e
r 

B
lo

c
k
a
g
e
s
 -

 U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 

U
1
7
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
- 

A
E

A
 

U
2
1
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
- 

D
id

c
o
t 
P

o
w

e
r 

S
ta

ti
o
n
 

U
2
2
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
- 

M
in

o
r 

W
o
rk

s
 

U
2
3
 

2
0
8
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 

6
7
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
- 

M
in

o
r 

W
o
rk

s
 

U
2
3
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(4
5
,0

0
0
) 

(5
0
,0

0
0
) 

(5
7
,0

0
0
) 

(6
3
,0

0
0
) 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
- 

M
in

o
r 

W
o
rk

s
 

U
2
3
 

9
5
3
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 

(1
5
0
,0

0
0
) 

(1
6
0
,0

0
0
) 

(1
6
5
,0

0
0
) 

(1
7
0
,0

0
0
) 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
- 

P
C

 C
le

a
n
in

g
 

U
2
4
 

9
2
0
 

F
e
e
s
 F

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
- 

P
C

 C
le

a
n
in

g
 

U
2
4
 

9
5
3
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 

(7
0
,0

0
0
) 

(9
1
,0

0
0
) 

(9
3
,0

0
0
) 

(9
7
,0

0
0
) 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
- 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 S

e
tu

p
 

U
2
6
 

7
0
2
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 (

a
c
tu

a
ls

) 
8
4
6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

 
 

 
D

S
O

 E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 
5
9
,8

8
7
 

3
5
,5

1
0
 

1
9
,5

0
0
 

1
0
,0

5
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
D

S
O

 E
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

 
5
9
,8

8
7
 

3
5
,5

1
0
 

1
9
,5

0
0
 

1
0
,0

5
0
 

 
 

 
D

e
d
u
c
t 
A

d
d
re

s
s
 M

g
m

n
t 
S

a
la

ri
e
s
 

(1
6
,0

0
0
) 

(1
7
,0

0
0
) 

(1
8
,0

0
0
) 

(1
9
,0

0
0
) 

 
 

 
N

e
t 

D
S

O
 D

e
fi

c
it

 /
  

(S
u

rp
lu

s
) 

4
3
,8

8
7
 

1
8
,5

1
0
 

1
,5

0
0
 

(8
,9

5
0
) 

 

Page 149



Agenda Item 22

Page 150

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


